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Welcome to the second edition of the Roadmap to the IFRS future! This edition of the roadmap updates the
guidance, tools and content for the standards covered in the first edition. These updates include the latest industry
thinking and disclosures. The IFRS 10 route has also been updated to include the investment entity exception to
consolidation.

The current financial reporting landscape is changing significantly with the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) having recently issued several new standards. With each new standard comes new and different
considerations and reporting requirements. The implementation of these new standards could have a significant
impact on systems and resources.

This roadmap is designed to give entities a guide to the implementation of the new International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). It is hoped that this will provide organisations with the tools they need to effectively and efficiently
implement the new standards. While every care has been taken in the development of the roadmap and the

related tools, Deloitte is not responsible for the implementation of the new standards. That responsibility rests with
management and the directors of that entity.

The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to assist with this process are:

Business Unit Leader:
Accounting & Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za

Partner:
Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Partner:
Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za

—
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The roadmap is designed to be an interactive route so as to provide you with the information that you need to

effectively implement the new IFRS standards. Each of the new and revised standards is reflected by a separate route

(coloured line) on the roadmap. Along each route are different numbers. Each number represents a step

to be taken in the implementation process. Please place your mouse over the icon to read a summary of that step.
Clicking on each icon will take you to the details of that particular step. In addition, all of the information for each
new and revised standard as well as additional resources and templates, which can be used for the implementation
process can be found by clicking on the text which reads “refer to..” which can be found throughout the

document, at the relevant steps. This will bring up a panel on the left with all the attachments.

The following table summarises the effective dates and transitional requirements of each of the new standards:

Standard Effective Date Transition Requirements
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013 Retrospective Application
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 1 January 2013 Retrospective Application
Statements

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 1 January 2014 Retrospective Application

Statements - Investment Entities

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013

Retrospective Application

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other | 1 January 2013
Entities

Retrospective Application

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

Prospective Application
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IAS 19(R) Employee Benefits

DA ED Y

Investment

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Al@ncial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Non-financial assets
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IAS 19(R) Employee Benefits

IAS 19(R) contains the requirements for accounting for employee benefits. Employee benefits are all forms of
consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by the employees or for the termination of
employment. The most complex of these is the accounting for post-retirement benefit plans where the employer
has guaranteed the amount of benefits to be paid out to employees (most often seen in South Africa as defined
pension plans). Such plans require actuarial valuations and result in actuarial gains or losses being recognised in the
financial statements. There were previously three methods of accounting for such actuarial gains or losses.

The revisions to the standard which were issued in 2011 have eliminated two of these methods and now require
that all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in other comprehensive income.

In addition, interest is now calculated on a net basis (the defined benefit liability less any plan assets) instead of
separately on the defined benefit liability and plan assets.
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Assess whether an entity has defined benefit plans. A defined benefit plan is one in which the employer has guaranteed the amount of benefits to be paid
out to employees. It is only defined benefit plans which are affected by the amendments to IAS 19, if there are no defined benefit plans, then the rest of
the route need not be followed.
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3. Assign a Team Leader and Allocate Project Resources
Assign a team leader to head an implementation team tasked with implementing the standard. Allocate the team leader adequate resources in terms of

staff, budget and time in order to lead an effective implementation of the new standard. As the project progresses, revise the resource allocation to take
into account the results of the implementation process.
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Prior to the amendments, IAS 19 allowed for three different accounting policies relating to the recognition of actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans:
1. Immediate recognition of the full actuarial gain or loss in profit or loss for the period (“immediate P&L method”)
2. Immediate recognition of the full actuarial gain or loss in other comprehensive income (“immediate OCl method”)

3. Partial recognition of the actuarial gain or loss in profit or loss for the period using the corridor method (“corridor method”)

Identify the current policy for the recognition of actuarial gains and losses to determine whether the amendments to IAS 19 will result in a change to the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
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5. Is the Current Policy in Line with IAS 19(R)?
Post amendment, IAS 19(R) requires that all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in other comprehensive income. The interest recognised is now
calculated on the net defined liability and not separately on deferred benefit liabilities and plan assets.

If the immediate P&L method or corridor method are being used, then follow the remaining steps in the roadmap. If the immediate OCI method is being
used, skip steps 7 to 11. Follow and steps 6 and then 12 to 14.
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Obtain the total actuarial gains and losses for the current and previous three years, as well as the information to complete the additional disclosure in step
12 in order to adopt the amendments retrospectively. This information can be obtained from either previous financial statements or from the actuarial
valuations performed.
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Assess the systems impact. Update the system to reflect the new accounting treatment for employee benefits.
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Perform a high level impact on the financial statements as the change from the immediate P&L method or the corridor method to the immediate OCI
method could have a significant impact on the company's financial statements.
A template is attached which can be used for performing this assessment.

(Refer to IAS 19 impact analysis spreadsheet)

.
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9. Consider Impact on Profit Sharing Agreements, Ratios, Covenants and Employee Benefits
Once the high level impact analysis has been performed, assess the potential impact on the following areas:

Area Consideration

Profit Sharing Agreement

Profit sharing agreements may be impacted by the
new accounting treatment

Ratios

The following commonly used ratios may be
impacted:

- Dividend Yield

« Gross Profit Percentage

+ Net Profit Percentage

+ Return on Assets

« Debt/Equity

Covenants

As a result of the changes to the ratios, debt
covenants may be impacted. Consideration will
need to be given to potential re-negotiation of
debt covenants.

Employee Benefits

Certain aspects of employee remuneration and
benefits may be dependent on a certain item
within the financial statements, for example
revenue or profit. The implementation of IAS 19 (R)
may change these items and so employee benefit
structures may need to be revised.
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10. Communicate Impact of Change

Consider communication with the following parties:
1. Board members

2. Lenders

3. Investors

4. Analysts

5. External auditors

6. Other interested parties
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Process journal entries to account for adjustments, as may be necessary, to reflect amendments of IAS 19(R) in the
financial statements.
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12. Update Financial Statement Presentation

Update the financial statements for the new IAS 19(R) disclosure requirements. Attached is model disclosure for the annual financial statements and a
template for the reporting pack reporting pack which can be used as guidance for the disclosure which needs to be provided.

(Refer to IAS 19 model disclosure and template reporting pack)

IAS 19(R) requires the following presentation of each of the components of the defined benefit plan in the statement of financial performance:

Component Detail Presentation

Service cost Cost of employee benefit arising Operating expenses
from employee service in the current
period.

Interest cost Interest on the net defined liability Finance costs

Residual return on plan assets Excess of expected return on plan Other comprehensive income
assets over interest rate

Actuarial gains and losses Changes in actuarial assumptions and | Other comprehensive income
experience adjustments

One of the common pitfalls in applying the standard is the discount rate:

Common Pitfall Correct Treatment

Discount Rate In the South African environment, the
government bond rate should be used to
as the discount rate for defined benefit
obligations.
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13. Perform Dry Run of Financial Statements
Perform a dry run of the financial statements to ensure that the IAS 19(R) disclosure requirements have been met.
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14.
The team leader and project team need to have a good understanding of the standard which they will be responsible for implementing and the possible

impacts on the organisation. To achieve this, consultation with IFRS technical experts may be required. The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to
assist with this process are as follows:

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Business Unit Leader: Accounting &
Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za
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IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 is the new standard which provides guidance on when a subsidiary should be consolidated. IFRS 10 builds on the existing control guidance in IAS 27
and SIC 12, adding additional context, explanation and application guidance that is consistent with the definition of control. IFRS 10 requires an assessment of
whether the parent has the power to direct the relevant activities of an entity so as to obtain returns. These entities are then consolidated by the parent. Once
it has been determined under IFRS 10 that an entity should be consolidated, the actual mechanics of the consolidation remain the same as under IAS 27.

IFRS 10 provides two models for accounting for subsidiaries:

1 The consolidation model - Once it has been determined under IFRS 10 that an entity should be consolidated, the actual mechanics of the consolidation
remain the same as under IAS 27.

2 Fair valuation model by investment entities - IFRS 10 mandates investment entities to account for certain
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss instead of by consolidation. IFRS 10 sets out the criteria which
must be met in order for an entity to be classified as an investment entity.
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2. Does the entity hold investments in other entities that it may have control over?

Assess whether an entity has investments in other entities that it controls.
An investor controls an investee when the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to

affect those returns through its power over the investee. Should an entity hold no investments in other entities then the rest of route need not be followed.

Ability to

Relevant affect

Rights Substantive

activities S
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Assign a team leader to head an implementation team tasked with implementing the standard. Allocate the team leader adequate resources in terms of
staff, budget and time in order to lead an effective implementation of the new standard. As the project progresses, revise the resource allocation to take
into account the results of the implementation process.
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A subsidiary is an entity which is controlled by the investor. Sometimes, the determination as to who controls an entity will be very straightforward; it may
be clear that control over the investee is exercised by means of equity instruments (e.g. ordinary shares) that give the holder proportionate voting rights. In
clear-cut situations, an investor that holds a majority of those voting rights, in the absence of any other factors, controls the investee.

For more complex scenarios, more judgement may be required. IFRS 10 states that an investor controls the subsidiary if it has all of the following:

« Power over the investee;

« Exposure, or rights, to variable returns (returns are interpreted broadly to include synergistic as well as more direct returns) from its involvement with the
investee; and

« The ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Identify all potential subsidiaries. This will involve a combination of assessing voting rights held in subsidiaries and where there is power to direct the relevant
activities of another entity.

Create or review a register of all investments. As well as achieving good corporate governance, this will allow for potential subsidiaries to be identified.
An example of an investments register is provided.
(Refer to the register of investments spreadsheet)

Identify, in addition to the above, other contracts and structures which need to be considered and could results in additional subsidiaries.
This will involve the following:

« |dentification of the relevant activities of the investee;

« Consideration of how decisions regarding the relevant activities are made; and

» Whether the investor’s rights give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities.

The determination as to whether the investor’s rights give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities focuses on:

« The ability to direct rather than the actual exercise of power;

« Various rights that give an investor power over an investee;

- Evidence to be considered when it is difficult to determine whether the investor’s rights are sufficient to give it power;

« The nature of ‘substantive’ rights (the rights that will determine whether an entity has power) and ‘protective’ rights (in themselves not sufficient to result in
power over an investee);

« When the relevant activities are directed through voting rights, including consideration of circumstances when majority voting rights are not necessary to
direct the relevant activities; and

 When voting or similar rights do not have a significant effect on the investee's returns.
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Assess the impact of the new standard on the consolidation decisions made, by asking a number of important questions. The following list includes some of the questions to consider, but is not
exhaustive. This is because the standard requires analysis of all facts and circumstances together with the application of significant judgement in the consolidation assessment.

Person Question

Company secretary and senior management Do we hold between 35% - 49% of the voting rights in another company but have not previously consolidated them?

Directors Do the voting patterns at previous AGMs indicate that the other shareholders are passive in nature?

Is there a special agreement in place, contractual or otherwise, with other shareholders of the investee, which allows us to appoint or

Directors and senior management approve the investee’s key management personnel who have the ability to direct the relevant activities?

Can we, with or without having the contractual right to do so, direct the investee to enter into, or veto any changes to, significant

Directors and senior management transactions for the benefit of the investor?

The concept of de facto control provides that an investor with less than a majority of the voting rights could have sufficient power when
the investor has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally.

All facts and circumstances are considered, including the size of the investor’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders, noting that it is more likely to have the current ability to direct the relevant activities when:

(i) the investor holds significant voting rights;
(i) the investor holds more voting rights relative to other investors;
(iii) the more parties that would need to act together to outvote the investor.

Company secretary, directors and/or senior management Do we hold any potential ordinary shares (e.g. options) in an investee?

When assessing control, an investor considers its potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has power. Potential voting rights are rights to obtain voting rights of an investee, such as those arising from
convertible instruments or options, including forward contracts. Those potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are
substantive. IAS 27 (2008) required voting rights to be currently exercisable in order to be considered in making a consolidation
assessment. In some cases currently exercisable potential voting rights might not be considered substantive and vice versa, thereby
potentially changing the consolidation decision.

For a right to be substantive, the holder must have the practical ability to exercise that right. Determining whether rights are substantive
requires judgement, taking into account all facts and circumstances

Director or senior management Do we have any insurance cell captives?

An investor is required to consider whether it should regard a portion of an investee as a deemed separate entity and, if so, whether it
controls the deemed separate entity.

An investor shall treat a portion of an investee as a deemed separate entity if and only if the following condition is satisfied:

Specified assets of the investee (and related credit enhancements, if any) are the only source of payment for specified liabilities of, or
specified other interests in, the investee. In substance, all the assets, liabilities and equity of that deemed separate entity is ring-fenced
from the overall investee. Such a deemed separate entity is often called a ‘silo’.

In almost all circumstances, where an entity has an insurance cell captive, such cell captive will constitute a deemed separate entity and
will be consolidated by the entity.

Directors, senior management, legal counsel and procurement Have you considered whether, based on all facts and circumstances, you might control any of your suppliers, customers of parties to
personnel whom you have extended significant financing?

Are there any structured entities with which the company has a relationship, and the entity is designed so that voting or similar rights are
not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity?
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Once all potential subsidiaries have been identified, assess which subsidiaries are controlled by the investor. An investor controls an investee if the investor has all the following:
a. power over the investee;

b. exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
c. the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

These will be the following:

- Entities where the investor holds the majority of the voting rights in the subsidiaries, unless there is contractual arrangement or legislation which does not result in control. These should be the
same as the subsidiaries which were consolidated under IAS 27.

« Entities where the investor does not hold a majority of voting rights but through a contractual agreement or regulation is entitled to exercise a majority of voting rights over the investee. These
should be the same as the subsidiaries which were consolidated under IAS 27.

« Entities in which the investor holds between 35% and 49% of the voting rights of the investee and based on the relative size of the investor’s voting rights compared to other investees, the
investor has control. These entities may previously have been accounted for as associates but now, as a result of the introduction of the concept of de facto control under IFRS 10, these entities
may need to be consolidated. De facto control is where the investor controls the investee based on the size of the voting rights that it holds compared to other shareholders and whether those

shareholders are likely to collaborate in order to outvote the investor. This is particularly relevant for listed associates where there are many other shareholders who are unlikely to act together to
out vote the investor.

« Other structure entities where the investor has the power to direct the relevant activities, including but not limited to, securitisation vehicles.
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In assessing control over structured entities additional judgement may be needed in order to determine whether these entities may be consolidated. These entities may be Black Economic
Empowerment entities and cell captives or silo’s.

Structured entity Consideration
. Due to the complexity surrounding the structure of many BEE schemes, additional judgement and consideration is needed to assess whether
Black Economic Empowerment (BEE)

entities BEE entities meet the definition of control under IFRS 10. Entities may consider engaging with us to understand the reporting impact of
these arrangements (step 18).

An investor is required to consider whether it should regard a portion of an investee as a deemed separate entity and, if so, whether it
controls the deemed separate entity.

An investor shall treat a portion of an investee as a deemed separate entity if the following conditions are satisfied:
a) Specified assets of the investee are the only source of payment for the specified liabilities in the investee;

b) Parties other than those with the specified liability do not have rights or obligations related to the specified assets or residual cash flows
Cell Captives or Silo's from the assets; and

) None of the returns from the specified assets can be used by the remaining investee and none of the liabilities of the deemed separate
entity are payable from the remaining investee.

In substance, all the assets, liabilities and equity of that deemed separate entity is ring-fenced from the overall investee. Such a deemed
separate entity is often called a ‘silo’.

Judgement will need to be applied to determine if the criteria above have been met to determine if the cell captive should be consolidated.
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When a new/revised standard is adopted, International Accounting Standard 8 — Accounting Policies, change in accounting estimates and errors requires
you to retrospectively apply the changes as set forth within that standard.

This is achieved by providing additional comparative information, within the statement of financial position, for the opening balances of the prior period
presented. For e.g. the year-end of Entity X is 31 December 2013. Entity X would need to present a third set of comparatives for 01 January 2012.

However you will not be required to provide an additional comparative within the notes to the financial statements.
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Assess whether an entity is an investment entity. This will enable the entity to account for certain of its subsidiaries at fair value. In performing this
assessment, consider all facts and circumstances, including its purpose and design.

An investment entity is defined under IFRS 10 as an entity that:

« Obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investors with investment management services;

- Commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or both; and
« Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

In order to be defined as an investment entity, the above criteria must be met.
To further understand the criteria above the following questions need to be considered.
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To further understand the investment entity criteria the following questions need to be considered.

Person Question

Company secretary Has the entity obtained funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investors with investment management services?

Typically, the investors will have pooled their funds to gain access to investment management services and the investment opportunities that they might not have

R had access to individually.

What is the business purpose of investment entity?

a)To understand the investment objectives of a business perform a review the offering memorandum and publications provided to the investors to understand
the business purpose of that entity. Evidence may also include the manner in which the entity presents itself to other parties for example it may present itself as a
business providing investments for capital appreciation in the medium term.

Directors and senior management | b) A differentiating factor of an investment entity is that it does not plan to hold its investments indefinitely. An investment entity’s plans should therefore include
an exit strategy documenting how the entity plans to realise the capital appreciation from substantially all of its equity investments and non-financial asset
investments. This is usually done on a portfolio basis instead of an investment by investment basis and should include a time frame.

o)If the investor (or another entity in its group) is benefiting from the investment (or has the objective of benefiting) in a manner that is not available to other
parties such as use of processes, assets or technology of an investee then the entity is not investing solely for capital appreciation, investment income or both.

a)ls the investment measured and evaluated on a fair value basis because it provides more relevant information and is this information readily available when
required?

In order to meet this requirement an investment entity should select a fair value accounting policy whenever it is permitted to do so under IFRS. For example
investment property should be accounted for at fair value, associates and joint ventures should be exempted from the equity accounting and financial assets
should be accounted for at fair value.

Directors and senior management
Note: An investment entity may have some assets or liabilities that are non-investment assets such as a head office property which can be measured at cost

because they are non-investment assets.

b) Does the entity report fair value information to the entity’s key management personnel who use the information to evaluate the performance of the investment
and make investment decisions?
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Typical characteristics of an investment entity

In addition to the above, consider if the entity has the set of typical characteristics of an investment entity. These characteristics, combined with the
definition above, are intended to allow for an appropriate balance between creating a clear scope and allowing judgment in assessing whether an entity is
an investment entity.

These typical characteristics are as outlined below:

Characteristic Explanation

The entity has more than one investment An investment entity typically holds several investments to diversify its risk and maximize its returns.

An investment entity would usually have several investors who pool their funds to gain access to investment

The entity has more than one investor management services and investment opportunities that they might not have had access to individually.

The entity has investors that are not related Having unrelated investors would make it less likely that the entity or other members of the group containing
parties of the entity the entity would obtain the benefits other than capital appreciation or investment income.

The entity has ownership interests in the form of | An investment entity is typically, but is not required to be separate legal entity. Ownership usually takes the
equity or similar interests form of equity or similar interests.
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Investment entity route

Measure all investments in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

An essential element of the definition of an investment entity is that it measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a

fair value basis.

Refer to the IFRS 13 route for guidance the measurement and disclosure of fair value.
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Consider whether the exceptions to fair value measurement of subsidiaries are applicable:

+ An investee that provides services that relate only to the investment entity’s own investment activities, for example a management company, should be
consolidated and not accounted for at fair value.

- A parent of an investment entity is required to consolidate all entities that it controls, including those controlled through an investment entity, unless the
parent itself is an investment entity.

If this is the case, the consolidation route for consolidation of these subsidiaries should be followed.
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Consolidation route

8. Different to Before
Assess whether there are additional subsidiaries to those which were identified and consolidated under IAS 27. If there is no change from before in the

subsidiaries which need to be consolidated, then skip steps 9 to 15 and the next step is step 16.
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For additional subsidiaries which have been identified which were previously

not consolidated by the investor, follow a process to determine the following:

» Whether the investee is a business as defined in IFRS 3. IFRS 3 defines a
business as an integrated set of activities and assets that is capable of being
conducted and managed for the purpose of providing a return in the form
of dividends, lower costs or other economic benefits directly to investors or
other owners, members or participants.

« The acquisition date of the subsidiary. This is the date when the investor
obtains control of the investee in accordance with IFRS 10. It may be
impracticable to determine when that date was, in which case the
acquisition date is deemed to be the beginning of the earliest comparative
period when IFRS 3 can be applied.

The following decision tree can be used for the consolidation of newly
identified subsidiaries:
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A valuation expert may be needed to assist with the purchase price allocation required by IFRS 3. Deloitte Corporate Finance can assist with this process:

Business Unit Leader: Corporate Finance
clarbiodam@deloitte.co.za

A question arises as to which version of IFRS 3 should be used to perform the business combination. If the date that control was obtained, as determined in
terms of IFRS 10, is after 1 July 2009 then IFRS 3 (2008) should be applied. If the date that control was obtained is earlier than 1 July 2009 then either IFRS 3
(2008) or IFRS 3 (2004) may be applied.

Acquire additional information in order to comply with the requirements of IAS 1. IFRS 10 is to be applied retrospectively and so obtain sufficient
information to present the three statements of financial position and related notes as required by IFRS 10.
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The process followed in steps 4 and 5 may result in the identification of additional subsidiaries, particularly as a result of de facto control. Communicate

with these additional subsidiaries to inform them that they are now subsidiaries of the investor and that they will need to report to the investor for the
purposes of preparing the investor’s consolidated financial statements.

Consider the following areas for the new subsidiary reporting:

« Providing the subsidiary with instructions and resources to complete a financial reporting package in the manner
required by the investor;

« Communicating reporting deadlines with the subsidiary management;

« Assessing the financial reporting framework used by the subsidiary and determining whether any changes are
needed so that the amounts reported by the subsidiary are in line with IFRS; and

- Assessing the subsidiary’s accounting policies and determining whether any changes need to be made to the
subsidiary accounting policies to bring them in line with the group accounting policies.
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Consolidation and investment entity routes

Update the consolidation system to reflect the new accounting treatment for the subsidiaries.



Perform a high level impact of IFRS 10 on the financial statements.

Refer to (IFRS 10 impact analysis spreadsheet 5) for the consolidation impact
and (IFRS 10 impact analysis spreadsheet 5A) for the investment entities impact.
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13. Impact on Profit Sharing Agreements, Ratios, Covenants and Employee Benefits
Once the high level impact analysis has been performed, assess the potential impact on the following areas:

Area Consideration

Profit Sharing Agreement

Profit sharing agreements may be impacted by the new accounting
treatment.

The following commonly used ratios may be impacted:
- Dividend Yield

« Gross Profit Percentage

Ratios
+ Net Profit Percentage
+ Return on Assets
« Debt/Equity
As a result of the changes to the ratios, debt covenants may be impacted. Consideration
Covenants

will need to be given to potential re-negotiation of debt covenants.

Employee Benefits

Certain aspects of employee remuneration and benefits may be dependent on a certain
item within the financial statements, for example revenue. The implementation of IFRS

10 may change these items and so employee benefit structures may need to be revised.
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14. Communication
Once the high level impact analysis has been performed, assess the potential impact on the following areas:

Communication should be held with the following parties:
1. Board members

2. Lenders

3. Investors

4. Analysts

5. External auditors

6. Other interested parties
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15. Process Journal Entries
Process the consolidation journal entries for the subsidiary.
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Assess the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for subsidiaries. Refer to the IFRS 12 route for the implementation
process to follow in order to obtain the required disclosure for subsidiaries.
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Perform a dry run of the financial statements to ensure that the new subsidiaries are being correctly reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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18.
The team leader and project team need to have a good understanding of the standard which they will be responsible for implementing and the possible

impacts on the organisation. To achieve this, consultation with IFRS technical experts may be required. The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to
assist with this process are as follows:

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Business Unit Leader: Accounting &
Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za
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IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 is the new standard on joint arrangements which replaces IAS 31 Joint Ventures. A joint arrangement is an investment in which two or more
investors are contractually required to agree unanimously as to how the operations and financing of the investee should be run. Where joint control exists,
the investor is required to assess whether the joint arrangement is a joint operation or a joint venture, based on the legal structure of the investee and the
investor's rights to and obligations for the underlying assets and liabilities of the investee. Joint operations are accounted for in the financial statements of
the investor by including the investor’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the investee in the investor’s financial statements while joint

ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
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Read contracts to identify joint arrangements. If the contract requires that the entity, along with another investor(s) must agree on the operating and

financing activities of an investee, then that investee is a joint arrangement.
The terms in which the parties participate in the joint activity are set out in a contract.

Usually the contract arrangement will deal with the following matters:

« The purpose, activity and the duration of the joint arrangement;

« How the members of the joint arrangement’s governing body (the board of directors, or equivalent) are
appointed;

« The decision making process: the matters that require decisions from the parties, the voting rights of the parties
and the required level of support for those matters;

- The required capital or contributions to be provided by the parties; and

« How the assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses or profit or loss of the joint arrangement are to be shared between
the parties.
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Assign a team leader to head an implementation team tasked with implementing the standard. Allocate the team leader adequate resources in terms of
staff, budget and time in order to lead an effective implementation of the new standard. As the project progresses, revise the resource allocation to take
into account the results of the implementation process.
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First assess whether the joint arrangement is structured through a separate
vehicle. If the joint arrangement is not structured through a separate
vehicle then the joint arrangement is classified as a joint operation.

Once all joint arrangements have been identified in step 2, classify the joint
arrangements as either joint operations or joint ventures.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement, have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities relating to the joint arrangement.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement, have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

If the joint arrangement is structured through a separate vehicle then assess
the investor’s rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities within
that vehicle. If there is no separation between the vehicle and the investor,
then the joint arrangement is classified as a joint operation.

The following decision tree can be used to classify joint arrangements as either Similarly, if there is a contractual arrangement which modifies or reverses
joint operations or joint ventures: the rights and obligations which the investor has with respect to the vehicle
such that any legal separation between the vehicle and the investor is
: @ removed, the joint arrangement is classified as a joint operation.
Is the entity structured through a separate legal
ity? . .
entity In determining whether a contractual arrangement between the parties
® i modifies the rights and obligations, assess whether substantially all of
b '% the output is taken up by the joint venturers. If this is the case then the
G e : arrangement may be classified as a joint operation. The interpretation of
Are the assets and liabilities in the vehicle regarded ® J @ gement may & Joirt op . P . .
: o IFRS 11 in this area is complex and entities may consider engaging with us
legally as those of the vehicle? o
.ﬁ to understand the reporting impact of these arrangements (step 15).
® 3
- Consider other facts and circumstances that may impact on the
Does a contractual agreement between the parties ® classification. If there are none, then the joint operation should be classified
reverse or modify the rights and obligations arising > as a joint venture.
via the legal form of the separate vehicle ? (Refer to the joint arrangements classification template which
® will assist in classifying the joint arrangements)
¥
Joint venture
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5. How are Joint Arrangements Accounted for?
A joint venture is equity accounted in the same way as associates. Some joint ventures may have been accounted for in this way under IAS 31, depending

on the accounting policy choice of the entity.

A joint operation is accounted for by consolidating the joint venturer’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint operation in a similar
way to proportionate consolidation.

< Contents Welcome Instructions Roadmap >



Once joint arrangements have been classified as either joint operations or joint ventures in the previous step, assess whether the classification will result in a
different accounting treatment compared to how the joint venture was accounted for under IAS 31.

For example, a joint venture in a separate company which was equity accounted under IAS 31 should result in classification as a joint venture under IFRS 11
which is equity accounted. If there is no change in the method used to account for the joint arrangement, then skip steps 7 to 12 and the next step is step 13.
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Consider re-negotiating contracts if a different joint arrangement accounting is wanted to the results of step 4 or 5.
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8. Does the Consolidation System Need to be Updated?
If the classification of the joint arrangements under step 4 results in a different accounting treatment to what was previously applied, then assess whether
more information is required in order to apply the new accounting treatment.

This will be particularly relevant for joint arrangements which were previously equity accounted, but for which the investor will now account for its share of
the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint operation.

Therefore the impact of the above change in classification is highlighted below:

Financial Statement Impact

Consolidation System Impact

Reporting Pack Impact

As IFRS 11 is required to be applied retrospective-
ly, IAS 1 requires the presentation of three state-
ments of financial position and related notes.
Obtain the information in order to present this
additional comparative information

Assess the systems impact. The biggest impact is
expected to be on the consolidation system. Up-
date the consolidation system to reflect the new
accounting treatment for the joint arrangement.
However, most consolidation systems will already
have a built in capability for equity accounting or
accounting for the investor’s share of the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the investee.
Therefore, simply update the classification within
the system.

Update the reporting pack format of the joint
arrangements to reflect the new information
required by IFRS 11, as well as, the additional in-
formation required by IFRS 12. Refer to the IFRS
12 route for the disclosure requirements.

(Refer to the consolidation reporting pack)
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Perform a high level impact analysis on the financial statements, once the information has been obtained to account for the joint operations. Assess how
the statement of financial performance and statement of financial position will differ under the requirements of IFRS 11 compared to under IAS 31. The
attached impact analysis tool can be used to perform this analysis.

(Refer IFRS 11 — impact analysis spreadsheet)
It is important to note that IFRS 11 will not only impact the consolidated financial statements but also the separate financial statements should the joint

arrangement be classified as a joint operation, as the investor’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses are accounted for in the investor’s
individual financial statements.
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10. Consider Impact on Profit Sharing Agreements, Ratios, Covenants and

Employee Benefits

Once the high level impact analysis has been performed, assess the potential impact on the following areas:

Area Consideration

Profit Sharing Agreement

Profit sharing agreements may be impacted by
the new accounting treatment.

Ratios

The following commonly used ratios may be
impacted:

- Dividend Yield

« Gross Profit Percentage

+ Net Profit Percentage

+ Return on Assets

« Debt/Equity

Covenants

As a result of the changes to the ratios, debt
covenants may be impacted. Consideration will
need to be given to potential re-negotiation of
debt covenants.

Employee Benefits

Certain aspects of employee remuneration and
benefits may be dependent on a certain item
within the financial statements, for example
revenue or profit. The implementation of IFRS 11
may change these items and so employee benefit
structures may need to be revised.
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11. Communication

Consider communication with the following parties:
1. Board members

2. Lenders

3. Investors

4. Analysts

5. External auditors

6. Other interested parties
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Process the journal entries required to equity account or account of the investor’s share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
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Assess the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for joint arrangements. Refer to the IFRS 12 route for the implementation process to follow in order to obtain
the required disclosure for joint arrangements.
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Perform a dry run of the financial statements to check that the joint arrangements are being correctly reflected in the financial statements.
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15. Consultation with IFRS Technical Experts

The team leader and project team need to have a good understanding of the standard which they will be responsible for implementing and the possible
impacts on the organisation. To achieve this, consultation with IFRS technical experts may be required. The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to
assist with this process are as follows:

Business Unit Leader: Accounting &
Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za
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IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

1. What is IFRS 12?
IFRS 12 is the new standard which contains the disclosure requirements for interests that an entity holds in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities.
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2. Does the entity have interests in other entities?
Assess whether the entity has investments in the following:

Subsidiary

Joint Arrangement

Associate

Unconsolidated Structured
Entity

<

An entity that is controlled by
another entity (refer to the IFRS 10
route).

An arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control
(refer to the IFRS 11 route).

An entity over which the investor
has significant influence.

A structured entity is an entity
that has been designed so that
voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding
who controls the entity, such as
when any voting rights relate

to administrative tasks only

and the relevant activities are
directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

If an entity does not meet the
requirements in the IFRS 10 route
for consolidation then the entity
would be considered to be an
unconsolidated structured entity.

Contents

IFRS 12 applies to an entity’s separate financial statements where the entity
has investments in unconsolidated structured entities and does not present
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 12 does not apply to:

+ Post-employment benefit plans which IAS 19 applies to;

« Interests in a joint arrangement which do not give the entity joint control
unless the interest results in significant influence or is an interest in a
structured entity; and

« Interests accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9 (IAS 39) unless the interest
is one in a joint arrangement or associate which is accounted for at fair value
or is an interest in a structured entity.

Structured entities often have some or all of the following characteristics:

« Restricted activities;

« A narrow and well-defined objective, for example to carry out research and
development, provide financing or for investment purposes;

« Insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities
without subordinated financial support; and

« Financing in the form of multiple contractually linked instruments to investors
that create concentrations of credit or other risks.

Examples of structured entities include securitisation vehicles, asset-backed

financings and some investment funds.

If the entity does not have an interest in any of the above structures the rest of
the route need not be followed.
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Assign a team leader within the organisation to head an implementation team tasked with implementing the standard. Allocate the team leader adequate
resources in terms of staff, budget and time in order to lead an effective implementation of the new standard. As the project progresses, revise the resource
allocation to take into account the results of the implementation process.
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Collect the detailed information for the disclosures to be made in the financial
statements. As IFRS 12 is required to be adopted retrospectively, obtain
sufficient information for the requirement to present three comparative
statements of financial position and related notes.

IFRS 12 requires disclosure of the following information:

- Significant judgements and assumptions in assessing whether an
investment in an entity is a subsidiary, associate, joint arrangement or
unconsolidated structured entity.

« Subsidiaries:

- Sufficient information to understand the composition of the group.
- Non-controlling interest share in the group'’s activities and cash flows.
- Restrictions on the ability of the subsidiary to transfer cash or assets to
other entities within the group.
- Nature of risks associated with the entities.
- Consequences of changes in ownership that do not result in a loss
of control and changes in ownership interest that do result in a loss of
ownership control.
- For each subsidiary with a material non-controlling interest:
- Name of the subsidiary.
- Principal place of business and country of incorporation (if different).
- Proportion of voting rights held by non-controlling interests.
- Profit or loss allocated to non-controlling interests during the period.

- Accumulated non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period.

- Summarised financial information of the subsidiary.

- Financial support provided to subsidiaries.

The disclosure for subsidiaries is also required for subsidiaries of investment

entities.

« Joint arrangements and associates:

- The nature, extent, risks and financial effects of interests in joint ventures
and associates.

- Any changes in the nature, extent, risks and financial effects of interests
in joint ventures and associates.

<

Contents

- For each material joint venture or associate:

- Name of the associate or joint venture.

- Nature of the reporting entity’s relationship with the associate or joint
venture.

- Principal place of business and country of incorporation (if different).

- Proportion of ownership interest.

- Whether the interest in the joint venture or associate is accounted for at fair
value or using the equity method (if it is accounted for using the equity
method and there is a quoted market price, the fair value also needs to be
disclosed).

- Summarised financial information.

- Restrictions on the associate or joint venture to transfer funds to the
reporting entity.

- Details of where the reporting date of the associate or joint venture is
different to that of the reporting entity.

- Commitments that the reporting entity has in relation to the associate or
joint venture.

- The reporting entity’s share of the associate or joint venture’s contingent
liabilities.

+ Unconsolidated structured entities:

- Nature, extent, risks and financial effects of interests in unconsolidated
structured entities.

- Carrying amount of assets and liabilities relating to interests in
unconsolidated structured entities and the line items where these are
included.

- Reporting entity’s maximum exposure to loss in relation to the
unconsolidated structured entity.

- Financial support provided.

Step 6 provides model disclosure which can be used for a financial reporting
package and for financial statements.
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Present information separately for interests in subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.

IFRS 12 does allow for the aggregation of disclosure. However, disclosure should be aggregated or disaggregated in such a way so as to ensure that useful
information is not obscured.

Provide disclosure in the financial statements as to how interests in similar entities have been aggregated.
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Please refer to the attached model disclosure for IFRS 12, for both a financial reporting package and financial statements.
The attached model disclosure is based on normal consolidation procedures, the disclosure for investment entities may differ from the attached

model disclosure.
(Refer consolidation reporting pack and model financial statements)
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Perform a dry run of the financial statements to ensure that interests in other entities are correctly reflected and appropriately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.
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8. Consultation with IFRS Technical Experts
The team leader and project team need to have a good understanding of the standard which they will be responsible for implementing and the possible
impacts on the organisation. To achieve this, consultation with IFRS technical experts may be required. The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to

assist with this process are as follows:

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Business Unit Leader: Accounting &
Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za
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IFRS 13 Fair Value

IFRS 13 provides guidance on how to measure the fair value of financial assets, financial liabilities, equity instruments and non-financial assets. IFRS 13 does
not specify when fair value should be used.

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Fair value is therefore a market based measure of the financial asset, financial liability or non-financial asset. Fair value

is also an exit measure (ie the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability) rather than an entry based measure (ie the price to buy an asset or incur a liability).

IFRS 13 is effective for all annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013 and the requirements of the standard are to be prospectively applied.
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2. Does the entity have assets or liabilities measured at fair value?
Assess assets and liabilities to determine if they fall within the scope of IFRS 13. Only those assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value which are

affected by the measurement and disclosure requirements of the standard. The following table can be used to assess the scope of IFRS 13:

d d d

Share-based payment

Business combination

Fair value less costs to sell
(IFRS 5, IAS 36)

z|<|z

Net realisable value and
value-in-use

=

Leases

Revaluation model in PPE

Financial instruments

(many in IFRS 7 already)

Investment property

Plan assets - IAS 19

Agriculture

<|<|<|<|=<|z

<lz|<|<|<|=z

<
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Assign a team leader to head an implementation team tasked with implementing the standard. Allocate the team leader adequate resources in terms of
staff, budget and time in order to lead an effective implementation of the new standard. As the project progresses, revise the resource allocation to take
into account the results of the implementation process..
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Develop a list of all assets, liabilities and equity which should be measured at fair value. This list will help ensure that all required fair value measurements are
done and will also assist with the disclosure requirements of IFRS 13. A template which can be used to develop this list is attached.
(Refer to fair value assets and liabilities spreadsheet)

Additionally these listed assets or liabilities may be stand-alone (e.g investment property), a group of assets or a group of liabilities, or a group of assets and
liabilities (e.g a cash generating unit). Therefore the level at which fair value should be measured would depend on the unit of account.

The unit of account would be determined in accordance with the IFRS that requires or permits the fair value measurement, except as provided in IFRS 13.
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Determine the market in which fair value is to be measured.

IFRS 13 requires that that the principal market is used to determine the value of the asset or liability. The principle market is the market with the greatest
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability.

Should the principal market not be determinable, the most advantageous market is used. This is the market which maximises the amount that would be
received to sell the asset or minimise the amount that would be paid to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction and transportation costs.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities

The valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities can be complex. Attached is a list of some of the more commonly found financial instruments and
how to value them.

(Refer list of financial instruments)

The Deloitte Capital Markets team can provide guidance and assistance on valuing financial instruments:

Partner: Capital Markets
cvandermerwe@deloitte.co.za

Director: Capital Markets
pburra@deloitte.co.za
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Assess whether financial instruments should be measured on an individual or portfolio basis.
Financial instruments are generally measured on an individual basis. However, a limited exception is provided if fair value can be determined on a portfolio
basis where an entity holds a group of financial assets and financial liabilities and is exposed to market risks or credit risk of each of the counterparties.

An entity would then measure fair value of the group of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the price that would be received to sell a net
long position (ie an asset) for a particular risk exposure or transfer a net short position (ie a liability) for a particular risk exposure.

However, this is an exception for measurement only and does not apply to presentation in the financial statements. Once the net position has been
measured, a reasonable basis should be used to allocate this measurement between the individual financial assets and financial liabilities.
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If a financial asset or financial liability has a bid price and an offer price, use the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of fair value in

the circumstances to measure fair value.

IFRS 13 allows (but does not require) assets to be measured at bid prices and liabilities to be measured at offer prices. Mid-market pricing or other pricing
conventions may be used as a practical expedient for fair value measurement within a bid-offer spread.
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Assess the liquidity of each financial instrument.

The fair value of a financial asset or financial liability might be affected when there has been a significant decrease in the volume or level of activity for that
asset or liability in relation to normal market activity. This could result in quoted prices from those markets not being representative of fair value.

Consider the following factors in assessing whether the market for the asset or liability has potentially become an illiquid market:
« Few recent transactions;

« Prices are not developed using current information;

« Prices vary substantially;

« Price indices are uncorrelated with recent indications of fair value for that asset or liability;

« Asignificant increase in implied liquidity risk premiumes, yields or performance indicators for
observed transactions or quoted prices;

- A wide bid-offer spread or a significant increase in the bid-offer spread;

« Assignificant decline in the activity of, or the absence of, a market for new issues of the asset or
liability or similar assets or liabilities; and
- Little information is publicly available.

If the quoted prices in an illiquid market are not representative of fair value, then an adjustment to the quoted prices will be necessary in order to determine
the fair value of the asset or liability.
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Determine if there is an active market in which the entity’s financial liabilities or equity trade as an asset.

Determining fair value for financial liabilities and equity instruments is more difficult than determining the fair value of financial assets as there are limited
markets where financial liabilities and equity instruments trade as liabilities and equity. Rather the holders of such instruments trade them as financial assets
in asset markets.

If a financial liability or equity instrument issued by the entity is held by another entity as an asset and there is a market in which that asset trades with
quoted prices available, then determine the fair value of the financial liability from the perspective of the market participant that holds the asset.

If, however, there is no such market available, then use a valuation technique to determine the fair value of the financial liability or equity instrument. The
valuation technique should take into account either of the following:
« The future cash outflows that a market participant would expect to incur in fulfilling the
obligation, including any compensation that the market participant would require for taking on
the liability; or
« The amount that a market participant would receive to issue an identical financial liability or
equity instrument.
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Include an entity’s own credit risk in determining the fair value of a liability. Record the change in the fair value of a financial liability that arises due to
change in an entity’s own credit risk, separately in other comprehensive income. Include counterparty credit risk in determining the fair value of a financial
asset.

If an entity holds a group of financial assets and financial liabilities it is exposed to the credit risk of each of the counterparties. If the entity manages that
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of its net exposure to credit risk, the entity is permitted to apply an exception to the general
requirements of IFRS 13 for measuring fair value.

In determining the counterparty credit risk to be included an entity is permitted to use this exception only if the entity does all of the following:
+ Manages the group of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the entity’s net
exposure to a particular market risk (or risks) or to the credit risk of a particular counterparty in
accordance with the entity’s documented risk management or investment strategy;
« Provides information on that basis about the group of financial assets and financial liabilities to
the entity’s key management personnel, as defined in I1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures; and
- Is required or has elected to measure those financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
in the statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period.

When applying the fair value measurement exception described above for financial instruments with the same counterparty, include the effect of the
entity’s net exposure to the credit risk of that counterparty in the fair value measurement when market participants would take into account any existing
arrangements that mitigate credit risk exposure in the event of default.

The fair value measurement should reflect market participant expectations about the likelihood that such an arrangement would be legally enforceable in
the event of default.
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If an entity receives a loan which has a below market rate of interest, this will impact on the fair value of the loan on initial recognition. In such cases,
determine the initial amount of the loan by discounting the future cash flows at the market related rate of interest to get the fair value of the loan.
Recognise any difference between this amount and the cash proceeds received in profit or loss as a day one gain or loss, unless another standard requires a

specific treatment for the loan.
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IFRS 13 requires the disclosure of financial instruments at fair value in terms of the fair value hierarchy. The disclosures are similar to those already required
by IFRS 7 and may not have a significant impact on the financial statements.
(Refer to attached model disclosure and template reporting pack for guidance on the disclosure required by IFRS 13).
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Perform a dry run of the financial statements to ensure that the IFRS 13 disclosure requirements have been met.
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15.
The team leader and project team need to have a good understanding of the standard which they will be responsible for implementing and the possible

impacts on the organisation. To achieve this, consultation with IFRS technical experts may be required. The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to

assist with this process are as follows:

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Business Unit Leader: Accounting &
Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za
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Non-Financial assets

Determine the highest and best use of all non-financial assets.
The fair value of non-financial assets is determined by reference to the asset’s highest and best use. This is the use of the asset which would maximise the
value of the asset and may be different from its current use. The following considerations are used in determining the highest and best use of an asset:

« The use of the asset must be physically possible;
- It must be legally permissible; and
« It must be financially feasible.

It can be assumed that the asset is being used to generate the maximum possible value for the entity, if there is no evidence that the asset is not being used
for its highest and best use.
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The following valuation techniques may be used to determine fair value:

Market Approach Prices and other relevant information are used to value the asset. The prices
are obtained from market transactions involving identical or comparable assets
or group of assets and liabilities.

Income Approach Future amounts (for example cash flows and income or expenses) are
converted to a single current discounted amount.
Cost Approach Reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the service

capacity of an asset (current replacement cost).

Each of the valuation techniques will require the use of inputs in order to determine the fair value. IFRS 13 requires that the inputs are classified into the
following categories:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs.

Establish the category of the inputs used in determining the fair value during the calculation of the fair value. Make any external valuation expert used,
aware of the need to categorise the inputs. This is due to the specific disclosure requirements for non-financial assets which are most affected by level 1,
level 2 and level 3 inputs. Refer to step 8 for the IFRS 13 model disclosure.
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IFRS 13 has the following disclosure requirements:

« Recurring disclosure for financial assets, financial liabilities or non-financial assets which are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period

« Non-recurring disclosure for financial assets, financial liabilities or non-financial assets which are only measured at
fair value once.

In addition, IFRS 13 has specific disclosure requirements for recurring fair value measurements that are significantly impacted by level 3 inputs
(refer to step 7 above).

(Refer to attached model disclosure and template reporting pack for guidance on the disclosure required by IFRS 13)
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Perform a dry run of the financial statements to ensure that the IFRS 13 disclosure requirements have been met.
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10.
The team leader and project team need to have a good understanding of the standard which they will be responsible for implementing and the possible

impacts on the organisation. To achieve this, consultation with IFRS technical experts may be required. The Deloitte IFRS technical partners who are able to

assist with this process are as follows:

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
trderwin@deloitte.co.za

Partner: Accounting & Auditing
gberry@deloitte.co.za

Business Unit Leader: Accounting &
Auditing
nranchod@deloitte.co.za
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Impact Analysis



						Company name



				Presentation currency:

				IAS 19 (R) Employee Benefits

				The revisions to IAS 19 will be felt by those entities that have defined benefit obligations, and particularly those entities that have an accounting policy of applying the corridor method to actuarial gains/losses. Where an entity is currently recognising all actuarial gains/losses in OCI or P/L in the period in which they arise, the impact felt will only be with respect to presentation changes. 





				Document the surplus/deficit at the beginning of the year (after adjustment for the asset ceiling):				Document the net surplus/defecit (i.e. present value of the liability net of the fair value of plan assets)

				Plan 1		1,200

				Plan 2

				Plan 3

				Plan 4



				Document the surplus/deficit at the end of the year (after adjustment for the asset ceiling):

				Plan 1		1,500

				Plan 2

				Plan 3

				Plan 4



				Document the amount of plan assets at the beginning of the year:

				Plan 1		250

				Plan 2

				Plan 3

				Plan 4



				What is the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation?

				Plan 1		8%

				Plan 2

				Plan 3

				Plan 4



				What is the expected return on plan assets?

				Plan 1		10%

				Plan 2

				Plan 3

				Plan 4



				What is the cumulative amount of unrecognised actuarial (gains)/losses at the beginning of the year for all plans disclosed in the financial statements?



				Amount of actuarial gains and losses arising in the current year		100



				What is the cumulative amount of unrecognised past service costs at the beginning of the year for all plans disclosed in the financial statements?



				Amount of past service costs arising in the current year		- 0



				What is the total amount recognised in profit or loss for all defined benefit plans:

				Current service costs		50

				Past service costs		- 0

				Interest cost		116

				Expected return on plan assets		25

				Actuarial (gains)/losses		10

				Limitation of surplus ito para 58A				The entity should reconsider the impact of the asset ceiling under the revised recognition principles

				Total included in net profit		201



				Revised presentation under IAS 19 (2011):

				Statement of Comprehensive Income

				Operating expenses		50

				Net finance cost / (income)		96

				Amount included in net profit		146



				Remeasurements reflected in OCI		145



				Statement of Financial Position		1,500
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nor should it be used as a basis for any decision or action that may affect your finances or your business. Before
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Annual Financial Statement Model Disclosure





IAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in June 2011)



In June 2011, the IASB issued a revised version of IAS 19 Employee Benefits. IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 



Significant changes (as compared to the previous version of IAS 19) may include:  



(a) Full recognition of deficit (surplus) in the statement of financial position



Under the previous version of IAS 19, for defined benefit plans some of the effect of actuarial gains and losses can be excluded from the net defined benefit liability (asset) by using the ‘corridor approach’, and the effect of unvested past service costs is recognised over the average vesting period. IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) requires all such items to be recognised immediately. Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans will be recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and actuarial gains and losses on other long-term employee benefit plans and past service costs will be recognised in profit or loss. Therefore, the net defined benefit asset (liability) recognised on the statement of financial position will equal the actual surplus (deficit) in an entity’s defined benefit plan.



(b) Introduction of net interest in the net defined benefit liability (asset)



Under previous version of IAS 19, the financing cost recognised in profit or loss consisted of the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation (DBO) and the expected return on plan assets. Under IAS 19 (as revised in 2011), the concept of net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is introduced. The net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is defined as the change of the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the reporting period that arises from passage of time and is determined by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset) by the discount rate (market yields on high quality corporate bonds).  Effectively, this means that the defined benefit obligation and the plan assets are multiplied by the same interest rate.



The expected return on plan assets under the previous version of IAS 19 depends on the actual investment portfolio and is typically not equal to the discount rate applied for the determination of scheme liabilities. The equivalent of the expected return on plan assets under IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) is the net interest income, which is part of the net interest on the net defined benefit (liability), which is determined by the plan assets multiplied by the discount rate. When the discount rate is lower than the expected return on the actual investment portfolio (which is generally the case), application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) will increase the defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss. The difference between the (expected) net interest income and the actual return is recognised in OCI.



(c) Change in the presentation of the defined benefit cost



Under IAS 19 (as revised in 2011), the defined benefit cost comprises service cost, net interest and remeasurements. Service cost (current and past service cost and gains and losses on curtailments and settlements) and net interest are recognised in profit or loss, while remeasurements (actuarial gains and losses, any changes in the effect of the asset ceiling and the difference between the (expected) net interest income and the actual return) are recognised in OCI for defined benefit plans and in profit or loss for other long-term employee benefits.



(d) Introduction of more extensive disclosure requirements in the financial statements



IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces more extensive disclosure requirements relating to the characteristics, risks and amounts in the financial statements regarding defined benefit plans, as well as the effect of defined benefit plans on the amount, timing and uncertainty of the entity’s future cash flows.



This guide gives you examples of the application of the requirements of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011).







Key assumptions used in the preparation of this guide are as follows: 



· International GAAP Holdings Limited is assumed to have early applied IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) in the current year. 1 January 2013 is considered to be the date of initial application of this standard. These changes have resulted in changes in amounts reported in the financial statements (see note 2 in more detail). 



· IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) has been applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 and the relevant transitional provisions of IAS 19.172.  In this guide, for illustrative purposes, amounts for the comparative period 2012 are restated. Therefore, a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period in accordance with IAS 1.10(f) is included.  



· This guide does not include a full set of financial statements; only the statement of financial position, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and certain notes affected by IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) are included. Regarding the statement of comprehensive income, two-statement presentation method is used and expenses are aggregated according to their nature. In addition, regarding the statement of cash flows, the direct method is used to report cash flows from operating activities. 



· For simplicity purposes, this guide assumes that the taxing authorities in the jurisdictions where the Group operates adopts all the amendments to IAS 19 (as revised 2011) retrospectively such that there are no deferred tax income consequences resulting from the change in accounting policy with respect to the application of IAS 19 (as revised 2011). This may not always be the case. Taxing authorities may choose not to adopt some or all of the amendments to IAS 19 prospectively only. In these cases, there would likely be deferred income tax consequences that should be reflected in the financial statements and notes thereto. The financial statements and guide do reflect the current tax effect of the application of IAS 19 (as revised 2011) for the current and prior year (restated) effect on profit or loss and other comprehensive income. For completeness, the entire income tax footnote is included in the guide.



For details of the disclosure and presentation requirements of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011), readers should refer to Deloitte's 2013 IFRS Compliance, Presentation and Disclosure Checklist. This checklist can be downloaded from Deloitte's web site www.iasplus.com. 



Note that in this guide, we have included line items for which a nil amount is shown, so as to illustrate items that, although not applicable to International GAAP Holdings Limited, are commonly encountered in practice. This does not mean that we have illustrated all possible disclosures. Nor should it be taken to mean that, in practice, entities are required to display line items for such ‘nil' amounts.
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3

		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated income statement 
for the year ended 31 December 2013	



		

		

		Notes

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

(restated)



		

		Continuing operations

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		

		

		140,918

		

		151,840



		

		Investment income

		

		

		3,608

		

		2,351



		

		Other gains and losses

		

		

		647

		

		1,005



		

		Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

		

		

		7,134

		

		2,118



		

		Raw materials and consumables used

		

		

		(84,659)

		

		(85,413)



		

		Depreciation and amortisation expenses

		

		

		(11,193)

		

		(13,878)



		

		Employee benefits expense

		13

		

		(10,553)

		

		(11,951)



		

		Finance costs

		

		

		(4,418)

		

		(6,023)



		

		Consulting expense

		

		

		(3,120)

		

		(1,926)



		

		Other expenses

		

		

		(10,268)

		

		(8,005)



		

		Share of profits of associates 

		

		

		1,186

		

		1,589



		

		Gain recognised on disposal of interest in former associate

		

		

		581

		

		-



		

		Other [describe] 

		

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit before tax 

		

		

		29,863

		

		31,707



		

		Income tax expense

		10

		

		(11,432)

		

		(11,672)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year from continuing operations

		

		

		18,431

		

		20,035



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Discontinued operations

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year from discontinued operations

		

		

		8,310

		

		9,995



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

		

		

		26,741

		

		30,030



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Attributable to: 

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Owners of the Company

		

		

		22,741

		

		27,267



		

			Non-controlling interests

		

		

		4,000

		

		2,763



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		26,741

		

		30,030



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Earnings per share

		14

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		From continuing and discontinued operations

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Basic (cents per share)

		

		

			130.5

		

			135.5



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Diluted (cents per share)

		

		

			114.0

		

			129.1



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		From continuing operations

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Basic (cents per share)

		

		

			82.8

		

			85.8



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Diluted (cents per share)

		

		

			72.5

		

			81.8



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	The format outlined above aggregates expenses according to their nature.	 

All amounts in this example have been included for illustrative purposes only.   
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 December 2013	



		

		

		 Year ended 31/12/13

		

		 Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		(restated)





		

		Profit for the year

		26,741

		

		30,030



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

		

		

		



		

		Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

		

		

		



		

			Exchange differences arising during the year

		75

		

		121



		

			Loss on hedging instruments designated in hedges of the net assets of foreign operations

		(12)

		

		-



		

			Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign operations disposed of in the year

		(166)

		

		-



		

			Reclassification adjustments relating to hedges of the net assets of foreign operations disposed of in the year

		46 

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		(57)

		

		121



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Available-for-sale financial assets

		

		

		



		

			Net gain on available-for-sale financial assets during the year

		94

		

		81



		

			Reclassification adjustments relating to available-for-sale financial assets disposed of in the year

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		94

		

		81



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash flow hedges

		

		

		



		

			Gains arising during the year

		436

		

		316



		

			Reclassification adjustments for amounts recognised in profit or loss

		(123)

		

		(86)



		

			Adjustments for amounts transferred to the initial carrying amounts of hedged items

		(257)

		

		(201)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		56

		

		29



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

		(27)

		

		(69)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

		

		

		



		

		Gain on revaluation of properties 

		-

		

		1,643



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation

		806

		

		191



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

		(242)

		

		(550)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

		27,371

		

		31,476



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to: 

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

			Owners of the Company

		23,371

		

		28,713



		

			Non-controlling interests

		4,000

		

		2,763



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		27,371

		

		31,476



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		











		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of financial position 
at 31 December 2013



		

		

		Notes

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12

		

		01/01/11



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		Assets

		

		

		

		

		(restated)

		

		(restated)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Property, plant and equipment

		

		

		109,783

		

		135,721

		

		161,058



		

		Investment property

		

		

		1,968

		

		1,941

		

		170



		

		Goodwill

		

		

		20,285

		

		24,060

		

		23,920



		

		Other intangible assets

		

		

		9,739

		

		11,325

		

		12,523



		

		Investments in associates

		

		

		7,402

		

		7,270

		

		5,706



		

		Deferred tax assets 

		

		

		2,083

		

		1,964

		

		1,843



		

		Finance lease receivables

		

		

		830

		

		717

		

		739



		

		Other financial assets

		

		

		10,771

		

		9,655

		

		7,850



		

		Other assets 

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total non-current assets

		

		

		162,861

		

		192,653

		

		213,809



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Inventories

		

		

		31,213

		

		28,982

		

		29,688



		

		Trade and other receivables

		

		

		19,249

		

		14,658

		

		13,550



		

		Finance lease receivables

		

		

		198

		

		188

		

		182



		

		Amounts due from customers under construction contracts

		

		

		240

		

		230

		

		697



		

		Other financial assets

		

		

		8,757

		

		6,949

		

		5,528



		

		Current tax assets

		

		

		125

		

		60

		

		81



		

		Other assets  

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Cash and bank balances

		

		

		23,446

		

		19,778

		

		9,082



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		83,228

		

		70,845

		

		58,808



		

		Assets classified as held for sale

		

		

		22,336

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total current assets

		

		

		105,564

		

		70,845

		

		58,808



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total assets

		

		

		268,425

		

		263,498

		

		272,617



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	IAS 1.10(f) requires that an entity should present a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements. 

           In this guide, the application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) has resulted in retrospective restatement of items in the financial statements (see note 2). Therefore, this guide includes the additional statement of financial position.

In some jurisdictions, where it is required to distinguish between distributable and non-distributable reserves, it could be appropriate to create a separate reserve for accumulating the remeasurement of net defined benefit asset (liability) recognised through other comprehensive income.









		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of financial position 
at 31 December 2013 – continued



		


		

		Notes

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12

		

		01/01/11



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		  (restated)

		

		(restated)



		

		Equity and liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Capital and reserves

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Issued capital

		

		

		32,439

		

		48,672

		

		48,672



		

		Reserves

		29

		

		5,477

		

		4,052

		

		2,268



		

		Retained earnings

		30

		

		110,200

		

		94,612

		

		73,824



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		148,116

		

		147,336

		

		124,764



		

		Amounts recognised directly in equity relating to assets classified as held for sale

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Equity attributable to owners of the Company

		

		

		148,116

		

		147,336

		

		124,764



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests

		

		

		24,316

		

		20,005

		

		17,242



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total equity

		

		

		172,432

		

		167,341

		

		142,006



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Borrowings 

		

		

		17,868

		

		29,807

		

		25,785



		

		Other financial liabilities

		

		

		15,001

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Retirement benefit obligation

		39

		

		1,954

		

		1,482

		

		2,194



		

		Deferred tax liabilities

		10

		

		6,729

		

		5,657

		

		4,436



		

		Provisions

		

		

		2,294

		

		2,231

		

		4,102



		

		Deferred revenue

		

		

		59

		

		165

		

		41



		

		Other liabilities

		

		

		180

		

		270

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total non-current liabilities

		

		

		44,085

		

		39,612

		

		36,558



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Trade and other payables

		

		

		16,373

		

		21,220

		

		52,750



		

		Amounts due to customers under construction contracts 

		

		

		36

		

		15

		

		245



		

		Borrowings 

		

		

		22,446

		

		25,600

		

		33,618



		

		Other financial liabilities

		

		

		116

		

		18

		

		-



		

		Current tax liabilities

		10

		

		5,542

		

		6,030

		

		5,142



		

		Provisions

		

		

		3,356

		

		3,195

		

		2,235



		

		Deferred revenue

		

		

		265

		

		372

		

		63



		

		Other liabilities

		

		

		90

		

		95

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		48,224

		

		56,545

		

		94,053



		

		Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

		

		

		3,684

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total current liabilities

		

		

		51,908

		

		56,545

		

		94,053



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total liabilities

		

		

		95,993

		

		96,157

		

		130,611



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total equity and liabilities

		

		

		268,425

		

		263,498

		

		272,617



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		













		

		

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		

		Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 31 December 2013



		

		Share capital

		

		Share premium

		

		General reserve

		

		Properties revaluation reserve

		

		Investments revaluation reserve

		

		Equity-settled employee benefits reserve

		

		Cash flow hedging reserve

		

		Foreign currency translation reserve

		

		Option premium on convertible notes

		

		Defined benefit retirement reserve

		

		Retained earnings

		

		Attributable to owners of the parent

		

		Non-controlling interests

		

		Total



		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Balance at 1 January 2012

		23,005

		

		25,667

		

		807

		

		51

		

		470

		

		-

		

		258

		

		140

		

		-

		

		-

		

		73,824

		

		124,222

		

		17,242

		

		141,464



		Adjustments (note 2)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		542

		

		-

		

		542

		

		-

		

		542



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		As restated

		23,005

		

		25,667

		

		807

		

		51

		

		470

		

		-

		

		258

		

		140

		

		-

		

		542

		

		73,824

		

		124,764

		

		17,242

		

		142,006



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Profit for the year (restated)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		27,267

		

		27,267

		

		2,763

		

		30,030



		Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (restated)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,150

		

		57

		

		-

		

		20

		

		85

		

		-

		

		

134

		

		-

		

		1,446

		

		-

		

		1,446



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Total comprehensive income for the year (restated)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,150

		

		57

		

		-

		

		20

		

		85

		

		-

		

		

134

		

		27,267

		

		28,713

		

		2,763

		

		31,476



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Recognition of share-based payments

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		338

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		338

		

		-

		

		338



		Payment of dividends

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(6,479)

		

		(6,479)

		

		-

		

		(6,479)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Balance at 31 December 2012 (restated)

		23,005

		

		25,667

		

		807

		

		1,201

		

		527

		

		338

		

		278

		

		225

		

		-

		

		

676

		

		94,612

		

		147,336

		

		20,005

		

		167,341



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Profit for the year

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		22,741

		

		22,741

		

		4,000

		

		26,741



		Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		66

		

		-

		

		39

		

		(39)

		

		-

		

		

564

		

		-

		

		630

		

		-

		

		630



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Total comprehensive income for the year

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		66

		

		-

		

		39

		

		(39)

		

		-

		

		

564

		

		22,741

		

		23,371

		

		4,000

		

		27,371



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Payment of dividends

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(6,635)

		

		(6,635)

		

		-

		

		(6,635)



		Additional non-controlling interests arising on the acquisition of Subsix Limited (note 44)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		



-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		127

		

		127



		Additional non-controlling interests relating to outstanding share-based payment transactions of Subsix Limited (note 44) 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		





-

		

		-

		

		

		

		5

		

		5



		Disposal of partial interest in Subone Limited (note 19)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		

-

		

		34

		

		34

		

		179

		

		213



		Recognition of share-based payments

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		206

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		206

		

		-

		

		206



		Issue of ordinary shares under employee share option plan

		314

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		

-

		

		-

		

		314

		

		-

		

		314



		Issue of ordinary shares for consulting services performed

		3

		

		5

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		

-

		

		-

		

		8

		

		-

		

		8



		Issue of convertible non-participating preference shares

		100

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		

-

		

		-

		

		100

		

		-

		

		100



		Issue of convertible notes 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		834

		

		-

		

		-

		

		834

		

		-

		

		834



		Share issue costs

		-

		

		(6)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(6)

		

		-

		

		(6)



		Buy-back of ordinary shares

		(5,603)

		

		(10,853)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(555)

		

		(17,011)

		

		-

		

		(17,011)



		Share buy-back costs

		-

		

		(277)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(277)

		

		-

		

		(277)



		Transfer to retained earnings 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(3)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		3

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		Income tax relating to transactions with owners

		

		

		84

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(242)

		

		

-

		

		-

		

		(158)

		

		-

		

		(158)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Balance at 31 December 2013

		17,819

		

		14,620

		

		807

		

		1,198

		

		593

		

		544

		

		317

		

		186

		

		592

		

		1,240

		

		110,200

		

		148,116

		

		24,316

		

		172,432
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2013	



		

		

		Notes

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		Cash flows from operating activities

		

		

		

		

		(restated)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Receipts from customers

		

		

		211,190

		

		214,497



		

		Payments to suppliers and employees

		

		

		(163,020)

		

		(181,490)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash generated from operations

		

		

		48,170

		

		33,007



		

		Interest paid

		

		

		(4,493)

		

		(6,106)



		

		Income taxes paid

		

		

		(13,848)

		

		(13,340)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash generated by operating activities

		

		

		29,829

		

		13,561



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash flows from investing activities

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Payments to acquire financial assets

		

		

		(1,890)

		

		-



		

		Proceeds on sale of financial assets

		

		

		-

		

		51



		

		Interest received 

		

		

		2,315

		

		1,054



		

		Royalties and other investment income received

		

		

		1,137

		

		1,143



		

		Dividends received from associates

		

		

		30

		

		25



		

		Other dividends received

		

		

		156

		

		154



		

		Amounts advanced to related parties

		

		

		(738)

		

		(4,311)



		

		Repayments by related parties

		

		

		189

		

		1,578



		

		Payments for property, plant and equipment

		

		

		(22,932)

		

		(11,875)



		

		Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

		

		

		11,462

		

		21,245



		

		Payments for investment property

		

		

		(10)

		

		(1,532)



		

		Proceeds from disposal of investment property

		

		

		-

		

		58



		

		Payments for intangible assets

		

		

		(6)

		

		(358)



		

		Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

		44

		

		(477)

		

		-



		

		Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary

		45

		

		7,566

		

		-



		

		Net cash inflow on disposal of associate

		

		

		-

		

		120



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities

		

		

		(3,198)

		

		7,352



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash flows from financing activities

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company

		

		

		414

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from issue of convertible notes

		

		

		4,950

		

		-



		

		Payment for share issue costs

		

		

		(6)

		

		-



		

		Payment for buy-back of shares

		

		

		(17,011)

		

		-



		

		Payment for share buy-back costs

		

		

		(277)

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares

		

		

		15,000

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from issue of perpetual notes

		

		

		2,500

		

		-



		

		Payment for debt issue costs

		

		

		(595)

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from borrowings

		

		

		16,953

		

		24,798



		

		Repayment of borrowings

		

		

		(37,761)

		

		(23,209)



		

		Proceeds from government loans

		

		

		-

		

		3,000



		

		Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary that does not involve loss of control 

		

		

		213

		

		-



		

		Dividends paid on redeemable preference shares

		

		

		(613)

		

		-



		

		Dividends paid to owners of the Company

		

		

		(6,635)

		

		(6,479)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash used in financing activities

		

		

		(22,868)

		

		(1,890)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

		

		

		3,763

		

		19,023



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

		

		

		19,400

		

		561



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies

		

		

		(80)

		

		(184)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

		46

		

		23,083

		

		19,400



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	The above illustrates the direct method of reporting cash flows from operating activities.
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		IAS 1.10(e),
51(b),(c)

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013





		

		2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 





		

		2.1 New and revised IFRSs affecting amounts reported in the current year (and/or prior years)





		

		New and revised IFRSs affecting the reported financial performance and/or financial position





		IAS 8.28(a)



		IAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)



		IAS 8.28(b),(c)

IAS 19.172

IAS 19.173(a)

IAS 8.28(d),(e)

		B In the current year, the Group has applied IAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related consequential amendments for the first time. 



		

























IAS 19.173

IAS 8.22









IAS 8.28(f)(i),(ii)























		IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net interest’ amount under IAS 19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. These changes have had an impact on the amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in prior years (see the tables below for details). In addition, IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces certain changes in the presentation of the defined benefit cost including more extensive disclosures.



Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-time application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions and restated the comparative amounts on a retrospective basis (see the tables below for details). 



		Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 1 January 2012 of the application of the above revised Standard

		Retirement benefit obligation

		

		Current tax liability

		

		Equity



		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		Balance as reported at 1 January 2012

		2,968

		

		4,910

		

		141,464. 



		Effect of adoption of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

		(774)

		

		232

		

		

542.



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Restated balance at 1 January 2012

		2,194

		

		5,142

		

		142,006.



		

		

		

		

		

		









		

		Retirement benefit obligation

		

		Current tax liability

		

		Equity



		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		Balance as reported at 31 December 2012

		2,023

		

		5,868

		

		166,962.



		Effect of adoption of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

		(774)

		

		232

		

		

542.



		Effect on profit or loss

		232

		

		(70)

		

		(162).



		Restated balance at 31 December 2012

		1,481

		

		6,030

		

		167,342.



		

		

		

		

		

		



























The effect on the consolidated income statement was as follows:



		

		

		

		2013

		

		2012



		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		(Increase)/decrease of employee benefit expenses

		

		

		(440)

		

		

(424).



		Decrease/(increase) of income tax expense

		

		

		132

		

		

127.



		

		

		

		

		

		



		(Decrease)/increase of profit for the year

		

		

		(308)

		

		(297).



		

		

		

		

		

		









The effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was as follows:



		

		

		

		2013

		

		2012



		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 

		

		

		806

		

		

191.



		(Increase)/decrease of income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

		

		

		(242)

		

		



(57).



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Increase/(decrease) of other comprehensive income

		

		

		564

		

		

134.



		

		

		

		

		

		







		Increase/(decrease) of total comprehensive income for the year

		

		

		256

		

		

(163).



		

		

		

		

		

		

































		

		



		

		



		

		3. Significant accounting policies





		

		Note:	The note below only illustrates accounting policies regarding retirement benefit costs and termination benefits. Regarding impact of other new and revised Standards, please refer to Section 2 of this publication. 





		IAS 19

		3.15 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits 





		

		Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.





		IAS 19.66























IAS 19.135

		[bookmark: _GoBack]For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recorded in other comprehensive income are not recycled. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of plan amendment. Net-interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are split into three categories:

- service cost, past-service cost and settlements;

- net-interest expense or income;

- remeasurements.



The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the line item ‘employee benefits expense’ in its consolidated income statement (by nature of expenses aggregation). Curtailments gains and losses are accounted for as past-service cost. 





		IAS 19.8, 64









IAS 19.165

		The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.



A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.
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		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		13. Profit for the year from continuing operations





		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		13.5 Employee benefits expense

		

		

		(restated)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Post employment benefits (see note 39)

		

		

		



		IAS 19.51

			Defined contribution plans 

		160

		

		148



		IAS 19.56-60

			Defined benefit plans 

		1,336

		

		852



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		1,496

		

		1,000



		IFRS 2.50

		Share-based payments (see note 42.1)

		

		

		



		IFRS 2.51(a)

			Equity-settled share-based payments

		206

		

		338



		IFRS 2.51(a)

			Cash-settled share-based payments 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		206

		

		338



		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 19.165

		Termination benefits 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other employee benefits 

		8,851

		

		10,613



		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 1.104

		Total employee benefits expense

		10,553

		

		11,951



		

		



		

		









		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued









		

		14. Earnings per share





		

		14.3 Impact of changes in accounting policies





		IAS 8.28(f)

		Changes in the Group’s accounting policies during the year are described in detail in note 2.1. To the extent that those changes have had an impact on results reported for 2011 and 2010, they have had an impact on the amounts reported for earnings per share. 





		

		The following table summarises that effect on both basic and diluted earnings per share.





		

		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 

		

		Increase (decrease)

 in basic
earnings per share

		

		Increase (decrease)

 in diluted
earnings per share



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU’000

		

		CU’000

		

		Cents per share

		

		Cents per share

		

		Cents per share

		

		Cents per share



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Changes in accounting policies relating to:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- Effect of application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) 

		(308)

		

		(297)

		

		(1.7)

		

		(1.5)

		

		(1.5)

		

		(1.4)



		

		- Others (please specify)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		(308)

		

		(297)

		

		(1.7)

		

		(1.5)

		

		(1.5)

		

		(1.4)












		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		39. Retirement benefit plans





		

		39.1 Defined contribution plans 





		

		The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees of its subsidiary in C Land. The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. Where employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.





		

		The employees of the Group's subsidiary in B Land are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of B Land. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions. 





		IAS 19.53

		The total expense recognised in the consolidated [statement of comprehensive income/income statement] of CU160,000 (2010: CU148,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at 31 December 2011, contributions of CU8,000 (2010: CU8,000) due in respect of the 2011 (2010) reporting period had not been paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the reporting period.





		

		



		

		



















































































		

		



		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		39.2 Defined benefit plans 





		IAS 19.139

		The Group sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees of its subsidiaries in A Land. The defined benefit plan is administered by a separate Fund that is legally separated from the entity. The board of the pension fund is composed of an equal number of representatives from both employers and (former) employees. The board of the pension fund is required by law or by articles of association to act in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme, i.e. active employees, inactive employees, retirees, employers. The board of the pension fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund.



Under the plans, the employees are entitled to post-retirement yearly installments amounting to 1.75% of final salary for each year of service until the retirement age of 65. The pensionable salary is limited to CU 20. The pensionable salary is the difference between the current salary of the employee and the state retirement benefit. In addition, the service period is limited to 40 years resulting in a maximum yearly entitlement (life-long annuity) of 70% of final salary. 



The plans in A-land typically expose the company to actuarial risks like investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. 



		Investment risk

		The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the pension fund considers it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in equity securities and in real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund. 



		Interest risk

		A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.



		Longevity risk

		The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.



		Salary risk

		The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.







The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured at an external insurance company. 



No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees. 





		

		The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31 December 2011 by Mr. F.G. Ho, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of A Land. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.





		IAS 19.144

		The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.





		

		

		Valuation at



		

		

		31/12/13

		

		01/01/12 and

31/12/12



		

		

		%

		

		%



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Discount rate(s)

		5.52

		

		5.20



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Expected rate(s) of salary increase

		5.00

		

		5.00



		

		Mortality table based on life expectancy trends of working population of A Land (trends extrapolated until 2060)

		-

		

		-



		

		Other [describe]

		-

		

		-



		

		



		

		



		

		



		

		



		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		



		Note:    The principal assumptions will depend on the nature of the benefit formula. If the formula is based on current year’s salary with a conditional indexation of past service entitlements, the expected indexation will probably be a significant assumption. Additional disclosure of the specific conditions on which this indexation depends (e.g. sufficiency of plan assets) and/or how these indexations are funded, should be considered in light of the objective of IAS 19.135a (as revised in 2011).



		

		



		IAS 19120/135

		Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows.





		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		(restated)





		

		Current service cost

		1,259

		

		738



		

		Past service cost

		-

		

		-



		

		Net interest expense

		77

		

		114



		

		Components of defined benefit costs recorded in profit or loss

		1,336

		

		852



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability

		

		

		



		

			Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)

		(518)

		

		(140)



		

			Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic     assumptions

		(25)

		

		(5)



		

			Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions

		(220)

		

		(23)



		

			Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

		(43)

		

		(23)



		

			Other (describe)

		-

		

		-



		

		Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset

		-

		

		-



		

		Components of defined benefit costs recorded in OCI

		(806)

		

		(191)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total of components of defined benefit cost

		530

		

		661
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		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		IAS 19.135

		The past service cost, the service cost and the net-interest expense for the year is included in the employee benefits expense in the consolidated [income statement/statement of comprehensive income]. The remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability is included in the statement of comprehensive income as part of other comprehensive income. 



Of the expense for the year, CU412,000 (2010: CU402,000) has been included in the consolidated income statement as cost of sales.





		IAS 19.140

		The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows.







		


		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		(restated)



		IAS 19.140

		Present value of funded defined benefit obligation

		6,156

		

		5,808



		

		Fair value of plan assets 

		(4,202)

		

		(4,326)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Funded status

		1,954

		

		1,482



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Restrictions on asset recognised 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other [describe]

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 

		1,954

		

		1,482



		

		

		

		

		







		IAS 19.141

		Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows. 







		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Opening defined benefit obligation

		5,808

		

		6,204



		

		Current service cost

		1,259

		

		738



		

		Interest cost (restated)

		302

		

		323



		

		Contributions from plan participants 

		-

		

		-



		

		Remeasurement (gains)/losses (restated)

		

		

		



		

		Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions

		(25)

		

		(5)



		

		Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial

assumptions

		(220)

		

		(23)



		

			Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 	adjustments

		(43)

		

		(23)



		

			Others (describe)

		-

		

		-



		

		Past service cost

		-

		

		-



		

		Losses/(gains) on curtailments

		-

		

		-



		

		Liabilities extinguished on settlements

		-

		

		-



		

		Liabilities assumed in a business combination

		-

		

		-



		

		Exchange differences on foreign plans 

		31

		

		75



		

		Benefits paid

		(956)

		

		(1,481)



		

		Other [describe]

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Closing defined benefit obligation

		6,156

		

		5,808



		

		

		

		

		







		IAS 19.141

		Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows.







		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Opening fair value of plan assets 

		4,326

		

		4,010



		

		Interest income (restated)

		225

		

		209



		

		Remeasurement gain (loss) (restated)

		518

		

		140



		

		Exchange differences on foreign plans 

		89

		

		1,448



		

		Contributions from the employer

		-

		

		-



		

		Contributions from plan participants

		-

		

		-



		

		Benefits paid

		(956)

		

		(1,481)



		

		Assets acquired in a business combination

		-

		

		-



		

		Assets distributed on settlements 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other [describe]

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Closing fair value of plan assets

		4,202

		

		4,326



		

		

		

		

		







		IAS 19.142

		The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows.





		

		

		

		Fair value of 
plan assets



		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU’000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash and cash equivalents

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Equity instruments

		

		

		



		

		- Consumer industry

		-

		

		-



		

		- Manufacturing industry

		300

		

		280



		

		- Energy and utilities

		-

		

		-



		

		- Financial institutions

		310

		

		300



		

		- Health and care

		-

		

		-



		

		- ICT and telecom

		-

		

		-



		

		- Equity instrument funds

		416

		

		406



		

		Subtotal equity

		1,026

		

		986



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Debt instruments

		

		

		



		

		- AAA

		1,970

		

		1,830



		

		- AA

		-

		

		-



		

		- A

		10

		

		20



		

		- BBB and lower

		-

		

		-



		

		- not rated

		-

		

		-



		

		Subtotal debt instruments

		1,980

		

		1,850



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Property

		

		

		



		

		- Retail

		300

		

		200



		

		- Offices

		800

		

		1,000



		

		- Residential

		96

		

		290



		

		Subtotal property

		1,196

		

		1,490



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Derivatives

		

		

		



		

		- Interest rate swaps

		-

		

		-



		

		- Forward foreign exchange contracts

		-

		

		-



		

		Subtotal derivatives

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other [describe]

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		4,202

		

		4,326



		

		



		

		



		IAS 19.142

		The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments are determined based on quoted market prices in active markets whereas the fair values of properties and derivatives are not based on quoted market prices in active markets. It is the policy of the fund to use interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. This policy has been implemented during the current and prior years. Foreign currency exposures are fully hedged by the use of the forward foreign exchange contracts.



The actual return on plan assets was CU0.72 million (2010: CU0.354 million). 





		IAS 19.143









IAS 19.145



























IAS 19.145(b)







IAS 19.145(b)









IAS 19.145(c)



IAS 19.146





















IAS 19.147

		The plan assets include ordinary shares of International GAAP Holdings Limited with a fair value of CU0.38 million (31 December 2010: CU0.252 million) and property occupied by a subsidiary of International GAAP Holdings Limited with a fair value of CU0.62 million (31 December 2010: CU0.62 million). 



Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.



· If the discount rate would be 100 basic points (one percent) higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by CU 1,110 (increase by 1,154) if all other assumptions were held constant.

· If the expected salary grow would increase (decrease) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by CU 120 (decrease by CU 122) if all other assumptions were held constant.

· If the life expectancy would increase (decrease) with one year for both men and women, the defined benefit obligation would increase by CU 150 (decrease by CU 156) if all other assumptions were held constant.



The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 



Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the statement of financial position.



There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.



Each year an ALM-study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk-and-return profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study. Main strategic choices that are formulated in the actuarial and technical policy document of the Fund are:

- Asset mix based on 25% equity instruments, 50% debt instruments and 25% investment property;

- Interest rate sensitivity caused by the duration of the defined benefit obligation should be reduced with 30% by the use of debt instruments in combination with interest rate swaps.

- Maintaining an equity buffer that gives a 97.5% assurance that assets are sufficient within the next 12 months.



There has been no change in the process used by the Group to manage its risks from prior periods. 



The Group’s subsidiaries should fund the cost of the entitlements expected to be earned on a yearly basis. Employees pay a fixed 5% percentage of pensionable salary. The residual contribution (including back service payments) is paid by the entities of the Group. The funding requirements are based on a local actuarial measurement framework. In this framework the discount rate is set on a risk free rate. Furthermore, premiums are determined on a current salary base. Additional liabilities stemming from past service due to salary increases (back-service liabilities) should be paid immediately to the Fund. Apart from paying the costs of the entitlements the Group’s subsidiaries are not liable to pay additional contributions in case the Fund does not hold sufficient assets. In that case Fund should take other measures to restore its solvency such as a reduction of the entitlements of the plan members. 



The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 16.5 years (2010: 15.6 years). This number can be subdivided into the duration related to:

- active members: 19.4 years (2010: 18.4 years); 

- deferred members: 22.6 years (2010: 21.5 years);

- retired members: 9.3 years (2010: 8.5 years).





		

		The Group expects to make a contribution of CU0.95 million (2010: CU0.91 million) to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.
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Intro

				Introduction



				IAS 19(R) contains the requirements for accounting for employee benefits. Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by the employees or for the termination of employment. IAS 19 first became effective in 1999 and has been amended several times since then. However, the revisions to the standard which were issued in 2011 may have a significant impact on some companies, particularly those with defined benefit plans where the actuarial gains and losses were recognised  using the corridor approach. The corridor approach is no longer allowed and now all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.







				This template reporting pack is intended to assist companies in modifying their reporting packs to comply with the changes in IAS 19(R).



				The changes needed to the reporting pack are:

				Employee benefit expense

				Earnings per share

				Retirement benefit plan



				Notes to assist in the completion of the pack have been given where necessary

				References to the applicable requirements in IAS 19(R) have also been included.





Employee Benefit Expense

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:

				Profit for the year from continuing operations



				Employee benefits expense

						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12				Guidance

						CU'000		CU'000

				IAS 19.51, 19.56-60				(restated)

				Post employment benefits (see note "XX")

				Defined contribution plans 								Total amount expensed for defined contribution plans.

				Defined benefit plans 								Total amount expensed for defined benefit plans in Profit or Loss (Current service cost, past service cost & net interest expense).

						- 0		- 0

				IFRS 2.50, 2.51(a)

				Share-based payments (see note "XX")

				Equity-settled share-based payments								Current year IFRS 2 expense for all equity-settled share-based payments.

				Cash-settled share-based payments 								Current year IFRS 2 expense for all cash-settled share-based payments.

						- 0		- 0

				IAS 19.165

				Termination benefits 								Total amount expensed for termination benefits for employees.

				Other employee benefits 								Total amount of any other employee benefits provided during the period.

				IAS 1.104

				Total employee benefits expense		- 0		- 0

												NOTE:

												The figures for 2012 would need to be the restated figures after the retrospective application of IAS 19(R).







EPS 

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:



				IAS 8.28(f)

				Impact of changes in accounting policies

				Changes in the Group's accounting policies during the year are described in detail in note "XX". To the extent that those changes have had an impact on results reported for 2013 and 2012, they have had an impact on the amounts reported for earnings per share. 



						Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 				Increase/ (decrease) in basic
earnings per share
				Increase / (decrease) in diluted
earnings per share


						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

						CU'000		CU'000		Cents per share		Cents per share		Cents per share		Cents per share

				Changes in accounting policies relating to:

				- Effect of early application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) 

				- Others (please specify)

						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0





				NOTE - Headline earnings per share:

				Circular 03/09 .21 states that only actuarial gains or losses that are included profit or loss are included in HEPS.
Those actuarial gains or losses included in other comprehensive income are excluded in the calculation of HEPS.
In terms of IAS 19(R) all actuarial gains or losses are now taken to OCI and hence will be excluded from the calculation of HEPS.

The amounts disclosed above in the change in accounting policy note would only be the difference between the amounts disclosed under the old IAS 19 and IAS 19(R).











Retirement Benefit Plans

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:

				Retirement benefit plans



				Defined benefit plans 

				IAS 19.139

				The Group sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees of its subsidiaries in xxxxx. The defined benefit plan is administered by a separate Fund that is legally separated from the entity. The board of the pension fund is composed of an equal number of representatives from both employers and (former) employees. The board of the pension fund is required by law or by articles of association to act in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme, i.e. active employees, inactive employees, retirees, employers. The board of the pension fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund.

				Under the plans, the employees are entitled to post-retirement yearly installments amounting to xx% of final salary for each year of service until the retirement age of xx. The pensionable salary is limited to CU xxxx. The pensionable salary is the difference between the current salary of the employee and the state retirement benefit. In addition, the service period is limited to xxx years resulting in a maximum yearly entitlement (life-long annuity) of xx% of final salary. 

				The plans in xxxx typically expose the company to actuarial risks like investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured at an external insurance company. 



				No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees. 



				The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at "insert date" by "insert name of Actuary", Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of xxxxx. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

				IAS 19.144

				The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

										Valuation at						Guidance

										12/31/13		12/31/12

										%		%

				Discount rate(s)												The expected assumptions used in the calculations of the defined benefit plan should be disclosed in this table. These include: discount rate, expected rate of salary increase and life expectancy of employees.

				Expected rate(s) of salary increase

				Mortality table based on life expectancy trends of working population of xxxx (trends extrapolated until 2060)

				Other [describe]



				NOTE:

				The principal assumptions will depend on the nature of the benefit formula. If the formula is based on current year’s salary with a conditional indexation of past service entitlements, the expected indexation will probably be a significant assumption. Additional disclosure of the specific conditions on which this indexation depends (e.g. sufficiency of plan assets) and/or how these indexations are funded, should be considered in light of the objective of IAS 19.135a (as revised in 2011).



				IAS 19.120/135

				Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows.

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000

												(restated)

				Current service cost												Costs expensed in profit or loss for the year related to the defined benefit plan are disclosed in this table per their component part: current service cost, past service cost or net interest expense.

				Past service cost

				Net interest expense

				Components of defined benefit costs recorded in profit or loss						- 0		- 0



				Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability												Costs expensed in other comprehensive for the year related to the defined benefit plan are disclosed in this table per their component part: actuarial gains or losses, gains or losses from curtailments or settlements and adjustments for restrictions of plan assets.

				Losses/(gains) arising from curtailments or settlements

				Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset

				Components of defined benefit costs recorded in OCI						- 0		- 0



				Total of components of defined benefit cost						- 0		- 0

				IAS 19.135

				The past service cost, the service cost and the net-interest expense for the year is included in the employee benefits expense in the consolidated [income statement/statement of comprehensive income]. The remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability is included in the statement of comprehensive income as part of other comprehensive income. 

				Of the expense for the year, CU xxxxx (2012: CU xxxxxx) has been included in the consolidated income statement as cost of sales.



				IAS 19.140

				The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows.

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000

												(restated)

				Present value of funded defined benefit obligation												Calculation of the defined net liability to be disclosed in the statement of financial position. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is disclosed and from this the fair value of the plan assets is subtracted. Any restrictions of the use of the plan assets are then added to this total to arrive at the net liability, to be disclosed in the statement of financial position.

				Fair value of plan assets 

				Funded status						- 0		- 0



				Restrictions on asset recognised 

				Other [describe]



				Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 						- 0		- 0



				IAS 19.141

				Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows.

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12				The reconciliation of the opening and closing balance of the defined benefit obligation is determined as follows:

										CU'000		CU'000

				Opening defined benefit obligation

				Current service cost												Added

				Interest cost (restated)												Added - note this amount is determined using the discount rate per IAS 19(R). The 2012 figure would need to be restated.

				Contributions from plan participants 												Added

				Remeasurement (gains)/losses (restated)												Losses - added, gains - subtracted (These are actuarial gains or losses)

				Past service cost												Added

				Losses/(gains) on curtailments												Losses - added, gains - subtracted

				Liabilities extinguished on settlements												Subtracted

				Liabilities assumed in a business combination												Added

				Exchange differences on foreign plans 												Added/subtracted

				Benefits paid												Subtracted

				Other [describe]												Added/subtracted



				Closing defined benefit obligation						- 0		- 0



				Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows.

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12				The reconciliation of the opening and closing balance of the plan assets are determined as follows:

										CU'000		CU'000

				Opening fair value of plan assets 

				Interest income (restated)												Added - note this amount is determined using the discount rate per IAS 19(R). The 2012 figure would need to be restated.

				Remeasurement gain (loss) (restated)												Gains - added, losses - subtracted (These are actuarial gains or losses)

				Exchange differences on foreign plans 												Added/subtracted

				Contributions from the employer												Added

				Contributions from plan participants												Added

				Benefits paid												Subtracted

				Assets acquired in a business combination												Added

				Assets distributed on settlements 												Subtracted

				Other [describe]												Added/subtracted



				Closing fair value of plan assets						- 0		- 0





				The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows.

										Fair value of plan assets

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12				An entity should disclose the fair values of all plan assets per category of plan asset and also differentiate each category between the fair value hierarchy contained in IFRS 13.

										CU'000		CU'000

				Cash and cash equivalents



				Equity instruments

				- Consumer industry

				- Manufacturing industry

				- Energy and utilities

				- Financial institutions

				- Health and care

				- ICT and telecom

				- Equity instrument funds

				Subtotal equity						- 0		- 0



				Debt instruments

				- AAA

				- AA

				- A

				- BBB and lower

				- not rated

				Subtotal debt instruments						- 0		- 0



				Property

				- Retail

				- Offices

				- Residential

				Subtotal property						- 0		- 0



				Derivatives

				- Interest rate swaps

				- Forward foreign exchange contracts

				Subtotal derivatives						- 0		- 0



				Other [describe]						- 0		- 0



				IAS 19.142

				Virtually all equity and debt instruments have quoted prices in active markets. Derivatives can be classified as level 2 instruments and property as level 3 instruments based on the definitions in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement. It is the policy of the fund to use interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. It is the policy of the fund to cover xx% of the exposure to interest rate risk of the defined benefit obligation by the use of debt instruments in combination with interest rate swaps. This policy has been realised during the reporting and preceding period. Foreign currency exposures are fully hedged by the use of the forward foreign exchange contracts.



				The actual return on plan assets was CU xxx million (2012: CU xxx million). 

				IAS 19.143

				The plan assets include ordinary shares of xxxxx with a fair value of CU xxx million (31 December 2012: CU xxxx million) and property occupied by a subsidiary of xxxxx with a fair value of CU xxxx million (31 December 2012: CU xxxx million). 



				IAS 19.145

				Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.



				- If the discount rate would be 100 basic points (one percent) higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by CU xxx (increase by xxxx) if all other assumptions were held constant.

				- If the expected salary grow would increase (decrease) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by CU xxx (decrease by CU xxx) if all other assumptions were held constant.

				- If the life expectancy would increase (decrease) with one year for both men and women, the defined benefit obligation would increase by CU xxx (decrease by CU xxx) if all other assumptions were held constant.



				In reality one might expect interrelationships between the assumptions, especially between discount rate and expected salary increases that both depends to a certain extent on expected inflation rates. The analysis above abstracts from these interdependencies between the assumptions.

				IAS 19.146

				Each year an ALM-study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk-and-return profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study. Main strategic choices that are formulated in the actuarial and technical policy document of the Fund are:

				- Asset mix based on xx% equity instruments, xx% debt instruments and xx% investment property;

				- Interest rate sensitivity caused by the duration of the defined benefit obligation should be reduced with xx% by the use of debt instruments in combination with interest rate swaps.

				- Maintaining an equity buffer that gives a xx% assurance that assets are sufficient within the next xx months.



				IAS 19.147

				The Group’s subsidiaries should fund the cost of the entitlements expected to be earned on a yearly basis. Employees pay a fixed xx% percentage of pensionable salary. The residual contribution (including back service payments) is paid by the entities of the Group. The funding requirements are based on a local actuarial measurement framework. In this framework the discount rate is set on a risk free rate. Furthermore, premiums are determined on a current salary base. Additional liabilities stemming from past service due to salary increases (back-service liabilities) should be paid immediately to the Fund. Apart from paying the costs of the entitlements the Group’s subsidiaries are not liable to pay additional contributions in case the Fund does not hold sufficient assets. In that case Fund should take other measures to restore its solvency such as a reduction of the entitlements of the plan members. 



				The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is xx years (2012: xx years). This number can be subdivided into the duration related to:

				- active members: xx years (2012: xx years); 

				- deferred members: xx years (2012: xx years);

				- retired members: xx years (2012: xx years).



				The Group expects to make a contribution of CU0xxx million (2012: CU0xxx million) to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.
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Register



						Company name



				Presentation currency:



				Register of Investments



				In May 2011, the IASB issued a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures, including IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early application permitted. However, if an entity wishes early application, it should apply all of the five standards early at the same time.  Entities are encouraged to provide information set out in IFRS 12 earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 

This template provides a guide that can be used to record all investments held by the company.


				Investment Description		Percentage Shareholding 		Country of Incorporation		Composition of the Board/Governing Body		Other Parties to the Contract/Shareholders Agreements		Relevant Activities of the Investee		Decision Making Process for Relevant Activities		Structured Entity		Other Facts and Circumstances		Classification		Accounting Treatment

				Include a brief description of the investment.		Include company shareholding in the investee.		Include country of incorporation of the investment.		Include the composition of the board/governing body of the investee, including who has the right to appoint members to the board/governing body.		Include names and shareholding of other parties to investment contracts/shareholders agreements.		Include brief description of the relevant activities of the investee.		Include description of how decisions are made. 		Include whether the investee is a structured entity as defined in IFRS 12.		Consider any other facts and circumstances which may impact on the classification. 		Classification of the investment as either:
 - subsidiary (IFRS 10)
 - joint operation (IFRS 11)
 - joint venture (IFRS 11)
 - associate (IAS 28)
 - investment (IAS 39)

																										The accounting treatment for investments may be any of the following:

																										Consolidate

																										Equity Account

																										Account for the proportionate share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses

																										Fair value through profit or loss

																										Fair value through other comprehensive income
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Analysis



						Company name



				Presentation currency:

				High level impact assessment



				In May 2011, the IASB issued a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures, including IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early application permitted. However, if an entity wishes early application, it should apply all of the five standards early at the same time.  Entities are encouraged to provide information set out in IFRS 12 earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 

This guide provides a high level impact assessment of the application of the requirements of IFRS 10 and IFRS 11. 


				Summarise below the financial results of business as currently stated



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Income from associate

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Investment in associate

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities





				IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

				A company should assess whether based on the changes to the definition of control, it should reassess its decision to consolidate an entity or not. The concept of de facto control has been written into IFRS 10 and could result in entities with less than 50% ownership having control, depending on the size of the shareholdings of the other investors.





				Deconsolidate a business

				Summarise below the financial results of business which will no longer be consolidated



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Consolidate a business

				Summarise below the financial results of a previously unconsolidated business which be consolidated on the application of IFRS 10



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				IFRS 11 Joint arrangements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

				One of the biggest changes that have arisen as result of the new IFRS 11, is that jointly controlled entities (joint ventures) will no longer be proportionately consolidated. An entity will need to assess all entities previously accounted for as jointly controlled entities to consider their classification as a joint operation or a joint venture under the new and revised standards.





				Current accounting treatment

				Summarise below the financial results of proportionately consolidated joint ventures, joint operations and jointly controlled assets per the consolidated financial statements



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Joint ventures

				Summarise below the entities previously proportionately consolidated results of the joint venture



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Joint operations 

				Summarise below the entities exposure to assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a joint operation



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Jointly controlled assets

				Summarise below the entities exposure to jointly controlled assets



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				High level impact assessment

				Based on the information collated above, we have:
- deconsolidated businesses no longer controlled by the entity
- consolidated previously unconsolidated businesses controlled by the entity under IFRS 10
- removed the impacts of proportionate consolidation
- Included the impact of joint arrangements





				Indicative accounting treatment				% change



				Revenue		- 0		ERROR

				Gross Profit		- 0		ERROR

				Expenses		- 0		ERROR

				Income from associates and joint ventures		- 0		ERROR

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent		- 0		ERROR



				Non-current assets		- 0		ERROR

				Investment in associates and joint ventures		- 0		ERROR

				Current assets		- 0		ERROR

				Non-current liabilities		- 0		ERROR

				Current liabilities		- 0		ERROR
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Analysis



						Company name



				Presentation currency:

				High level impact assessment - IFRS 10 Investment entities



				In May 2011, the IASB issued a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures, including IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 

In August 2011, IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10.  The amendments define an investment entity and introduce an exception to consolidating particular subsidiaries for investment entities. These amendments require an investment entity to measure those subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in its consolidated and separate financial statements. The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities in IFRS 12 and IAS 27. Entities are required to apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Earlier application is permitted.

This guide provides a high level impact assessment for the application of the investment entity exception in IFRS 10.


				Summarise below the financial results of the business as currently stated



				Statement of comprehensive income

				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Fair value adjustments on financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Statement of financial position

				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities





				IFRS 10 Exception (investment entities)

				For purposes of IFRS 10, an entity should consider whether it is an investment entity or not.

				Deconsolidate a subsidiary

				Summarise below the financial results of businesses which will no longer be consolidated



				Statement of comprehensive income

				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Fair value adjustments on financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Statement of financial position

				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities								

Amy Escott (Open)
: Amy Escott (Open)
:
Please run a spell check


Done. NM



				Recognise the investment in subsidiary

				Summarise below the fair value measurements of businesses no longer consolidated on the application of IFRS 10 (Investment entities)



				Statement of comprehensive income

				Fair value adjustment on subsidiary carried at fair value through profit or loss



				Statement of financial position

				Investment in subsidiary (at fair value)



				High level impact assessment

				Based on the information collated above, we have:
- deconsolidated businesses no longer required to be consolidated under the investment entity exception
- included the impact of subsidiaries held at fair value by the investment entity under IFRS 10






				Indicative accounting treatment				% change



				Revenue		- 0		ERROR

				Gross Profit		- 0		ERROR

				Fair value adjustment on subsidiary carried at fair value through profit or loss		- 0		ERROR

				Expenses		- 0		ERROR

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent		- 0		ERROR



				Non-current assets		- 0		ERROR

				Investment in subsidiary (at fair value)		- 0		n/a

				Current assets		- 0		ERROR

				Non-current liabilities		- 0		ERROR

				Current liabilities		- 0		ERROR
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Classification



						Company name

																																																																																												Yes

				Presentation currency:																																																																																								No																																Joint Operation

																																																																																																																												Joint Venture

				Joint Arrangements Classification Template



				In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements which requires an investor in a joint arrangement to classify a joint arrangement based on the legal structure of the joint arrangement and the rights and obligations that the investor has in relation to the underlying assets and liabilities of the joint arrangement.

This template provides guidance on the classification of the joint arrangements as either joint operations or joint ventures.

				Contract Description		Other Parties to the Contract		Percentage Shareholding in the Investee		Composition of the Board/Governing Body		Relevant Activities of the Investee		Decision Making Process for Relevant Activities		Is the Investee a Separate Legal Entity?		Are the Assets and Liabilities Legally those of the Vehicle?		Does the Contract Modify the Rights and Obligations of the Investor?		Other Facts and Circumstances		Classification as Joint Operation or Joint Venture		Accounting Treatment

				Include a brief description of the contract.		Include names and shareholding of other parties to the contract.		Include company shareholding in the investee.		Include the composition of the board/governing body of the investee, including who has the right to appoint members to the board/governing body.		Include brief description of the relevant activities of the investee.		Include description of how decisions are made. A joint arrangement requires unanimous consent for decisions relating to the relevant activities of the investee.		If the investee is not a separate legal entity, then it is classified as a joint operation.		If the assets and liabilities are not legally those of the vehicle, then it is classified as a joint operation.		If the contract modifies the rights and obligations of the investor, such that the investor has the rights to the assets and liabilities and not the net assets, then it is classified as a joint operation.		Consider any other facts and circumstances which may impact on the classification. 

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account

																										Equity account
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Intro

				Introduction



				The IASB has revised many of the standards and requirements relating to group accounting. These are detailed in the new IFRS 10, 11 and 12 standards.



				IFRS 10 is the new standard which provides guidance on when a subsidiary should be consolidated. IFRS 10 builds on the control guidance that existed in IAS 27 and SIC 12, adding additional context, explanation and application guidance that is consistent with the definition of control. IFRS 10 requires an assessment of whether the parent has the power to direct the relevant activities of an entity so as to obtain benefits. These entities are then consolidated by the parent. Once it has been determined under IFRS 10 that an entity should be consolidated, the actual mechanics of the consolidation remain the same as under IAS 27.



				IFRS 11 is the new standard on joint arrangements which replaces IAS 31 Joint Ventures. Where joint control exists, the investor is required to assess whether the joint arrangement is a joint operation or a joint venture, based on the legal structure of the investee and the investor’s rights to and obligations for the underlying assets and liabilities of the investee. Joint operations are accounted for in the financial statements of the investor by including the investor’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the investee in the investor’s financial statements while joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.



				IFRS 12 is the new standard which contains the disclosure requirements for interests that an entity holds in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.



				This template reporting pack is intended to assist companies in modifying their reporting packs to comply with the requirements of IFRS 12 and related standards.



				The changes needed to the reporting pack are:

				Critical judgments

				Earnings per share

				General information of subsidiaries

				Material Non-controlling interests

				Change of interest

				Associates

				Joint ventures

				Joint operations

				Disposal of subsidiaries

				Commitments for expenditure

				Contingent liabilities



				Notes to assist in the completion of the pack have been given where necessary

				References to the applicable requirements in the IFRS's have also been included.









Critical Jugdements 

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Instructions:

				IFRS 12.7 requires entities to disclose information about significant judgments and assumptions they have made in determining (i) whether they have control of another entity, (ii) whether they have joint control of an arrangement or significant influence over another entity, and (iii) the type of arrangement when the arrangement has been structured through a separate vehicle.
The table below should be completed for all critical judgements made in determining the type of control or arrangement of entities or separate vehicles.





				IFRS 12.7, .9

				Critical judgments in applying accounting policies



				Name of Investment		% Ownership		Type of Control/Arrangement		Reason 

								eg: Control, Joint Control,

								Significant Influence





















EPS

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:



				IAS 8.28(f)(ii)

				Impact of changes in accounting policies

				Changes in the Group's accounting policies during the year are described in detail in note "XX". To the extent that those changes have had an impact on results reported for 2013 and 2012, they have had an impact on the amounts reported for earnings per share. 



				The following table summarises that effect on both basic and diluted earnings per share.



						Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 				Increase/ (decrease) in basic
earnings per share
				Increase / (decrease) in diluted
earnings per share


						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

						CU'000		CU'000		Cents per share		Cents per share		Cents per share		Cents per share

				Changes in accounting policies relating to:

				- Application of IFRS 10 (see note "XX") 

				- Application of IFRS 11 (see note "XX") 

				- Others (please specify)

						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				NOTE - Headline earnings per share:

				IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 are required to be applied retrospectively.
The application of these standards may result in a change to the number of subsidiaries to be consolidated and the number of joint ventures/operations to be equity accounted/share of the joint operation recognised.
This may result in a change in the earnings of these entities being recognised in the holding company's books and in turn will impact on earnings per share (EPS).
The effect on profits and EPS disclosed above is the difference between the amounts reported under the old IFRS requirements and the new IFRS 10 and 11 requirements.
This in turn will impact on headline earnings per share (HEPS), as EPS is the starting point of the calculation for HEPS.











General Info of Subs

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:



				Instructions:

				IFRS 12.10(a) requires entities to disclose the composition of the group. Disclosures of information about the Group's material subsidiaries (wholly- and non-wholly-owned subsidiaries) must be made. The below illustrates one example as to how the requirements set out in IFRS 12 can be met. When local laws or regulations require the list of investments in subsidiaries to be disclosed, the above disclosures should be modified to comply with the additional local requirements.





				General information of subsidiaries

				Details of the Group's material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are set out below. 



																		Guidance

				Name of subsidiary 

		Principal activity		Place of incorporation and operation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group								As a minimum the  following should be disclosed below for all material subsidiaries: 

										12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/11				- Name of the subsidiary

																		- The subsidiary's principal activity

																		- The subsidiary's place of incorporation and operation

																		- The holding companies proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held per year.

















				IFRS 12.10(a),12.4,12.B4(a),12.B5-B6


				At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of these subsidiaries operate in "insert place of incorporation and operation". The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: 

																		For immaterial subsidiaries the place of incorporation and operation for the majority of the subsidiaries must be disclosed.
Immaterial subsidiaries may then be grouped and the following should be disclosed for each group of immaterial subsidiaries:



				Principal activity		Place of business				Number of Subsidiaries								- The principal activity of the group of subsidiaries

										12/31/13				12/31/12				- The place of business of the group of subsidiaries

						-												- The number of subsidiaries in that group

				1		-

						-

										0				0



						-

				2		-

						-

										0				0







Material NCI

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:





				IFRS 12.10(a)(ii), 12.12


				Details of non-wholly subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests

				The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:  



				Guidance

				The name of all subsidiaries, their place of incorporation and principal business, the group's interest in the subsidiary, profit or loss allocated to non-controlling interests and accumulated non-controlling interest amount should be completed in the table below:







				Name of 
subsidiary
		Place of incorporation and principal place of business		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by non-controlling interests						Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling interests 								Accumulated non-controlling interests 

								12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/11		12/31/13		12/31/12				12/31/11		12/31/13		12/31/12				12/31/11

														CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000



				xxxxx (i)













				IFRS 12.9(b)

				Note:

				(i) "Insert reason for control of subsidiaries that the Company owns less than 50% of the ownership interest but still exert control over."





				IFRS 12.12(g), 12.B10, 12.B11


				Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. 



				Guidance

				The assets, liabilities, incomes, expenses and cash flow information for all subsidiaries should be disclosed in the table below:



										Subsidiary 1								Subsidiary 2								Subsidiary 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets



				Non-current assets



				Current liabilities



				Non-current liabilities



				Equity attributable to owners of the Company



				Non-controlling interests



										Subsidiary 1								Subsidiary 2								Subsidiary 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Revenue 



				Expenses



				Profit (loss) for the year



				Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

				Profit (loss) attributable to the non-controlling interests 

				Profit (loss) for the year						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

				Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

				Other comprehensive income for the year 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company						- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0

				Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0

				Total comprehensive income for the year 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				Dividends paid to non-controlling interests



				Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities



				Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 



				Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 



				Net cash inflow (outflow) 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0























%Change,Signif Rest,Fin Supp 

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:



				IFRS 12.18																		Guidance

				Change of interest in a subsidiary																		For each change in the interest of a subsidiary the following should be disclosed:

				"Insert description of change in interest"																		A description of the change of interest should be disclosed





												CU'000

				Proceeds from disposal																		- Proceeds from the disposal

				Transfer to Non Controlling Interest																		- Transfers to non controlling interest

				Difference to Retained Earnings								0										- The difference between the proceeds received and the transfer to non controlling interest recognised in retained earnings





				IFRS 12.13

				Significant restrictions



				Instructions:

				When there are significant restrictions on the Company's or its subsidiaries' ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions. Please see IFRS 12.13 for details



				IFRS 12.14-17

				Financial support



				Instructions:

				When the Group gives financial support to a consolidated structured entity, the nature and risks (including the type and amount of support provided) should be disclosed in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.14 – 17 for details.







Associates

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Details of material associates 

				Details of each of the Group's material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 



				Guidance

				The name of all associates, their principal activity, place of incorporation and operation and the  group's interest in the associate should be completed in the table below:



				Name of associate

		Principal activity		Place of incorporation and operation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group

										12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/12



				xxxxxx(i)

















				IFRS 12.21(a)(iv), 12.22(b), 12.21(b)(iii),12.9(e)

				Note:

				(i)"Insert reason for significant influence of subsidiaries that the Company owns less than 20% of the ownership interest but still equity account as an associate. Also descriptions where voting rights differ from ownership interests and why . Where year ends differ need to state this, with reasons why reporting date cannot be changed to holding companies year end. "



				IFRS 12.B14

				Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's material associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 

				IFRS 12.21(b)(i)

				All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements



				Guidance

				The assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses for all associates should be disclosed in the table below:



										Associate 1								Associate 2								Associate 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

				IFRS 12.21(b)(ii), 12.B12, 12.B14						CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets



				Non-current assets



				Current liabilities



				Non-current liabilities





				Revenue



				Profit or loss from continuing operations



				Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				Profit (loss) for the year						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Other comprehensive income for the year 



				Total comprehensive income for the year 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Dividends received from the associate during the year 



				IFRS 12.B14(b)

				Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  



				Guidance

				The net assets of the associate, proportion of the groups ownership interest, goodwill and any other adjustments to the carrying amount of the groups interest should be completed in the table below:



										Associate 1								Associate 2								Associate 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				Net assets of the associate

				Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the associate

				Goodwill 

				Other adjustments (please specify) 



				Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.21(c)(ii), 12.B16


				Guidance

				The group's share of all profits from continuing operations, profits from discontinued operations, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income in associates that are not individually materially should be completed below:



				Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The Group's share of profit (loss) from continuing operations



				The Group's share of post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				The Group's share of other comprehensive income 



				The Group's share of total comprehensive income						- 0		- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.22(c)

				Guidance

				The group's share of all unrecognised losses for the year and cumulative share of unrecognised losses for its interest in associates should be disclosed below:



				Unrecognised share of losses of an associate						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year 



				Cumulative share of loss of an associate



				IAS 28.25

				Guidance

				When a group disposes of an interest in an associate the group should disclose the following below: a description of the change in interest, the proceeds on disposal, fair value of the investment and percentage holding retained by the group, carrying amount of the investment on the date of the loss of significant influence and the gain recognised. Further the current tax and deferred tax expense impact of the disposal should be disclosed.





				Change in ownership interest in an associate 

				"Insert description of change in interest"



				This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain in profit or loss, calculated as follows.

										CU'000

				Proceeds of disposal

				Plus: fair value of investment retained (XX%)

				Less: carrying amount of investment on the date of loss of significant influence



				Gain recognised						- 0



				The gain recognised in the current year comprises a realised profit of CU                 (being the proceeds of CU             less CU             carrying amount of the interest disposed of) and an unrealised profit of CU              (being the fair value less the carrying amount of the    % interest retained). A current tax expense of CU         arose on the gain realised in the current year, and a deferred tax expense of CU                has been recognised in respect of the portion of the profit recognised that is not taxable until the remaining interest is disposed of. 



				IFRS 12.22(a)

				Significant restrictions

				Instructions:

				When there are significant restrictions on the ability of associates to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.22(a) for details.







Joint Ventures

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Investment in joint venture



				Details of material joint venture

				IFRS 12.21(a)

				Details of the Group's material joint venture at the end of the reporting period is as follows:



				Guidance

				The name of all joint ventures, their principal activity, place of incorporation and operation and the  group's interest in the joint venture should be completed in the table below:



				Name of joint operation		Principal activity		Place of incorporation and operation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group

										12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/12













				IFRS 12.B14

				Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 

				IFRS 12.21(b)(i)

				The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. 



				Guidance

				The assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses for all joint ventures should be disclosed in the table below:



										JV 1								JV 2								JV 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

				IFRS 12.21(b)(ii),12.B12, 12.B14
						CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets



				Non-current assets



				Current liabilities



				Non-current liabilities



				The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:  



				Cash and cash equivalents 



				Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)



				Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)





				Revenue



				Profit or loss from continuing operations



				Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				Profit (loss) for the year						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Other comprehensive income for the year 



				Total comprehensive income for the year 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Dividends received from the joint venture during the year 



				IFRS 12.B13

				The above profit (loss) for the year include the following:  



				Depreciation and amortisation 



				Interest income



				Interest expense



				IFRS 12.B14(b)

				Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  



				Guidance

				The net assets of the joint venture, proportion of the groups ownership interest, goodwill and any other adjustments to the carrying amount of the groups interest should be completed in the table below:



										JV 1								JV 2								JV 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				Net assets of the joint venture 

				Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the joint venture

				Goodwill 

				Other adjustments (please specify) 



				Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				IFRS 12.21(c)(i),12.B16


				Guidance

				The group's share of all profits from continuing operations, profits from discontinued operations, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income in joint ventures that are not individually materially should be completed below:



				Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually material						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The Group's share of profit (loss) from continuing operations



				The Group's share of post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				The Group's share of other comprehensive income 



				The Group's share of total comprehensive income						- 0		- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.22(c)

				Guidance

				The group's share of all unrecognised losses for the year and cumulative share of unrecognised losses for its interest in joint ventures should be disclosed below:



				Unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture for the year 



				Cumulative share of loss of a joint venture



				IFRS 12.22(a)

				Significant restrictions

				Instructions:

				When there are significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.22(a) for details







Joint Operation

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				IFRS 12.21(a)

				Joint Operations

																Guidance

				Joint operation name		% ownership		Earning entitlement		Description						For each joint operation of the entity the following should be disclosed:

																- Name of the joint operation

																- Percentage ownership of the joint operation

																- Earnings entitlement of the entity from the joint operation

																- Description of the joint operation and its activities











Disposal of Subsidiary

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:														Guidance

				Disposal of subsidiary														For each disposal of an interest in a subsidiary the following should be disclosed:

				On "insert date", the Group disposed of "insert name of subsidiary" . 														- Date of sale and name of subsidiary sold

				IAS 7.40(a),(b)

				Consideration received

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000						- Breakdown of the consideration received from the sale of subsidiary

				Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

				Deferred sales proceeds (note XX)



				Total consideration received						- 0		- 0



				IAS 7.40(d)

				Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control was lost														- Breakdown of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary sold

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets

				Cash and cash equivalents

				Trade receivables

				Inventories



				Non-current assets

				Property, plant and equipment

				Goodwill 



				Current liabilities

				Payables



				Non-current liabilities

				Borrowings 

				Deferred tax liabilities



				Net assets disposed of 						- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.19

				Gain on disposal of subsidiary

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000						- Calculation of the gain on disposal of the subsidiary as follows:

				Consideration received						- 0		- 0						+ consideration received

				Net assets disposed of						- 0		- 0						- net assets disposed of

				Non-controlling interests														+ non-controlling interests

				Cumulative gain/loss on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified from equity on loss of control of subsidiary														+ gain or - loss, on transfer of available for sale financial assets reclassified from equity on disposal of the subsidiary

				Cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of the subsidiary and related hedging instruments reclassified from equity to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiary 														+ gain or - loss, on cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of the subsidiary and related hedging instruments reclassified from equity on disposal of the subsidiary



				Gain on disposal						- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.19(b)

				The gain on disposal is included in the profit for the year from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.



				IAS 7.40(c)

				Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000						- Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary as follows

				Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents						- 0		- 0						+ consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

				Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of														- cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary disposed of



										- 0		- 0







Commitments for Expenditure

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Commitments for expenditure																								Guidance

				IFRS 12.23(a), 12.B18-19

				The Group's commitments, including its share of commitments made jointly with other joint venturers relating to its joint venture, xxxxxxxx , is as follows:																								An entity must disclose the following commitments for all joint ventures it has investments in:

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000

				Commitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment																								- to acquire property, plant and equipment



				Commitments to provide loans																								- to provide loans



				Commitments to acquire other venturer's ownership interest when a particular event occurs or does not occur in the future (please specify what the particular event is) 																								- to acquire the other venturer's ownership interest



				Others (please specify)																								- Other commitments from the joint venture











Contingent Liabilities

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				IFRS 12.23(b)

				Contingent liabilities and contingent assets														Guidance

																		An entity must disclose the following contingent liabilities for entities it has investments in:

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000

				Contingent liabilities incurred by the Group arising from its interests in a  joint venture (i)														- Contingent liabilities incurred by the group arising from its interests in join ventures



				Contingent liabilities incurred by the Group arising from its interests in associates (please disclose the details) 														- Contingent liabilities incurred by the group arising from its interests in associates



				Group's share of associates' contingent liabilities (ii)														- Share of contingent liabilities from interests in associates



				Group's share of joint venture's contingent liabilities (please specify the details)														- Share of contingent liabilities from interests join ventures





				(i)     A number of contingent liabilities have arisen as a result of the Group's interests in joint ventures. The amount disclosed represents the aggregate amount of such contingent liabilities for which the Group as an investor is liable. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the joint ventures being more or less favourable than currently expected. The Group is not contingently liable for the liabilities of other venturers in its joint ventures.



				(ii)    The amount disclosed represents the Group's share of contingent liabilities of associates. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the associates being more or less favourable than currently expected. 
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Analysis



						Company name



				Presentation currency:

				High level impact assessment



				In May 2011, the IASB issued a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures, including IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early application permitted. However, if an entity wishes early application, it should apply all of the five standards early at the same time.  Entities are encouraged to provide information set out in IFRS 12 earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 

This guide provides a high level impact assessment of the application of the requirements of IFRS 10 and IFRS 11. 


				Summarise below the financial results of business as currently stated



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Income from associate

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Investment in associate

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities





				IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

				A company should assess whether based on the changes to the definition of control, it should reassess its decision to consolidate an entity or not. The concept of de facto control has been written into IFRS 10 and could result in entities with less than 50% ownership having control, depending on the size of the shareholdings of the other investors.





				Deconsolidate a business

				Summarise below the financial results of business which will no longer be consolidated



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Consolidate a business

				Summarise below the financial results of a previously unconsolidated business which be consolidated on the application of IFRS 10



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				IFRS 11 Joint arrangements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

				One of the biggest changes that have arisen as result of the new IFRS 11, is that jointly controlled entities (joint ventures) will no longer be proportionately consolidated. An entity will need to assess all entities previously accounted for as jointly controlled entities to consider their classification as a joint operation or a joint venture under the new and revised standards.





				Current accounting treatment

				Summarise below the financial results of proportionately consolidated joint ventures, joint operations and jointly controlled assets per the consolidated financial statements



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Joint ventures

				Summarise below the entities previously proportionately consolidated results of the joint venture



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Joint operations 

				Summarise below the entities exposure to assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a joint operation



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				Jointly controlled assets

				Summarise below the entities exposure to jointly controlled assets



				Revenue

				Gross Profit

				Expenses

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent



				Non-current assets

				Current assets

				Non-current liabilities

				Current liabilities



				High level impact assessment

				Based on the information collated above, we have:
- deconsolidated businesses no longer controlled by the entity
- consolidated previously unconsolidated businesses controlled by the entity under IFRS 10
- removed the impacts of proportionate consolidation
- Included the impact of joint arrangements





				Indicative accounting treatment				% change



				Revenue		- 0		ERROR

				Gross Profit		- 0		ERROR

				Expenses		- 0		ERROR

				Income from associates and joint ventures		- 0		ERROR

				Net profit attributed to owners of the parent		- 0		ERROR



				Non-current assets		- 0		ERROR

				Investment in associates and joint ventures		- 0		ERROR

				Current assets		- 0		ERROR

				Non-current liabilities		- 0		ERROR

				Current liabilities		- 0		ERROR
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Intro

				Introduction



				The IASB has revised many of the standards and requirements relating to group accounting. These are detailed in the new IFRS 10, 11 and 12 standards.



				IFRS 10 is the new standard which provides guidance on when a subsidiary should be consolidated. IFRS 10 builds on the control guidance that existed in IAS 27 and SIC 12, adding additional context, explanation and application guidance that is consistent with the definition of control. IFRS 10 requires an assessment of whether the parent has the power to direct the relevant activities of an entity so as to obtain benefits. These entities are then consolidated by the parent. Once it has been determined under IFRS 10 that an entity should be consolidated, the actual mechanics of the consolidation remain the same as under IAS 27.



				IFRS 11 is the new standard on joint arrangements which replaces IAS 31 Joint Ventures. Where joint control exists, the investor is required to assess whether the joint arrangement is a joint operation or a joint venture, based on the legal structure of the investee and the investor’s rights to and obligations for the underlying assets and liabilities of the investee. Joint operations are accounted for in the financial statements of the investor by including the investor’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the investee in the investor’s financial statements while joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.



				IFRS 12 is the new standard which contains the disclosure requirements for interests that an entity holds in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.



				This template reporting pack is intended to assist companies in modifying their reporting packs to comply with the requirements of IFRS 12 and related standards.



				The changes needed to the reporting pack are:

				Critical judgements

				Earnings per share

				General information of subsidiaries

				Material Non-controlling interests

				Change of interest

				Associates

				Joint ventures

				Joint operations

				Disposal of subsidiaries

				Commitments for expenditure

				Contingent liabilities



				Notes to assist in the completion of the pack have been given where necessary

				References to the applicable requirements in the IFRS's have also been included.









Critical Jugdements 

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Instructions:

				IFRS 12.7 requires entities to disclose information about significant judgments and assumptions they have made in determining (i) whether they have control of another entity, (ii) whether they have joint control of an arrangement or significant influence over another entity, and (iii) the type of arrangement when the arrangement has been structured through a separate vehicle.
The table below should be completed for all critical judgements made in determining the type of control or arrangement of entities or separate vehicles.





				IFRS 12.7, .9

				Critical judgments in applying accounting policies



				Name of Investment		% Ownership		Type of Control/Arrangement		Reason 

								eg: Control, Joint Control,

								Significant Influence





















EPS

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:



				IAS 8.28(f)(ii)

				Impact of changes in accounting policies

				Changes in the Group's accounting policies during the year are described in detail in note "XX". To the extent that those changes have had an impact on results reported for 2013 and 2012, they have had an impact on the amounts reported for earnings per share. 



				The following table summarises that effect on both basic and diluted earnings per share.



						Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 				Increase/ (decrease) in basic
earnings per share
				Increase / (decrease) in diluted
earnings per share


						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

						CU'000		CU'000		Cents per share		Cents per share		Cents per share		Cents per share

				Changes in accounting policies relating to:

				- Application of IFRS 10 (see note "XX") 

				- Application of IFRS 11 (see note "XX") 

				- Others (please specify)

						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				NOTE - Headline earnings per share:

				IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 are required to be applied retrospectively.
The application of these standards may result in a change to the number of subsidiaries to be consolidated and the number of joint ventures/operations to be equity accounted/share of the joint operation recognised.
This may result in a change in the earnings of these entities being recognised in the holding company's books and in turn will impact on earnings per share (EPS).
The effect on profits and EPS disclosed above is the difference between the amounts reported under the old IFRS requirements and the new IFRS 10 and 11 requirements.
This in turn will impact on headline earnings per share (HEPS), as EPS is the starting point of the calculation for HEPS.











General Info of Subs

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:



				Instructions:

				IFRS 12.10(a) requires entities to disclose the composition of the group. Disclosures of information about the Group's material subsidiaries (wholly- and non-wholly-owned subsidiaries) must be made. The below illustrates one example as to how the requirements set out in IFRS 12 can be met. When local laws or regulations require the list of investments in subsidiaries to be disclosed, the above disclosures should be modified to comply with the additional local requirements.





				General information of subsidiaries

				Details of the Group's material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are set out below. 



																		Guidance

				Name of subsidiary 

		Principal activity		Place of incorporation and operation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group								As a minimum the  following should be disclosed below for all material subsidiaries: 

										12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/11				- Name of the subsidiary

																		- The subsidiary's principal activity

																		- The subsidiary's place of incorporation and operation

																		- The holding companies proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held per year.

















				IFRS 12.10(a),12.4,12.B4(a),12.B5-B6


				At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of these subsidiaries operate in "insert place of incorporation and operation". The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: 

																		For immaterial subsidiaries the place of incorporation and operation for the majority of the subsidiaries must be disclosed.
Immaterial subsidiaries may then be grouped and the following should be disclosed for each group of immaterial subsidiaries:



				Principal activity		Place of business				Number of Subsidiaries								- The principal activity of the group of subsidiaries

										12/31/13				12/31/12				- The place of business of the group of subsidiaries

						-												- The number of subsidiaries in that group

				1		-

						-

										0				0



						-

				2		-

						-

										0				0







Material NCI

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:





				IFRS 12.10(a)(ii), 12.12


				Details of non-wholly subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests

				The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:  



				Guidance

				The name of all subsidiaries, their place of incorporation and principal business, the group's interest in the subsidiary, profit or loss allocated to non-controlling interests and accumulated non-controlling interest amount should be completed in the table below:







				Name of 
subsidiary
		Place of incorporation and principal place of business		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by non-controlling interests						Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling interests 								Accumulated non-controlling interests 

								12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/11		12/31/13		12/31/12				12/31/11		12/31/13		12/31/12				12/31/11

														CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000



				xxxxx (i)













				IFRS 12.9(b)

				Note:

				(i) "Insert reason for control of subsidiaries that the Company owns less than 50% of the ownership interest but still exert control over."





				IFRS 12.12(g), 12.B10, 12.B11


				Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. 



				Guidance

				The assets, liabilities, incomes, expenses and cash flow information for all subsidiaries should be disclosed in the table below:



										Subsidiary 1								Subsidiary 2								Subsidiary 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets



				Non-current assets



				Current liabilities



				Non-current liabilities



				Equity attributable to owners of the Company



				Non-controlling interests



										Subsidiary 1								Subsidiary 2								Subsidiary 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Revenue 



				Expenses



				Profit (loss) for the year



				Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

				Profit (loss) attributable to the non-controlling interests 

				Profit (loss) for the year						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

				Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

				Other comprehensive income for the year 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company						- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0

				Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0

				Total comprehensive income for the year 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				Dividends paid to non-controlling interests



				Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities



				Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 



				Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 



				Net cash inflow (outflow) 						- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0























%Change,Signif Rest,Fin Supp 

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:



				IFRS 12.18																		Guidance

				Change of interest in a subsidiary																		For each change in the interest of a subsidiary the following should be disclosed:

				"Insert description of change in interest"																		A description of the change of interest should be disclosed





												CU'000

				Proceeds from disposal																		- Proceeds from the disposal

				Transfer to Non Controlling Interest																		- Transfers to non controlling interest

				Difference to Retained Earnings								0										- The difference between the proceeds received and the transfer to non controlling interest recognised in retained earnings





				IFRS 12.13

				Significant restrictions



				Instructions:

				When there are significant restrictions on the Company's or its subsidiaries' ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions. Please see IFRS 12.13 for details



				IFRS 12.14-17

				Financial support



				Instructions:

				When the Group gives financial support to a consolidated structured entity, the nature and risks (including the type and amount of support provided) should be disclosed in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.14 – 17 for details.







Associates

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Details of material associates 

				Details of each of the Group's material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 



				Guidance

				The name of all associates, their principal activity, place of incorporation and operation and the  group's interest in the associate should be completed in the table below:



				Name of associate

		Principal activity		Place of incorporation and operation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group

										12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/12



				xxxxxx(i)

















				IFRS 12.21(a)(iv), 12.22(b), 12.21(b)(iii),12.9(e)

				Note:

				(i)"Insert reason for significant influence of subsidiaries that the Company owns less than 20% of the ownership interest but still equity account as an associate. Also descriptions where voting rights differ from ownership interests and why . Where year ends differ need to state this, with reasons why reporting date cannot be changed to holding companies year end. "



				IFRS 12.B14

				Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's material associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 

				IFRS 12.21(b)(i)

				All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements



				Guidance

				The assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses for all associates should be disclosed in the table below:



										Associate 1								Associate 2								Associate 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

				IFRS 12.21(b)(ii), 12.B12, 12.B14						CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets



				Non-current assets



				Current liabilities



				Non-current liabilities





				Revenue



				Profit or loss from continuing operations



				Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				Profit (loss) for the year						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Other comprehensive income for the year 



				Total comprehensive income for the year 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Dividends received from the associate during the year 



				IFRS 12.B14(b)

				Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  



				Guidance

				The net assets of the associate, proportion of the groups ownership interest, goodwill and any other adjustments to the carrying amount of the groups interest should be completed in the table below:



										Associate 1								Associate 2								Associate 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				Net assets of the associate

				Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the associate

				Goodwill 

				Other adjustments (please specify) 



				Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.21(c)(ii), 12.B16


				Guidance

				The group's share of all profits from continuing operations, profits from discontinued operations, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income in associates that are not individually materially should be completed below:



				Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The Group's share of profit (loss) from continuing operations



				The Group's share of post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				The Group's share of other comprehensive income 



				The Group's share of total comprehensive income						- 0		- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.22(c)

				Guidance

				The group's share of all unrecognised losses for the year and cumulative share of unrecognised losses for its interest in associates should be disclosed below:



				Unrecognised share of losses of an associate						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year 



				Cumulative share of loss of an associate



				IAS 28.25

				Guidance

				When a group disposes of an interest in an associate the group should disclose the following below: a description of the change in interest, the proceeds on disposal, fair value of the investment and percentage holding retained by the group, carrying amount of the investment on the date of the loss of significant influence and the gain recognised. Further the current tax and deferred tax expense impact of the disposal should be disclosed.





				Change in ownership interest in an associate 

				"Insert description of change in interest"



				This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain in profit or loss, calculated as follows.

										CU'000

				Proceeds of disposal

				Plus: fair value of investment retained (XX%)

				Less: carrying amount of investment on the date of loss of significant influence



				Gain recognised						- 0



				The gain recognised in the current year comprises a realised profit of CU                 (being the proceeds of CU             less CU             carrying amount of the interest disposed of) and an unrealised profit of CU              (being the fair value less the carrying amount of the    % interest retained). A current tax expense of CU         arose on the gain realised in the current year, and a deferred tax expense of CU                has been recognised in respect of the portion of the profit recognised that is not taxable until the remaining interest is disposed of. 



				IFRS 12.22(a)

				Significant restrictions

				Instructions:

				When there are significant restrictions on the ability of associates to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.22(a) for details.







Joint Ventures

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Investment in joint venture



				Details of material joint venture

				IFRS 12.21(a)

				Details of the Group's material joint venture at the end of the reporting period is as follows:



				Guidance

				The name of all joint ventures, their principal activity, place of incorporation and operation and the  group's interest in the joint venture should be completed in the table below:



				Name of joint operation		Principal activity		Place of incorporation and operation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group

										12/31/13		12/31/12		12/31/12













				IFRS 12.B14

				Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 

				IFRS 12.21(b)(i)

				The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. 



				Guidance

				The assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses for all joint ventures should be disclosed in the table below:



										JV 1								JV 2								JV 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

				IFRS 12.21(b)(ii),12.B12, 12.B14
						CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets



				Non-current assets



				Current liabilities



				Non-current liabilities



				The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:  



				Cash and cash equivalents 



				Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)



				Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)





				Revenue



				Profit or loss from continuing operations



				Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				Profit (loss) for the year						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Other comprehensive income for the year 



				Total comprehensive income for the year 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0		- 0		- 0



				Dividends received from the joint venture during the year 



				IFRS 12.B13

				The above profit (loss) for the year include the following:  



				Depreciation and amortisation 



				Interest income



				Interest expense



				IFRS 12.B14(b)

				Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  



				Guidance

				The net assets of the joint venture, proportion of the groups ownership interest, goodwill and any other adjustments to the carrying amount of the groups interest should be completed in the table below:



										JV 1								JV 2								JV 3

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11				Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				Net assets of the joint venture 

				Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the joint venture

				Goodwill 

				Other adjustments (please specify) 



				Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 						- 0		- 0		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



				IFRS 12.21(c)(i),12.B16


				Guidance

				The group's share of all profits from continuing operations, profits from discontinued operations, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income in joint ventures that are not individually materially should be completed below:



				Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually material						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/11

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The Group's share of profit (loss) from continuing operations



				The Group's share of post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations



				The Group's share of other comprehensive income 



				The Group's share of total comprehensive income						- 0		- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.22(c)

				Guidance

				The group's share of all unrecognised losses for the year and cumulative share of unrecognised losses for its interest in joint ventures should be disclosed below:



				Unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture						Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000		CU'000

				The unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture for the year 



				Cumulative share of loss of a joint venture



				IFRS 12.22(a)

				Significant restrictions

				Instructions:

				When there are significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.22(a) for details







Joint Operation

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				IFRS 12.21(a)

				Joint Operations

																Guidance

				Joint operation name		% ownership		Earning entitlement		Description						For each joint operation of the entity the following should be disclosed:

																- Name of the joint operation

																- Percentage ownership of the joint operation

																- Earnings entitlement of the entity from the joint operation

																- Description of the joint operation and its activities











Disposal of Subsidiary

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:														Guidance

				Disposal of subsidiary														For each disposal of an interest in a subsidiary the following should be disclosed:

				On "insert date", the Group disposed of "insert name of subsidiary" . 														- Date of sale and name of subsidiary sold

				IAS 7.40(a),(b)

				Consideration received

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000						- Breakdown of the consideration received from the sale of subsidiary

				Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

				Deferred sales proceeds (note XX)



				Total consideration received						- 0		- 0



				IAS 7.40(d)

				Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control was lost														- Breakdown of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary sold

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000



				Current assets

				Cash and cash equivalents

				Trade receivables

				Inventories



				Non-current assets

				Property, plant and equipment

				Goodwill 



				Current liabilities

				Payables



				Non-current liabilities

				Borrowings 

				Deferred tax liabilities



				Net assets disposed of 						- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.19

				Gain on disposal of subsidiary

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000						- Calculation of the gain on disposal of the subsidiary as follows:

				Consideration received						- 0		- 0						+ consideration received

				Net assets disposed of						- 0		- 0						- net assets disposed of

				Non-controlling interests														+ non-controlling interests

				Cumulative gain/loss on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified from equity on loss of control of subsidiary														+ gain or - loss, on transfer of available for sale financial assets reclassified from equity on disposal of the subsidiary

				Cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of the subsidiary and related hedging instruments reclassified from equity to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiary 														+ gain or - loss, on cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of the subsidiary and related hedging instruments reclassified from equity on disposal of the subsidiary



				Gain on disposal						- 0		- 0



				IFRS 12.19(b)

				The gain on disposal is included in the profit for the year from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.



				IAS 7.40(c)

				Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000						- Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary as follows

				Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents						- 0		- 0						+ consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

				Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of														- cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary disposed of



										- 0		- 0







Commitments for Expenditure

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				Commitments for expenditure																								Guidance

				IFRS 12.23(a), 12.B18-19

				The Group's commitments, including its share of commitments made jointly with other joint venturers relating to its joint venture, xxxxxxxx , is as follows:																								An entity must disclose the following commitments for all joint ventures it has investments in:

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000

				Commitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment																								- to acquire property, plant and equipment



				Commitments to provide loans																								- to provide loans



				Commitments to acquire other venturer's ownership interest when a particular event occurs or does not occur in the future (please specify what the particular event is) 																								- to acquire the other venturer's ownership interest



				Others (please specify)																								- Other commitments from the joint venture











Contingent Liabilities

				Entity Name:		Company name

				Reporting currency:

				Period end:

				IFRS 12.23(b)

				Contingent liabilities and contingent assets														Guidance

																		An entity must disclose the following contingent liabilities for entities it has investments in:

										Year ended 31/12/13		Year ended 31/12/12

										CU'000		CU'000

				Contingent liabilities incurred by the Group arising from its interests in a  joint venture (i)														- Contingent liabilities incurred by the group arising from its interests in join ventures



				Contingent liabilities incurred by the Group arising from its interests in associates (please disclose the details) 														- Contingent liabilities incurred by the group arising from its interests in associates



				Group's share of associates' contingent liabilities (ii)														- Share of contingent liabilities from interests in associates



				Group's share of joint venture's contingent liabilities (please specify the details)														- Share of contingent liabilities from interests join ventures





				(i)     A number of contingent liabilities have arisen as a result of the Group's interests in joint ventures. The amount disclosed represents the aggregate amount of such contingent liabilities for which the Group as an investor is liable. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the joint ventures being more or less favourable than currently expected. The Group is not contingently liable for the liabilities of other venturers in its joint ventures.



				(ii)    The amount disclosed represents the Group's share of contingent liabilities of associates. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the associates being more or less favourable than currently expected. 
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Annual Financial Statement Model Disclosure



[bookmark: _GoBack]IFRSs 10, 11 and 12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

(as issued by the IASB in May 2011)



In May 2011, the IASB issued a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures, including IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 



These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early application permitted. However, if an entity wishes early application, it should apply all of the five standards early at the same time.  Entities are encouraged to provide information set out in IFRS 12 earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 



This guide gives you examples of the application of the requirements of these five standards. 



Key assumptions used in the preparation of this guide are as follows: 



· International GAAP Holdings Limited has adopted these five standards in the current year. 1 January 2013 is considered to be the date of initial application of these five standards. For illustrative purposes, the application of these five standards has resulted in (a) an investee that was not previously consolidated becoming a subsidiary of the Group and (b) a joint arrangement that was previously classified as a jointly controlled entity and was accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method being classified as a joint venture under the new standard and is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. These changes have resulted in changes in amounts reported in the financial statements (see note 2 for more detail). 



· These five standards have been applied in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. Amounts for the comparative period are restated, where appropriate. Therefore, a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period in accordance with IAS 1.10(f) is included. 



· This guide does not include a full set of financial statements; only the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and certain notes affected by these five standards are included. Regarding the statement of comprehensive income, one single statement presentation method is used and expenses are aggregated according to their function. In addition, regarding the statement of cash flows, the indirect method is used to report cash flows from operating activities. 



· This guide does not include separate financial statements for the parent, which may be required by local laws or regulations, or may be prepared voluntarily. When an entity presents separate financial statements that comply with IFRSs, the requirements of IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements will apply. Separate statements of comprehensive income, financial position, changes in equity and cash flows for the parent will generally be required, together with supporting notes.



For details of the disclosure and presentation requirements of these five standards, readers should refer to Deloitte's 2013 IFRS Compliance, Presentation and Disclosure Checklist. This Checklist can be downloaded from Deloitte's web site www.iasplus.com. 



Note that in this guide, we have frequently included line items for which a nil amount is shown, so as to illustrate items that, although not applicable to International GAAP Holdings Limited, are commonly encountered in practice. This does not mean that we have illustrated all possible disclosures. Nor should it be taken to mean that, in practice, entities are required to display line items for such ‘nil' amounts.
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 December 2013	



		

		

		Notes

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		(restated)



		

		Continuing operations



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		

		

		140,934

		

		152,075



		

		Cost of sales

		

		

		(87,688)

		

		(91,645)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Gross profit

		

		

		53,246

		

		60,430



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Investment income

		

		

		3,633

		

		2,396



		

		Other gains and losses

		

		

		647

		

		1,005



		

		Distribution expenses

		

		

		(5,118)

		

		(4,640)



		

		Marketing expenses

		

		

		(3,278)

		

		(2,234)



		

		Administration expenses

		

		

		(12,936)

		

		(17,090)



		

		Other expenses 

		

		

		(2,801)

		

		(2,612)



		

		Finance costs

		

		

		(4,420)

		

		(6,025)



		

		Share of profits of associates

		20

		

		866

		

		1,209



		IAS 1.82(c)

		Share of profits of a joint venture

		20A

		

		337

		

		242



		

		Gain recognised on disposal of interest in former associate

		20

		

		581

		

		-



		

		Other [describe] 

		

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit before tax 

		

		

		30,757

		

		32,681



		

		Income tax expense

		

		

		(11,626)

		

		(11,885)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year from continuing operations

		

		

		19,131

		

		20,796



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Discontinued operations



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year from discontinued operations

		

		

		8,310

		

		9,995



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

		

		

		27,441

		

		30,791



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income, net of income tax



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

		

		

		(39)

		

		85



		

		Net gain on available-for-sale financial assets

		

		

		66

		

		57



		

		Net gain on hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges

		

		

		39

		

		20



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Gain on revaluation of properties

		

		

		-

		

		1,150



		

		Share of other comprehensive income of associates

		

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

		

		

		66

		

		1,312



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

		

		

		27,507

		

		32,103



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit attributable to: 

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Owners of the Company

		

		

		23,049

		

		27,564



		

			Non-controlling interests

		

		

		4,392

		

		3,227



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		27,441

		

		30,791



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to:

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Owners of the Company

		

		

		23,115

		

		28,876



		

			Non-controlling interests

		

		

		4,392

		

		3,227



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		27,507

		

		32,103
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 - continued



		

		

		Note

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		

		

		(restated)



		

		Earnings per share

		14

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		From continuing and discontinued operations

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Basic (cents per share)

		

		

			132.2

		

			137.0



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Diluted (cents per share)

		

		

			115.5

		

			130.5



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		From continuing operations

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Basic (cents per share)

		

		

			84.5

		

			87.3



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

			Diluted (cents per share)

		

		

			74.0

		

			83.2



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	The above illustrates the presentation of comprehensive income in one statement. The expenses above are aggregated according to their function. 
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of financial position 
at 31 December 2013



		

		

		Notes

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12

		

		01/01/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		(restated)

		

		(restated)



		

		Assets

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Property, plant and equipment

		

		

		105,215

		

		132,184

		

		157,212



		

		Investment property

		

		

		1,968

		

		1,941

		

		170



		

		Goodwill

		

		

		20,485

		

		24,260

		

		24,120



		

		Other intangible assets

		

		

		9,739

		

		11,325

		

		12,523



		

		Investments in associates

		20

		

		5,402

		

		5,590

		

		4,406



		IAS 1.54(e)

		Investment in a joint venture 

		20A

		

		3,999

		

		3,662

		

		3,420



		

		Deferred tax assets 

		

		

		2,083

		

		1,964

		

		1,843



		

		Finance lease receivables

		

		

		830

		

		717

		

		739



		

		Other financial assets

		

		

		10,771

		

		9,655

		

		7,850



		

		Other assets 

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total non-current assets

		

		

		160,492

		

		191,298

		

		212,283



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Inventories

		

		

		30,673

		

		28,132

		

		28,928



		

		Trade and other receivables

		

		

		18,869

		

		13,744

		

		12,708



		

		Finance lease receivables

		

		

		198

		

		188

		

		182



		

		Amounts due from customers under construction contracts

		

		

		240

		

		230

		

		697



		

		Other financial assets

		

		

		8,757

		

		6,949

		

		5,528



		

		Current tax assets

		

		

		125

		

		60

		

		81



		

		Other assets  

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Cash and bank balances

		

		

		24,096

		

		20,278

		

		9,382



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		82,958

		

		69,581

		

		57,506



		

		Assets classified as held for sale

		

		

		22,336

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total current assets

		

		

		105,294

		

		69,581

		

		57,506



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total assets

		

		

		265,786

		

		260,879

		

		269,789



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	IAS 1.10(f) requires that an entity should present a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements. In this guide, the application of the package of the five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures has resulted in retrospective restatement of items in the financial statements (see note 2). Therefore, this guide includes the additional statement of financial position. 
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of financial position 
at 31 December 2013 – continued



		


		

		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12

		

		01/01/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		(restated)

		

		(restated)



		

		Equity and liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Capital and reserves

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Issued capital

		

		

		32,439

		

		48,672

		

		48,672



		

		Reserves

		

		

		4,237

		

		3,376

		

		1,726



		

		Retained earnings

		

		

		110,805

		

		94,909

		

		73,824



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		147,481

		

		146,957

		

		124,222



		

		Amounts recognised directly in equity relating to assets classified as held for sale

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Equity attributable to owners of the Company

		

		

		147,481

		

		146,957

		

		124,222



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests

		

		

		26,761

		

		22,058

		

		18,831



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total equity

		

		

		174,242

		

		169,015

		

		143,053



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Borrowings 

		

		

		13,560

		

		25,886

		

		22,072



		

		Other financial liabilities

		

		

		15,001

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Retirement benefit obligation

		

		

		2,861

		

		2,023

		

		2,968



		

		Deferred tax liabilities

		

		

		6,609

		

		5,645

		

		4,445



		

		Provisions

		

		

		2,294

		

		2,231

		

		4,102



		

		Deferred revenue

		

		

		59

		

		165

		

		41



		

		Other liabilities

		

		

		180

		

		270

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total non-current liabilities

		

		

		40,564

		

		36,220

		

		33,628



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Trade and other payables

		

		

		15,659

		

		20,422

		

		51,957



		

		Amounts due to customers under construction contracts 

		

		

		36

		

		15

		

		245



		

		Borrowings 

		

		

		22,446

		

		25,600

		

		33,618



		

		Other financial liabilities

		

		

		116

		

		18

		

		-



		

		Current tax liabilities

		

		

		5,328

		

		5,927

		

		4,990



		

		Provisions

		

		

		3,356

		

		3,195

		

		2,235



		

		Deferred revenue

		

		

		265

		

		372

		

		63



		

		Other liabilities

		

		

		90

		

		95

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		47,296

		

		55,644

		

		93,108



		

		Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

		

		

		3,684

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total current liabilities

		

		

		50,980

		

		55,644

		

		93,108



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total liabilities

		

		

		91,544

		

		91,864

		

		126,736



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total equity and liabilities

		

		

		265,786

		

		260,879

		

		269,789



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		













		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 31 December 2013



		

		

		Share capital

		

		Share premium

		

		General reserve

		

		Properties revaluation reserve

		

		Investments revaluation reserve

		

		Equity-settled employee benefits reserve

		

		Cash flow hedging reserve

		

		Foreign currency translation reserve

		

		Option premium on convertible notes

		

		Retained earnings

		

		Attributable to owners of the parent

		

		Non-controlling interests

		

		Total



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Balance at 1 January 2012

		23,005

		

		25,667

		

		807

		

		51

		

		470

		

		-

		

		258

		

		140

		

		-

		

		73,824

		

		124,222

		

		17,242

		

		141,464



		

		Adjustments (note 2)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,589

		

		1,589



		

		Balance at 1 January 2012 (restated)

		23,005

		

		25,667

		

		807

		

		51

		

		470

		

		-

		

		258

		

		140

		

		-

		

		73,824

		

		124,222

		

		18,831

		

		143,053



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		27,564

		

		27,564

		

		3,227

		

		30,791



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,150

		

		57

		

		-

		

		20

		

		85

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,312

		

		-

		

		1,312



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,150

		

		57

		

		-

		

		20

		

		85

		

		-

		

		27,564

		

		28,876

		

		3,227

		

		32,103



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Recognition of share-based payments

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		338

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		338

		

		-

		

		338



		

		Payment of dividends

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(6,479)

		

		(6,479)

		

		-

		

		(6,479)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Balance at 31 December 2012 (restated)

		23,005

		

		25,667

		

		807

		

		1,201

		

		527

		

		338

		

		278

		

		225

		

		-

		

		94,909

		

		146,957

		

		22,058

		

		169,015



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		23,049

		

		23,049

		

		4,392

		

		27,441



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		66

		

		-

		

		39

		

		(39)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		66

		

		-

		

		66



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		66

		

		-

		

		39

		

		(39)

		

		-

		

		23,049

		

		23,115

		

		4,392

		

		27,507



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Payment of dividends

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(6,635)

		

		(6,635)

		

		-

		

		(6,635)



		

		Additional non-controlling interests arising on the acquisition of Subsix Limited 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		127

		

		127



		

		Additional non-controlling interests relating to outstanding share-based payment transactions of Subsix Limited 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		

		

		5

		

		5



		

		Disposal of partial interest in Subone Limited

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		34

		

		34

		

		179

		

		213



		

		Recognition of share-based payments

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		206

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		206

		

		-

		

		206



		

		Issue of ordinary shares under employee share option plan

		314

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		314

		

		-

		

		314



		

		Issue of ordinary shares for consulting services performed

		3

		

		5

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		8

		

		-

		

		8



		

		Issue of convertible non-participating preference shares

		100

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		100

		

		-

		

		100



		

		Issue of convertible notes 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		834

		

		-

		

		834

		

		-

		

		834



		

		Share issue costs

		-

		

		(6)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(6)

		

		-

		

		(6)



		

		Buy-back of ordinary shares

		(5,603)

		

		(10,853)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(555)

		

		(17,011)

		

		-

		

		(17,011)



		

		Share buy-back costs

		-

		

		(277)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(277)

		

		-

		

		(277)



		

		Transfer to retained earnings 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(3)

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		3

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Income tax relating to transactions with owners

		

		

		84

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		(242)

		

		-

		

		(158)

		

		-

		

		(158)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Balance at 31 December 2013

		17,819

		

		14,620

		

		807

		

		1,198

		

		593

		

		544

		

		317

		

		186

		

		592

		

		110,805

		

		147,481

		

		26,761

		

		174,242
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7

		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2013	



		


		

		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		(restated)



		

		Cash flows from operating activities

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit for the year 

		

		

		27,441

		

		30,791



		

		Adjustments for: 

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

		

		

		14,786

		

		14,883



		

		Share of profits of associates

		

		

		(866)

		

		(1,209)



		

		Share of profits of a joint venture 

		

		

		(337)

		

		(242)



		

		Finance costs recognised in profit or loss

		

		

		4,420

		

		6,025



		

		Investment income recognised in profit or loss

		

		

		(3,633)

		

		(2,396)



		

		Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

		

		

		(6)

		

		(67)



		

		Gain arising on changes in fair value of investment property

		

		

		(30)

		

		(297)



		

		Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 

		

		

		(1,940)

		

		-



		

		Gain on disposal of interest in former associate

		

		

		(581)

		

		-



		

		Net (gain)/loss arising on financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss

		

		

		(125)

		

		-



		

		Net (gain)/loss arising on financial assets classified as held for trading

		

		

		(156)

		

		(72)



		

		Net loss/(gain) arising on financial liabilities classified as held for trading 

		

		

		51

		

		-



		

		Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges

		

		

		(89)

		

		(68)



		

		Net (gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets

		

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables

		

		

		63

		

		430



		

		Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables

		

		

		(103)

		

		-



		

		Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

		

		

		14,179

		

		17,350



		

		Impairment of non-current assets 

		

		

		1,439

		

		-



		

		Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

		

		

		(819)

		

		(474)



		

		Expense recognised in respect of equity-settled share-based payments

		

		

		206

		

		338



		

		Expense recognised in respect of shares issued in exchange for consulting services

		

		

		8

		

		-



		

		Amortisation of financial guarantee contracts

		

		

		6

		

		18



		

		Gain arising on effective settlement of claim against Subseven Limited

		

		

		(40)

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		53,874

		

		65,010



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Movements in working capital:

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

		

		

		1,130

		

		(3,253)



		

		(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from customers under construction contracts

		

		

		

(10)

		

		

467



		

		(Increase)/decrease in inventories

		

		

		(2,231)

		

		204



		

		(Increase)/decrease in other assets

		

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Decrease in trade and other payables

		

		

		(4,931)

		

		(28,464)



		

		Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to customers under construction contracts

		

		

		

21

		

		

(230)



		

		Increase/(decrease) in provisions

		

		

		224

		

		(941)



		

		(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue

		

		

		(213)

		

		43



		

		(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

		

		

		(95)

		

		365



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash generated from operations

		

		

		47,769

		

		33,201



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Interest paid

		

		

		(4,493)

		

		(6,106)



		

		Income taxes paid

		

		

		(13,910)

		

		(13,426)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash generated by operating activities

		

		

		29,366

		

		13,669
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 - continued	



		

		

		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		(restated)



		

		Cash flows from investing activities

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Payments to acquire financial assets

		

		

		(1,890)

		

		-



		

		Proceeds on sale of financial assets

		

		

		-

		

		51



		

		Interest received 

		

		

		2,315

		

		1,054



		

		Royalties and other investment income received

		

		

		1,137

		

		1,143



		

		Dividends received from associates

		

		

		30

		

		25



		

		Other dividends received

		

		

		156

		

		154



		

		Amounts advanced to related parties

		

		

		(738)

		

		(4,311)



		

		Repayments by related parties

		

		

		189

		

		1,578



		

		Payments for property, plant and equipment

		

		

		(21,932)

		

		(11,575)



		

		Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

		

		

		11,462

		

		21,245



		

		Payments for investment property

		

		

		(10)

		

		(1,532)



		

		Proceeds from disposal of investment property

		

		

		-

		

		58



		

		Payments for intangible assets

		

		

		(6)

		

		(358)



		

		Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

		

		

		(477)

		

		-



		

		Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary

		

		

		7,566

		

		-



		

		Net cash inflow on disposal of associate

		

		

		-

		

		120



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities

		

		

		(2,198)

		

		7,652



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash flows from financing activities

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company

		

		

		414

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from issue of convertible notes

		

		

		4,950

		

		-



		

		Payment for share issue costs

		

		

		(6)

		

		-



		

		Payment for buy-back of shares

		

		

		(17,011)

		

		-



		

		Payment for share buy-back costs

		

		

		(277)

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares

		

		

		15,000

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from issue of perpetual notes

		

		

		2,500

		

		-



		

		Payment for debt issue costs

		

		

		(595)

		

		-



		

		Proceeds from borrowings

		

		

		16,953

		

		24,798



		

		Repayment of borrowings

		

		

		(38,148)

		

		(23,417)



		

		Proceeds from government loans

		

		

		-

		

		3,000



		

		Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary that does not involve loss of control 

		

		

		213

		

		-



		

		Dividends paid on redeemable cumulative preference shares

		

		

		(613)

		

		-



		

		Dividends paid to owners of the Company

		

		

		(6,635)

		

		(6,479)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash used in financing activities

		

		

		(23,255)

		

		(2,098)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

		

		

		3,913

		

		19,223



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

		

		

		19,900

		

		861



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies

		

		

		(80)

		

		(184)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

		

		

		23,733

		

		19,900



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	The above illustrates the indirect method of reporting cash flows from operating activities.








		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		


		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013





		

		2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 





		

		2.1 New and revised IFRSs affecting amounts reported in the current year (and/or prior years)





		

		Note:	The note below gives an example of the impact of the application of IFRSs 10, 11 and 12 and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011). IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable as the model financial statements illustrate consolidated financial statements (not separate financial statements). 



		

		



		

		New and revised IFRSs affecting the reported financial performance and/or financial position





		IAS 8.28



		Application of new and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures 





		

		In May 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures were issued including IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. In the current year, the Group has applied these five standards. 



In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) together with the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 regarding the transitional guidance. IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.  



The impact of the application of these standards is set out below. 





		

		Impact of the application of IFRS 10 





		









IFRS 10.7











		IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements and SIC-12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an investor has control over an investee when a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and c) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been included in IFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over an investee. Some guidance included in IFRS 10 that deals with whether or not an investor that owns less than 50% of the voting rights in an investee has control over the investee is relevant to the Group. 



		

IFRS 10.8

		Specifically, the Group has a 45% ownership interest in C Plus Limited, which is listed on the stock exchange of A Land. The Group's 45% ownership interest in C Plus Limited gives the Group the same percentage of the voting rights in C Plus Limited. The Group's 45% ownership interest in C Plus Limited was acquired in June 2010 and there has been no change in the Group's ownership in C Plus Limited since then. The remaining 55% of the ordinary shares of C Plus Limited are owned by thousands of shareholders, none individually holding more than two per cent. 





		

		The directors of the Company made an assessment as at the date of initial application of IFRS 10 (i.e. 1 January 2013) as to whether or not the Group has control over C Plus Limited in accordance with the new definition of control and the related guidance set out in IFRS 10. The directors concluded that it has had control over C Plus Limited since the acquisition in June 2010 on the basis of the Group's absolute size of holding in C Plus Limited and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders. Therefore, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 10, C Plus Limited has been a subsidiary of the Company since June 2010. Previously, C Plus Limited was treated as an associate of the Group and accounted for using the equity method of accounting





		IFRS 10.C4(a)

		Comparative amounts for 2012 and the related amounts as at 1 January 2012 have been restated in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions set out in IFRS 10 (see the tables below for details). 







		

		



		

		



		

		



		









IFRS 11.14

IFRS 11.17









IFRS 11.15&16



		Impact of the application of IFRS 11 



IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control should be classified. SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers has been withdrawn upon the issuance of IFRS 11. Under IFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements – joint operations and joint ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under IFRS 11 is determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures had three types of joint arrangements – jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements under IAS 31 was primarily determined based on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was established through a separate entity was accounted for as a jointly controlled entity). 



		

		



		

		The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that each joint operator recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable Standards.





		

		The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the classification of the Group's investments in joint arrangements in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 11. The directors concluded that the Group's investment in JV Electronics Limited, which was classified as a jointly controlled entity under IAS 31 and was accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method, should be classified as a joint venture under IFRS 11 and accounted for using the equity method.





		IFRS 11.C2, C3

		The change in accounting of the Group's investment in JV Electronics Limited has been applied in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions set out in IFRS 11. Comparative amounts for 2012 have been restated to reflect the change in accounting for the Group's investment in JV Electronics Limited. The initial investment as at 1 January 2012 for the purposes of applying the equity method is measured as the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities that the Group had previously proportionately consolidated (see the tables below for details). Also, the directors of the Company performed an impairment assessment on the initial investment as at 1 January 2012 and concluded that no impairment loss is required. 







		

		Impact of the application of IFRS 12





		

		IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of IFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements (please see notes 4, 19, 20, 20A and 21 for details). 





		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 - continued





		



IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		



Impact on profit (loss) for the year of the application of IFRS 10

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year 

ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase in revenue

		2,140

		

		2,240



		

		Increase in cost of sales

		(1,141)

		

		(1,105)



		

		Increase in investment income

		25

		

		45



		

		Increase in distribution expenses 

		(86)

		

		(90)



		

		Increase in marketing expenses 

		(28)

		

		(30)



		

		Increase in administration expenses 

		(83)

		

		(88)



		

		Increase in finance costs 

		(20)

		

		(18)



		

		Increase in income tax expenses 

		(95)

		

		(110)



		

		Decrease in share of profits of associates 

		(320)

		

		(380)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year 

		392

		

		464



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year attributable to: 

		

		

		



		

		  Owners of the Company

		-

		

		-



		

		  Non-controlling interests

		392

		

		464



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		      392

		

		464



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		



IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		



Impact on profit (loss) for the year of the application of IFRS 11

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year 

ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Decrease in revenue

		(2,124)

		

		(2,005)



		

		Decrease in cost of sales

		1,350

		

		1,300



		

		Decrease in distribution expenses 

		55

		

		50



		

		Decrease in marketing expenses 

		55

		

		50



		

		Decrease in administration expenses 

		276

		

		323



		

		Decrease in finance costs 

		18

		

		16



		

		Decrease in income tax expenses 

		33

		

		24



		

		Increase in share of profits of a joint venture 

		337

		

		242



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year attributable to: 

		

		

		



		

		  Owners of the Company

		-

		

		-



		

		  Non-controlling interests

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 - continued





		



IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		



Impact on profit (loss) for the year of the application of the 	above new and revised Standards

		

Year ended 31/12/13

		

		

Year 

ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase in revenue

		16

		

		235



		

		Decrease in cost of sales

		209

		

		195



		

		Increase in investment income

		25

		

		45



		

		Increase in distribution expenses 

		(31)

		

		(40)



		

		Decrease in marketing expenses 

		27

		

		20



		

		Decrease in administration expenses 

		193

		

		235



		

		Increase in finance costs 

		(2)

		

		(2)



		

		Increase in income tax expenses 

		(62)

		

		(86)



		

		Increase in share of profits of a joint venture

		337

		

		242



		

		Decrease in share of profits of associates 

		(320)

		

		(380)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year 

		392

		

		464



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year attributable to: 

		

		

		



		

		  Owners of the Company

		-

		

		-



		

		  Non-controlling interests

		392

		

		464



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		  392

		

		464



		

		



		IAS 8.28(f)(i) IFRS 11.C5



		Impact on net assets and equity as at 	1 January 2012 of the application 	of the above new and revised 	Standards

		As at 01/01/12 as previously reported

		

		IFRS 10

adjustments

		

		IFRS 11 adjustments

		

		As at 01/01/12 as restated



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000..

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Property, plant and equipment

		161,058

		

		2,908

		

		(6,754)

		

		157,212



		

		Goodwill

		23,920

		

		200

		

		-

		

		24,120



		

		Investments in associates

		5,706

		

		(1,300)

		

		-

		

		4,406



		

		Investments in a joint venture

		-

		

		-

		..-

		3,420

		

		3,420



		

		Inventories 

		29,688

		

		240

		

		(1,000)

		

		28,928



		

		Trade and other receivables

		13,550

		

		350

		

		(1,192)

		

		12,708



		

		Cash and bank balances

		9,082

		

		300

		

		-

		

		9,382



		

		Borrowings – non-current

		(25,785)

		

		(500)

		

		4,213

		

		(22,072)



		

		Deferred tax liabilities

		(4,436)

		

		(209)

		

		200

		

		(4,445)



		

		Trade and other payables 

		(52,750)

		

		(300)

		

		1,093

		

		(51,957)



		

		Current tax liabilities

		(4,910)

		

		(100)

		

		20

		

		(4,990)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Impact on net assets 

		155,123

		

		1,589

		

		-

		

		156,712



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests 

		(17,242)

		

		(1,589)

		

		-

		

		(18,831)



		

		Others (please specify)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Impact on equity

		(17,242)

		

		(1,589)

		

		-

		

		(18,831)



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 - continued





		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		Impact on net assets and equity as at 31 December 2012 of the application of the above new and revised Standards

		As at 31/12/12 as previously reported

		

		IFRS 10

adjustments

		

		IFRS 11 adjustments

		

		As at 31/12/12 as restated



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Property, plant and equipment

		135,721

		

		3,317

		

		(6,854)

		

		132,184



		

		Goodwill

		24,060

		

		200

		

		-

		

		24,260



		

		Investments in associates

		7,270

		

		(1,680)

		

		-

		

		5,590



		

		Investments in a joint venture

		-

		

		-

		

		3,662

		

		3,662



		

		Inventories 

		28,982

		

		250

		

		(1,100)

		

		28,132



		

		Trade and other receivables

		14,658

		

		320

		

		(1,234)

		

		13,744



		

		Cash and bank balances

		19,778

		

		500

		

		-

		

		20,278



		

		Borrowings – non-current

		(29,807)

		

		(380)

		

		4,301

		

		(25,886)



		

		Deferred tax liabilities

		(5,657)

		

		(208)

		

		220

		

		(5,645)



		

		Trade and other payables 

		(21,220)

		

		(186)

		

		984

		

		(20,422)



		

		Current tax liabilities

		(5,868)

		

		(80)

		

		21

		

		(5,927)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Impact on net assets 

		167,917

		

		2,053

		

		-

		

		169,970



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests 

		(20,005)

		

		(2,053)

		

		-

		

		(22,058)



		

		Others (please specify)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Impact on equity

		(20,005)

		

		(2,053)

		

		-

		

		(22,058)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		Increase (decrease) in net assets and equity as at 31 December 2013 of the application of the above new and revised Standards

		

		

		IFRS 10

adjustments

		

		IFRS 11 adjustments

		

		Total



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in property, plant
    and equipment

		

		

		3,425

		

		(7,993)

		

		(4,568)



		

		Increase in goodwill

		

		

		200

		

		-

		

		200



		

		Decrease in investments in associates

		

		

		(2,000)

		

		-

		

		(2,000)



		

		Increase in investments in a joint 
    venture

		

		

		-

		

		3,999

		

		3,999



		

		Increase (decrease) in inventories 

		

		

		360

		

		(900)

		

		(540)



		

		Increase (decrease) in trade and other
    receivables

		

		

		520

		

		(900)

		

		(380)



		

		Increase in cash and bank balances

		

		

		650

		

		-

		

		650



		

		(Increase) decrease in borrowings 

		

		

		(220)

		

		4,528

		

		4,308



		

		(Increase) decrease in deferred tax
    liabilities

		

		

		(210)

		

		330

		

		120



		

		(Increase) decrease in trade and other 
    payables 

		

		

		(200)

		

		914

		

		714



		

		(Increase) decrease in current tax
    liabilities

		

		

		(80)

		

		22

		

		(58)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase (decrease) in net assets 

		

		

		2,445

		

		-

		

		2,445



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Increase in non-controlling interests 

		

		

		(2,445)

		

		-

		

		(2,445)



		

		Others (please specify)

		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Impact on equity

		

		

		(2,445)

		

		-

		

		(2,445)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		Impact on cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012 on the application of the above new and revised Standards

		

		

		IFRS 10

adjustments

		

		IFRS 11 adjustments

		

		Total



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating
    activities

		

		

		359

		

		(251)

		

		108



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing
    activities

		

		

		(39)

		

		339

		

		300



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing
    activities

		

		

		(120)

		

		(88)

		

		(208)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow)

		

		

		200

		

		-

		

		200



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 8.28(f)(i)

		Impact on cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2013 on the application of the above new and revised Standards

		

		

		IFRS 10

adjustments

		

		IFRS 11 adjustments

		

		Total



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating
    activities

		

		

		(63)

		

		(400)

		

		(463)



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing 
    activities 

		

		

		373

		

		627

		

		1,000



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing
    activities 

		

		

		(160)

		

		(227)

		

		(387)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow)

		

		

		150

		

		-

		

		150



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		







IFRS model financial statements 



		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		IAS 1.112(a), 117

		3. Significant accounting policies





		

		Note:	The note below only illustrates accounting policies regarding basis of consolidation, investments in associates, investments in joint arrangements, non-current assets classified held for sale and foreign currencies. 



		

		



		

		3.3 Basis of consolidation





		

		The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following: 





		IFRS 10.7

		· power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee); 



· exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 



· the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 



The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 





		

		



		

		When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including: 





		IFRS 10.B34-B38





IFRS 10.B46



IFRS 10.B40



IFRS 10.B41 & B42





		· the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders; 



· potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties; 



· rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 



· any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings. 





		IFRS 10.B80

		The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 





		











IFRS 10.B94



		Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. 



Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 





		IFRS 10.B87



		When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.





		IFRS 10.B86



		All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 









		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		3.3.1 Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries 





		

		Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.





		

		When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the relevant assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture. 





		

		3.6 Investments in associates and joint ventures 





		IAS 28.3

		An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.





		

		A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 





		IAS 28.20

















IAS 28.38-39

		The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.





		















IAS 28.40

IAS 28.42

		An investment is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.  On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in which the investment is acquired.



The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases. 





		IAS 28.22

IAS 28.23

		The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39 or IFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued. 





		IAS 28.24

		The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests. 





		IAS 28.25

		When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities. 





		

		When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group. 





		

		3.7 Investments in joint operations





		IFRS 11.7

IFRS 11.15

		A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 





		IFRS 11.20

		When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation: 





		

		· its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; 



· its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly; 



· its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation; 



· its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and 



· its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 





		IFRS 11.21







		The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. 





		IFRS 11.B34

		When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of assets), the Group is considered conducting the transaction with other parties to the joint operation, profits and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other parties' interests in the joint operation. 





		IFRS 11.B36

		When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party. 





		

		3.8 Non-current assets held for sale





		

		Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.





		

		When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.





		IAS 28.20

		When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met. Any retained portion of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale is accounted for using the equity method until disposal of the portion that is classified as held for sale takes place. 



After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with IAS 39 or IFRS 9 unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a joint venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method (see the accounting policy regarding investments in associates or joint ventures above). 





		

		Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.





		

		3.12 Foreign currencies





		

		In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.





		

		Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:





		

		exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;





		

		exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see 3.28 below for hedging accounting policies); and





		

		exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items. 





		

		For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into Currency Units using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).





		

		On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate of which the retained interest becomes a financial interest that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. 





		

		In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss. 



		

		



		

		Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity. 









		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty





		

		Note:	IFRS 12.7 requires entities to disclose information about significant judgements and assumptions they have made in determining (i) whether they have control of another entity, (ii) whether they have joint control of an arrangement or significant influence over another entity, and (iii) the type of arrangement when the arrangement has been structured through a separate vehicle. 



		

		4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies





		

		The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 4.2 below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.





		IFRS 12.7(a) 

IFRS 12.9(b)

		4.1.3 Control over C Plus Limited  





		

		Note 19 describes that C Plus Limited is a subsidiary of the Group although the Group has only 45 per cent ownership interest and voting rights in C Plus Limited. C Plus Limited is listed on the stock exchange of A Land. The Group has the 45 per cent ownership since June 2009 and the remaining 55 per cent of shareholdings are owned by thousands of shareholders that are unrelated to the Group. Details of C Plus Limited are set out in note 19. 



The directors assessed whether or not the Group has control over C Plus Limited based on whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of C Plus Limited unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors considered the Group's absolute size of holding in C Plus Limited and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders. After assessment, the directors concluded that the Group has sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of C Plus Limited and therefore the Group has control over C Plus Limited. 





		IFRS 12.7(a) 

IFRS 12.9(b)

		4.1.4 Control over Subtwo Limited  





		

		Note 19 describes that Subtwo Limited is a subsidiary of the Group although the Group only owns 45% ownership interest in Subtwo Limited. Based on the contractual arrangements between the Group and other investors, the Group has the power to appoint and remove the majority of the board of directors of Subtwo Limited that has the power to direct the relevant activities of Subtwo Limited. Therefore, the directors of the Group concluded that it has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of Subtwo Limited unilaterally and hence the Group has control over Subtwo Limited. 





		IFRS 12.7(b) 

IFRS 12.9(e)

		4.1.5 Significant influence over B Plus Limited  





		

		Note 20 describes that B Plus Limited is an associate of the Group although the Group only owns 20% ownership interest in B Plus Limited. The Group has significant influence over B Plus Limited by virtue of the contractual right to appoint two directors to the board of directors of that company. 





		IFRS 12.7(b), (c)

		4.1.7 Classification of JV Electronics Limited as a joint venture





		

		JV Electronics Limited is a limited liability company whose legal form confers separation between the parties to the joint arrangement and the company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.  Accordingly, JV Electronics Limited is classified as a joint venture of the Group. See note 20A for details.

























		

		14.3 Impact of changes in accounting policies





		IAS 8.28(f)(ii)

		Changes in the Group's accounting policies during the year are described in detail in note 2.1. To the extent that those changes have had an impact on results reported for 2013 and 2012, they have had an impact on the amounts reported for earnings per share. 





		

		The following table summarises that effect on both basic and diluted earnings per share.





		

		

		Increase (decrease) in profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 

		

		Increase (decrease) in basic
earnings per share

		

		Increase (decrease) in diluted
earnings per share



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		Cents per share

		

		Cents per share

		

		Cents per share

		

		Cents per share



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Changes in accounting policies relating to:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- Application of IFRS 10 (see note 2) 

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		- Application of IFRS 11 (see note 2)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		- Others (please specify)

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-







IFRS model financial statements 



		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		19. Subsidiaries





		

		



		IFRS 12.10(a)

		Details of the Group's material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are set out below. 





		

		Name of subsidiary 

		

		Principal activity

		

		Place of incorporation and operation

		

		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		Subzero Limited 

		

		Manufacture of toys

		

		A Land

		

		Nil



		

		100%



		

		Subtwo Limited 

		

		Manufacture of leisure goods



		

		A Land

		

		45%



		

		45%



		

		Subthree Limited 

		

		Construction of residential properties



		

		A Land

		

		100%



		

		100%



		

		Subfour Limited

		

		Manufacture of leisure goods



		

		B Land

		

		70%



		

		70%



		

		Subfive Limited

		

		Manufacture of electronic equipment



		

		C Land

		

		100%



		

		100%



		

		Subsix Limited

		

		Manufacture of leisure goods



		

		A Land

		

		80%



		

		Nil



		

		Subseven Limited

		

		Manufacture of leisure goods



		

		A Land

		

		100%

		

		Nil



		

		C Plus Limited 

		

		Manufacture of electronic equipment 

		

		A Land 

		

		45%

		

		45%



		

		





		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	IFRSs do not explicitly require an entity to disclose a list of its subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements. Nevertheless, local laws or regulations may require an entity to make such a disclosure. The above disclosure is for information only and may have to be modified to comply with the additional local requirements.  



		





IFRS 12.10(a)

IFRS 12.4

IFRS 12.B4(a) 

IFRS 12.B5-B6

		

19. 1 Composition of the Group



Information about the composition of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:



		

		Principal activities 

		

		Principal place of business

		

		

		Number of wholly-owned subsidiaries



		

		

		

		

		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Manufacture of electronic equipment 

		

		A Land 

		

		

		1

		

		1



		

		

		

		B Land 

		

		

		2

		

		2



		

		

		

		

		

		

		3

		

		3



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Manufacture of leisure goods 

		

		A Land 

		

		

		

2

		

		

2



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Construction 

		

		A Land 

		

		

		1

		

		1



		

		Toys manufacturing

		

		A Land

		

		

		-

		

		1



		

		

		

		

		

		

		6

		

		7



		

		Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests to the Group are disclosed in note 19.2 below.



		

		



		

		19. 2 Details of non-wholly subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests





		IFRS 12.10(a)(ii)

IFRS 12.12

		The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:  





		

		Note:	For illustrative purposes, the following non-wholly subsidiaries are assumed to have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.



		

				Name of 

subsidiary

		





Place of incorporation and principal place of business 

		





Proportion of ownership interests and voting rights held by non-controlling interests

		







Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling interests 

		









Accumulated non-controlling interests 



		

		

		31/12/13

		31/12/12

		31/12/13

		31/12/12

		31/12/13

		31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		CU'000

		CU'000

		CU'000

		CU'000



		Subtwo Limited (i)

		A Land

		

55%

		

55%

		

1,180

		

860

		

10,320

		

9,140



		Subfour Limited 

		B Land

		

30%

		

30%

		

1,020

		

980

		

10,680

		

9,660



		C Plus Limited (ii)

		A Land

		

55%

		

55%

		

392

		

464

		

2,445

		

2,053





		Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests

		3,316

		1,205



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

26,761

		

22,058









		

		



		IFRS 12.9(b)

		(i) The Group owns 45% equity shares of Subtwo Limited. However, based on the contractual arrangements between the Group and other investors, the Group has the power to appoint and remove the majority of the board of directors of Subtwo Limited. The relevant activities of Subtwo Limited are determined by the board of directors of Subtwo Limited based on simple majority votes. Therefore, the directors of the Group concluded that the Group has control over Subtwo Limited and Subtwo Limited is consolidated in these financial statements. 



(ii) C Plus Limited is listed on the stock exchange of A Land. Although the Group has only 45 per cent ownership in C Plus Limited, the directors concluded that the Group has a sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of C Plus Limited on the basis of the Group's absolute size of shareholding and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by other shareholders. The 55 per cent ownership interests in C Plus Limited are owned by thousands of shareholders that are unrelated to the Group, none individually holding more than 2 per cent.







		IFRS 12.12(g)

IFRS 12.B10

IFRS 12.B11

		Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. 





		

		Subtwo Limited 

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		22,132

		

		20,910



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		6,232

		

		6,331



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		(4,150)

		

		(5,373)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		(5,450)

		

		(5,250)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Equity attributable to owners of the Company

		8,444

		

		7,478



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests

		10,320

		

		9,140



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue 

		4,280

		

		4,132



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Expenses

		(2,134)

		

		(2,568)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		2,146

		

		1,564



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

		966

		

		704



		

		Profit (loss) attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		1,180

		

		860



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		2,146

		

		1,564



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

		-

		

		-



		

		Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

		966

		

		704



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		1,180

		

		860



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year 

		2,146

		

		1,564



		

		



		

		Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

		3,056

		

		1,321



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 

		(200)

		

		765



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 

		(2,465)

		

		(163)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) 

		391

		

		1,923



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Subfour Limited 

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		32,100

		

		31,400



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		10,238

		

		10,441



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		(1,617)

		

		(4,299)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		(5,121)

		

		(5,342)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Equity attributable to owners of the Company

		24,920

		

		22,540



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests

		10,680

		

		9,660



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		6,200

		

		6,101



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Expenses

		(2,800)

		

		(2,834)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		3,400

		

		3,267



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

		2,380

		

		2,287



		

		Profit (loss) attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		1,020

		

		980



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		3,400

		

		3,267



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

		-

		

		-



		

		Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

		2,380

		

		2,287



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		1,020

		

		980



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year 

		3,400

		

		3,267



		

		



		

		Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

		4,405

		

		2,050



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 

		(330)

		

		1,148



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 

		(3,489)

		

		(315)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) 

		586

		

		2,883



		

		

		

		

		



		

		C Plus Limited 

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		1,530

		

		3,517



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		3,625

		

		1,070



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		(280)

		

		(266)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		(430)

		

		(588)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Equity attributable to owners of the Company

		2,000

		

		1,680



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests

		2,445

		

		2,053



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		2,165

		

		2,285



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Expenses

		(1,453)

		

		(1,441)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		712

		

		844



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

		320

		

		380



		

		Profit (loss) attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		392

		

		464



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		712

		

		844



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

		-

		

		-



		

		Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

		320

		

		380



		

		Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests 

		392

		

		464



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year 

		712

		

		844



		

		



		

		Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

		-

		

		-



		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 

		(63)

		

		359



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 

		(200)

		

		(600)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 

		(160)

		

		(120)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net cash inflow (outflow) 

		(423)

		

		(361)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		19. 3 Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary





		IFRS 12.18

		During the year, the Group disposed of 10% of its interest in Subone Limited, reducing its continuing interest to 90%. The proceeds on disposal of CU213,000 were received in cash. An amount of CU179,000 (being the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets of Subone Limited) has been transferred to non-controlling interests (see note 31). The difference of CU34,000 between the increase in the non-controlling interests and the consideration received has been credited to retained earnings (see note 30).





		

		19. 4 Significant restrictions





		IFRS 12.13

		[When there are significant restrictions on the Company's or its subsidiaries' ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions. Please see IFRS 12.13 for details.] 



		

		



		

		19. 5 Financial support





		IFRS 12.14-17

		[When the Group gives financial support to a consolidated structured entity, the nature and risks (including the type and amount of support provided) should be disclosed in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.14 – 17 for details.] 



		

		



		

		20. Investments in associates 





		

		20.1 Details of material associates 





		IFRS 12.21(a)

		Details of each of the Group's material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 



		

		



		

		Note:	For illustrative purposes, the following associates are assumed to material to the Group. 



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Name of associate 

		

		Principal activity

		

		Place of incorporation and principal place of business

		

		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group 



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		A Plus Limited (i) & (ii)



		

		Transport

		

		M Land

		

		35%

		

		35%



		

		B Plus Limited (iii)



		

		Steel manufacturing

		

		A Land

		

		17%

		

		17%



		IFRS 12.21(a)(iv)





IFRS 12.22(b)

IFRS 12.21(b)(iii)















IFRS 12.9(e)



		(i) Pursuant to a shareholder agreement, the Company has the right to cast 37% of the votes at shareholder meetings of A Plus Limited. 



(ii) The financial year end date of A Plus Limited is 31 October. This was the reporting date established when that company was incorporated, and a change of reporting date is not permitted in M Land. For the purposes of applying the equity method of accounting, the financial statements of A Plus Limited for the year ended 31 October 2011 have been used, and appropriate adjustments have been made for the effects of significant transactions between that date and 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Group's interest in A Plus Limited, which is listed on the stock exchange of M Land, was CU8 million (31 December 2011: CU7.8 million). 



(iii) Although the Group holds less than 20% of the equity shares of B Plus Limited, and it has less than 20% of the voting power at shareholder meetings, the Group exercises significant influence by virtue of its contractual right to appoint two directors to the board of directors of that company. 



		

		





		IFRS 12.B14

		Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's material associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 





		IFRS 12.21(b)(i)

		All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. 





		IFRS 12.21(b)(ii)

		A Plus Limited

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		IFRS 12.B12

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		IFRS 12.B14

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		10,010

		

		9,061



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		4,902

		

		4,001



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		(3,562)

		

		(3,061)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		(4,228)

		

		(4,216)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		2,554

		

		2,560



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit or loss from continuing operations

		1,337

		

		1,332



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		1,337

		

		1,332



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year 

		1,337

		

		1,332



		

		



		

		Dividends received from the associate during the year 

		30

		

		25



		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.B14(b)

		Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  





		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net assets of the associate

		7,067

		

		5,760



		

		Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the associate

		35%

		

		35%



		

		Goodwill 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other adjustments (please specify) 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate 

		2,438

		

		2,016



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.21(b)(ii)

		B Plus Limited

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		IFRS 12.B12

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		IFRS 12.B14

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		19,151

		

		18,442



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		18,460

		

		17,221



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		(15,981)

		

		(14,220)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		(6,206)

		

		(8,290)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		5,790

		

		5,890



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit or loss from continuing operations

		2,271

		

		2,262



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		2,271

		

		2,262



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year 

		2,271

		

		2,262



		

		



		

		Dividends received from the associate during the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		



		IFRS 12.B14(b)

		Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  





		

		Net assets of the associate

		15,424

		

		13,153



		

		Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the associate

		17%

		

		17%



		

		Goodwill 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other adjustments (please specify) 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate 

		2,622

		

		2,236



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.21(c)(ii)

IFRS 12.B16

		Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of profit (loss) from continuing operations

		12

		

		358



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of other comprehensive income 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of total comprehensive income

		12

		

		358



		

		

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in these associates

		

288

		

		

1,337



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.22(c)



		Unrecognised share of losses of an associate

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		 31/12/13

		

		 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cumulative share of loss of an associate

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		20.2 Change in ownership interest in an associate 





		IAS 28.25

		In the prior year, the Group held a 40% interest in E Plus Limited and accounted for the investment as an associate. In December 2013, the Group disposed of a 30% interest in E Plus Limited to a third party for proceeds of CU1.245 million (received in January 2014). The Group has retained the remaining 10% interest as an available-for-sale investment whose fair value at the date of disposal was CU360,000, that is determined using a discounted cash flow model (please describe key factors and assumptions used in determining the fair value). This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain in profit or loss, calculated as follows.



		

		

		CU'000



		

		

		



		

		Proceeds of disposal

		1,245



		

		Plus:	fair value of investment retained (10%)

		360



		

		Less:	carrying amount of investment on the date of loss of significant influence

		(1,024)



		

		

		



		

		Gain recognised

		581



		

		

		



		

		The gain recognised in the current year comprises a realised profit of CU477,000 (being the proceeds of CU1.245 million less CU768,000 carrying amount of the interest disposed of) and an unrealised profit of CU104,000 (being the fair value less the carrying amount of the 10% interest retained). A current tax expense of CU143,000 arose on the gain realised in the current year, and a deferred tax expense of CU32,000 has been recognised in respect of the portion of the profit recognised that is not taxable until the remaining interest is disposed of. 





		

		20.3 Significant restrictions





		IFRS 12.22(a)

		[When there are significant restrictions on the ability of associates to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.22(a) for details.]



		

		



		

		20A. Investment in joint venture





		

		Note:	Similar to the disclosures applicable to associates, IFRS 12 requires the following information to be disclosed for each of the Group's material joint ventures. In this model, the Group only has one joint venture, JV Electronics Limited, and for illustrative purposes, JV Electronics Limited is assumed to be material to the Group. 



		

		



		

		20A.1 Details of material joint venture





		IFRS 12.21(a)

		Details of the Group's material joint venture at the end of the reporting period is as follows: 



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Name of joint venture 

		

		Principal activity

		

		Place of incorporation and principal place of business

		

		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Group 



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		JV Electronics Limited

		

		Manufacture of electronic equipment

		

		C Land

		

		33%

		

		33%



		

		



		IFRS 12.B14

		Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 





		IFRS 12.B14

		Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs [adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes]. 





		IFRS 12.21(b)(i)

		The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. 





		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.21(b)(ii)

		JV Electronics Limited 

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		IFRS 12.B12

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		IFRS 12.B14

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		5,454

		

		7,073



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		23,221

		

		20,103



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		(2,836)

		

		(3,046)



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		(13,721)

		

		(13,033)



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.B13

		The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:  





		

		Cash and cash equivalents 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)

		(12,721)

		

		(12,373)



		

		

























		

		

		



		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Revenue

		6,436

		

		6,076



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit or loss from continuing operations

		1,021

		

		733



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Profit (loss) for the year

		1,021

		

		733



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Other comprehensive income for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total comprehensive income for the year 

		1,021

		

		733



		

		



		

		Dividends received from the joint venture during the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.B13

		The above profit (loss) for the year include the following:  





		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Depreciation and amortisation 

		200

		

		180



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Interest income

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Interest expense

		56

		

		48



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.B14(b)

		Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements:  





		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net assets of the joint venture 

		12,118

		

		11,097



		

		Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the joint venture

		33%

		

		33%



		

		Goodwill 

		-

		

		-



		

		Other adjustments (please specify) 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 

		3,999

		

		3,662



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.21(c)(i)

IFRS 12.B16

		Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually material

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of profit (loss) from continuing operations

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of other comprehensive income 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The Group's share of total comprehensive income

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.22(c)



		Unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		The unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture for the year 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		 31/12/13

		

		 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Cumulative share of loss of a joint venture

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		20A.2 Significant restriction





		IFRS 12.22(a)

		[When there are significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group, the Group should disclose the nature and extent of significant restrictions in the financial statements. Please see IFRS 12.22(a) for details.]



		

		











		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		21. Joint operation





		IFRS 12.21(a)

		The Group has a material joint operation, Project ABC. The Group has a 25 per cent share in the ownership of a property located in Central District, City A. The property upon completion will be held for leasing purposes. The Group is entitled to a proportionate share of the rental income received and bears a proportionate share of the outgoings. 





		

		45. Disposal of subsidiary 





		

		On 30 November 2013, the Group disposed of Subzero Limited which carried out its entire toy manufacturing operations. 





		

		45.1 Consideration received





		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 7.40(b)

		Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

		7,854

		

		-



		

		Deferred sales proceeds (note 25)

		960

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 7.40(a)

		Total consideration received

		8,814

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IAS 7.40(d)

		45.2 Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control was lost





		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current assets

		

		

		



		

		Cash and cash equivalents

		288

		

		-



		

		Trade receivables

		1,034

		

		-



		

		Inventories

		2,716

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current assets

		

		

		



		

		Property, plant and equipment

		5,662

		

		-



		

		Goodwill 

		3,080

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Current liabilities

		

		

		



		

		Payables

		(973)

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Non-current liabilities

		

		

		



		

		Borrowings 

		(4,342)

		

		-



		

		Deferred tax liabilities

		(471)

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Net assets disposed of 

		6,994

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		45.3 Gain on disposal of subsidiary





		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Consideration received

		8,814

		

		-



		

		Net assets disposed of

		(6,994)

		

		



		

		Non-controlling interests

		-

		

		-



		

		Cumulative gain/loss on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified from equity on loss of control of subsidiary

		-

		

		-



		

		Cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of the subsidiary and related hedging instruments reclassified from equity to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiary 

		120

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.19

		Gain on disposal

		1,940

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.19(b)

		The gain on disposal is included in the profit for the year from discontinued operations in the consolidated [statement of comprehensive income/income statement] (see note 11).





		

		45.4 Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary





		

		

		Year ended 31/12/13

		

		Year ended 31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

		7,854

		

		-



		IAS 7.40(c)

		Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of

		(288)

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		7,566

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		49. Commitments for expenditure 



		

		

		



		IFRS 12.23(a)

IFRS 12.B18 

		The Group's commitments, including its share of commitments made jointly with other joint venturers relating to its joint venture, JV Electronics Limited, is as follows:



		- B19

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Commitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

		983

		

		192



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Commitments to provide loans

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Commitments to acquire other venturer's ownership interest when a particular event occurs or does not occur in the future (please specify what the particular event is) 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Others (please specify)

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		50. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets





		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		50.1 Contingent liabilities



		

		

		



		IFRS 12.23(b)

		Contingent liabilities incurred by the Group arising from its interests in a  joint venture (i)

		110

		

		116



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.23(b)

		Contingent liabilities incurred by the Group arising from its interests in associates (please disclose the details) 

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.23(b)

		Group's share of associates' contingent liabilities (ii)

		150

		

		14



		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 12.23(b)

		Group's share of joint venture's contingent liabilities (please specify the details)

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		



		

		(i) A number of contingent liabilities have arisen as a result of the Group's interests in joint ventures. The amount disclosed represents the aggregate amount of such contingent liabilities for which the Group as an investor is liable. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the joint ventures being more or less favourable than currently expected. The Group is not contingently liable for the liabilities of other venturers in its joint ventures.





		

		(ii) The amount disclosed represents the Group's share of contingent liabilities of associates. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the associates being more or less favourable than currently expected. 
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Classification



						Company name



				Presentation currency:



				Assets and Liabilities Accounted for at Fair Value



				In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 13 which provides guidance on how to measure financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial assets at fair value.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early application permitted.  

This template provides a guide that can be used to for all assets and liabilities that the company has that are accounted for at fair value.


				Asset/Liability		Financial/Non-Financial		Description		Standard Requiring Fair Value Measurement		Once-Off/Recurring Fair Value Measurement		Valuation Methodology		Valuation Expert		Level 1 Inputs		Level 2 Inputs		Level 3 Inputs

				State whether the item that is being measured at fair value is an asset or a liability.		State whether the asset or liability is a financial or non-financial item.		Provide a brief description of the asset or liability.		State which standard requires the asset or liability to be measured at fair value.		State whether the asset or liability is required to be measured at fair value only once or on a recurring basis.		State what valuation technique/methodology is used to value the asset or liability.		State whether a valuation expert is used to determine fair value.		Indicate which types of inputs are used in the valuation:
- Level 1: fully observable inputs
- Level 2: adjusted observable inputs
- Level 3: unobservable inputs 
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The list below provides guidance on the more commonly found financial instruments and how to value them.



		Financial Instrument

		High Level Fair Value Methodology

		Common Pitfalls



		-  Listed equity 

		The share price from the exchange on which the shares are listed. If the shares are listed on a foreign exchange convert the foreign currency share price into the reporting currency at the closing spot exchange rate. 

		Data providers may provide share prices at different times of day.



		-  Listed bonds

		Closing all-in price from the exchange on which the bond is listed. If the bond is listed on a foreign exchange, convert the foreign currency share price into the reporting currency at the closing spot exchange rate. 

		Entities may elect to fair value bonds on a clean basis or an all-in basis. Should clients fair value on an all-in basis the full change in fair value of the bond will be recognised in profit or loss. Should the client choose to fair value on a clean basis only the fair value movements between the clean fair values will be recognised in profit and loss as a fair value adjustment. Realised plus accrued interest will be recognised in profit or loss as interest income or finance cost. Accrued interest could be recognised on the effective interest rate of the bond which is seldom equal to the contractual interest rate of the bond due to the impact of premiums or discounts.



		-   Interest rate swap

		An interest rate swap (SWAP) is a contractual agreement to exchange a series of cash flows: typically a fixed interest rate is exchanged for a floating rate, based on a notional principal over a period of time. Most swaps in South Africa reset quarterly against the three month JIBAR rate. Payment takes place quarterly in arrears.



A discounted cash flow valuation methodology is used to value a swap. Assuming no credit valuation adjustment, the cash flows under the floating leg of the swap are projected off a zero swap curve using forward rates to project the future 3M JIBAR rates. The fixed leg’s cash flows are known and deducted from the floating leg’s cash flows. The net amount is discounted off the zero swap curve.

		The client’s bank may provide a swap valuation to the client for MTM accounting purposes. Care should be taken before booking the bank’s valuation.



The valuation was prepared from the bank’s point of view and not from the corporate’s point of view and won’t necessarily be the correct value for the corporate.



The bank may have incorporated a counterparty credit valuation (CVA) adjustment. The corporate client will be the bank’s counterparty and therefore the valuation of the swap might be impacted by the credit risk of the corporate. The bank’s value might ignore the bank’s own credit risk (DVA) and therefore the corporate’s counterparty credit risk may have been ignored by the bank.



		Financial Instrument

		High Level Fair Value Methodology

		Common Pitfalls



		-   Over-the-counter (“OTC”) equity options

		A vanilla European-type equity option gives the holder the right, but not the obligation to buy or sell the underlying share at a predetermined price at a pre-specified date. 



Equity options are valued using option pricing models. The most widely used option pricing model is the Black-Scholes model which uses the following inputs:

· Spot share price

· Contractual strike price

· Expected dividend yield

· Risk free rate

· Expected volatility or standard deviation of share price returns



Non-vanilla and non-European style options should not be valued using the Black-Scholes model. 



		Using the incorrect option pricing model will result in an incorrect fair value. The Black-Scholes model is often used incorrectly or used for options which it was not intended to value.



The holder of the option is also fully exposed to the seller of the option’s credit risk. This requires a CVA adjustment.



		-   Forward exchange contracts

		A forward exchange contract (FEC) is a contractual agreement to exchange an agreed amount of one currency for an agreed amount of another currency at a future date



FEC’s are valued by comparing the contractual forward rate to a market related forward rate with similar maturity and then discounting the net amount back to the valuation date.

		Some accounting systems use interest rate parity relationships to calculate implied forward rates instead of using market observable forward rates.



Implied forward rates are seldom the same as market observable forward rates and may result in valuation differences.
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IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement



In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 



IFRS 13 provides guidance on how to measure the fair value of financial assets, financial liabilities, equity instruments and non-financial assets. IFRS 13 does not specify when an asset, liability or equity instrument must be measured at fair value but when one of the other standards requires fair value measurement, and then the guidance in IFRS 13 is used to determine that fair value. 



IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is therefore a market based measure of the financial asset, financial liability or non-financial asset. Fair value is also an exit measure (ie the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability) rather than an entry based measure (ie the price to buy an asset or incur a liability).



IFRS 13 creates an approach whereby entities should perform the following steps in determining a fair value:



· Identify the asset or liability being valued



· For non-financial assets to determine the highest and best use of the asset, whether in conjunction with other assets or on a standalone basis



· The market in which ordinary transactions take place for the asset or liability



· Using an appropriate valuation technique, maximising observable inputs and minimising unobservable inputs. Inputs used should reflect those that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability.



IFRS 13 creates a fair value hierarchy for fair value measurements based on the inputs into the fair value measurement as follows:



· Level 1:		Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or 				liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.



· Level 2:		Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 			for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.



· Level 3:		Unobservable inputs.



IFRS 13 requires disclosures about fair value measurements, the valuation techniques used and the inputs used therein. For level 3 fair value measurements, the effect of fair value measurements on profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period needs to also be disclosed.



Key assumptions used in the preparation of this guide are as follows: 



· International GAAP Holdings Limited is assumed to have early applied IFRS 13 in the current year.

1 January 2013 is considered to be the date of initial application of this standard. 



· IFRS 13 has been applied prospectively in accordance with IAS 8 and the relevant transitional provisions of IFRS 13.C2.



· This guide does not include a full set of financial statements; only certain notes affected by IFRS 13 are included. 



For details of the disclosure and presentation requirements of IFRS 13, readers should refer to Deloitte's 2013 IFRS Compliance, Presentation and Disclosure Checklist. This checklist can be downloaded from Deloitte's web site www.iasplus.com. 



Note that in this guide, we have included line items for which a nil amount is shown, so as to illustrate items that, although not applicable to International GAAP Holdings Limited, are commonly encountered in practice. This does not mean that we have illustrated all possible disclosures. Nor should it be taken to mean that, in practice, entities are required to display line items for such ‘nil' amounts.
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		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		IAS 1.10(e), (ea),
51(b),(c)

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 





		

		2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 





		

		2.1 New and revised IFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial statements





		IAS 8.28(a)

IAS 8.28(b),(c) & (d)



		IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement



The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current year. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; the fair value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment purposes). 



IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements. 



IFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1 January 2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions were given to entities such that they need not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the Standard in comparative information provided for periods before the initial application of the Standard. In accordance with these transitional provisions, the Group has not made any new disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period (please see notes 15, 16 and 40 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 





		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		15. Property, plant and equipment





		

		15.1 Fair value measurement of the Group's freehold land and buildings





		IAS 16.77(a) & (b)

IFRS 13.91(a), 93(d)



		The Group's freehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The fair value measurements of the Group's freehold land and buildings as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 were performed by Messrs R & P Trent, independent valuers not related to the Group. Messrs R & P Trent are members of the Institute of Valuers of A Land, and they have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fair value measurement of properties in the relevant locations. 



The fair value of the freehold land was determined [based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties/other methods [describe]]. The fair value of the buildings was determined using [the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market participant to construct assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence/other methods (describe)]. There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.





		

		

















		IFRS 13.93(a),(b)

		Details of the Group's freehold land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: 



		

		

		

		



Level 1

		

		



Level 2

		

		 Level 3

		

		Fair value as at 31/12/13



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		A manufacturing plant in A land that contains: 

- freehold land

		-

		

		13,868

		

		-

		

		13,868



		

		- buildings

		-

		

		-

		

		11,147

		

		11,147



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Note:	The categorisation of fair value measurements into the different levels of the fair value hierarchy depends on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement. The above categorisations are for illustrative purpose only. 



		

		



		IFRS 13.93(c)

		There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year. 





		IFRS 13.95

		[Where there had been a transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the Group should disclose the reasons for the transfer and the Group’s policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred (for example, at the beginning or end of the reporting period or at the date of the event that caused the transfer).] 





		IFRS 13.C3

		Note:	IFRS 13 contains specific transitional provisions such that entities that apply IFRS 13 for the first time do not need to make the disclosures required by the Standard in comparative information provided for periods before initial application of the Standard. Nevertheless, an entity should provide disclosures for the prior period that were required by the then applicable Standards.



		

		



		IAS 16.77(e)

		Had the Group's freehold and buildings (other than land and buildings classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group) been measured on a historical cost basis, their carrying amount would have been as follows. 





		


		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		



		

		Freehold land

		11,957

		

		13,104



		

		Buildings

		7,268

		

		10,340



		

		

		

		

		



		

		16. Investment property



		

		

		

		

		



		

		16.1 Fair value measurement of the Group's investment properties 





		IAS 40.75(e)

IFRS 13.91(a), 93(d)





		The fair value of the Group's investment property as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Messrs R & P Trent, independent valuers not related to the Group. Messrs R & P Trent are members of the Institute of Valuers of A Land, and they have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The fair value was determined [based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties/other methods [describe]]. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.





		IFRS 13.93(a),(b)

		Details of the Group's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: 





		

		

		

Level 1

		

		

 Level 2

		

		 Level 3

		

		Fair value as at 31/12/13



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

Commercial property units located in A Land

		-

		

		1,968

		

		-

		

		1,968



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		IFRS 13.93(c)

		There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.





		IFRS 13.95

		[Where there had been a transfer between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the Group should disclose the reasons for the transfer and the Group’s policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred (for example, at the beginning or end of the reporting period or at the date of the event that caused the transfer).]





		













IFRS 13.C3













IFRS 13.97

		Notes:	Fair value hierarchy

	The categorisation of fair value measurements into the different levels of the fair value hierarchy depends on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement. The above categorisations are for illustrative purpose only. 

	Transitional provisions

	IFRS 13 contains specific transitional provisions such that entities that apply IFRS 13 for the first time do not need to make the disclosures required by the Standard in comparative information provided for periods before initial application of the Standard. Nevertheless, an entity should provide disclosures for the prior period that were required by the then applicable Standards.

	Fair value disclosures for investment properties measured using the cost model 

	For investment properties that are measured using the cost model, IAS 40.79(e) requires the fair value of the properties to be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. In that case, the fair value of the properties (for disclosure purpose) should be measured in accordance with IFRS 13. In addition, IFRS 13.97 requires the following disclosures: 

· at which level fair value measurement is categorised (i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3);

· where the fair value measurement is categorised within Level 2 or Level 3, a description of the valuation technique(s) and the inputs used in the fair value measurement; and 

· the highest and best use of the properties (if different from their current use) and the reasons why the properties are being used in a manner that is different from their highest and best use.  








		Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		

		40.11 Fair value measurements 





		

		This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities. 





		

		40.11.1 Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis  





		IFRS 13.93(a)

IFRS 13.93(b)

IFRS 13.93(d)

IFRS 13.93(g)

IFRS 13.93(h)(i)

IFRS 3.B64(f)(iii)

IFRS 3.B64(g)

IFRS 3.B67(b)

IFRS 3.IE65(e)

2012: IFRS 7.27

		Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).



		Financial assets/ financial liabilities 

		Fair value as at

		Fair value hierar-chy 

		Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) 

		Significant unobservable input(s)

		Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value 



		

		31/12/13

		31/12/12

		

		

		

		



		1) Foreign currency forward contracts (see notes 22 and 34)

		Assets – CU 244,000; and 

Liabilities – CU87,000

		Assets – CU220,000





		Level 2 

		Discounted cash flow. 

Future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates (from observable forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties.

		N/A

		N/A



		2) Interest rate swaps (see notes 22 and 34)

		Assets – 

CU284,000; 

Liabilities (designated for hedging) – CU5,000; and 

Liabilities (not designated for hedging) – CU51,000



		Assets – CU177,000

		Level 2

		Discounted cash flow. 

Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting period) and contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties.

		N/A

		N/A 



		3) Held-for-trading non-derivative financial assets (see note 22) 



		Listed equity securities in Z land: 

· Real estate industry – CU911,000; and 

· Oil and gas industry – CU628,000.

		Listed equity securities in Z land: 

· Real estate industry – CU911,000; and 

· Oil and gas industry – CU728,000.

		Level 1

		Quoted bid prices in an active market.

		N/A

		N/A



		4) Listed redeema-ble notes (see note 22)

		Listed debt securities in Y Land – Energy industry – CU2,200,000

		Listed debt securities in Y Land – Energy industry – CU2,180,000

		Level 1

		Quoted bid prices in an active market.

		N/A

		N/A











		

				Financial assets/financial liabilities 

		Fair value as at

		Fair value hierarchy 

		Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) 

		Significant unobservable input(s)

		Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value 



		

		31/12/13

		31/12/12

		

		

		

		



		5) Private equity investments (see note 22) (note 1)

		20 per cent equity investment in Rocket Corp Limited engaged in refining and distribution of fuel products in A land – CU5,359,000; and 

10 per cent equity investment in E Plus Limited engaged in Shoe manufacturing in A land – CU360,000

		20 per cent equity investment in Rocket Corp Limited engaged in refining and distribution of fuel products in A land – CU5,285,000

		Level 3

		Discounted cash flow 

		Long-term revenue growth rates, taking into account management’s experience and knowledge of market conditions of the specific industries, ranging from 4.9 to 5.5 per cent (2012: 4.8 – 5.4 per cent).

		The higher the revenue growth rate, the higher the fair value.





		

		

		

		

		

		Long-term pre-tax operating margin taking into account management’s experience and knowledge of market conditions of the specific industries, ranging from 5- 12 per cent (2012: 5 – 10 per cent). 

		The higher the per-tax operating margin, the higher the fair value.





		

		

		

		

		

		Weighted average cost of capital, determined using a Capital Asset Pricing Model, ranging from 11.9 to 12.5 per cent (2012: 11.2 to 12.1 per cent).

		The higher the weighted average cost of capital, the lower the fair value.





		

		

		

		

		

		Discount for lack of marketability, determined by reference to the share price of listed entities in similar industries, ranging from 5 – 20 per cent (2012: 4 – 19 per cent). 

		The higher the discount, the lower the fair value. 



		6) Redeemable cumulative preference shares (see note 34)

		Liabilities – CU14,875,000

		-

		Level 2 

		Discounted cash flow at a discount rate of 8 per cent (2012: 7.5 per cent) that reflects the issuer's current borrowing rate at the end of the reporting period.

		N/A

		N/A



		7) Contingent consideration in a business combination (see note 34)

		Liabilities – CU75,000

		-

		Level 3 

		Discounted cash flow. 

		Discount rate of 18 per cent. 

		The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value. 



		

		

		

		

		

		Probability-adjusted revenues and profits, with a range from CU 100,000 to CU150,000 and a range from CU 60,000 to 90,000 respectively. 

		The higher the amounts of revenue and profit, the higher the fair value. 









		

		



		IFRS 13.93(h)(ii)

2012: IFRS 7.27B(e)



		Note 1: 	If the above unobservable inputs to the valuation model were 10% higher/lower while all the other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the shares would decrease/increase by CU7,000 (31 December 2012: decrease/increase by CU8,000).





		IFRS 13.93(c)

2012: IFRS 7.27B(b)



		There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.





		IFRS 13.93(h)(ii)

2012: IFRS 7.27B(e)





		Note: 	For financial assets and financial liabilities whose recurring fair value measurements are categorised within Level 3, if changing one or more of the unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible alternative assumptions would change the fair value determined significantly, an entity should state that fact and disclose the effect of those changes. The entity should also disclose how the effect of a change to reflect a reasonably possible alternative assumption was calculated. 



		

		



		IFRS 7.25, 29(a)



		40.11.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required) 





		

		Except as detailed in the following table, the directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.





		

		

		31/12/13

		

		31/12/12



		

		

		Carrying amount

		

		Fair value

		

		Carrying amount

		

		Fair value



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		Financial assets 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Loans and receivables:

		22,506

		

		22,339

		

		16,832

		

		16,713



		

		- loans to related parties

		3,637

		

		3,608

		

		3,088

		

		3,032



		

		- trade and other receivables

		18,869

		

		18,731

		

		13,744

		

		13,681



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Held-to-maturity investments:

		5,905

		

		5,922

		

		4,015

		

		4,016



		

		- bills of exchange

		5,405

		

		5,420

		

		4,015

		

		4,016



		

		- debentures 

		500

		

		502

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial lease receivables

		1,028

		

		1,102

		

		905

		

		898



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:

		50,190

		

		50,242

		

		71,441

		

		71,115



		

		- bills of exchange 

		358

		

		350

		

		916

		

		920



		

		- convertible notes 

		4,144

		

		4,120

		

		-

		

		-



		

		- perpetual notes 

		1,905

		

		2,500

		

		-

		

		-



		

		- bank loans 

		10,674

		

		10,685

		

		13,483

		

		13,500



		

		- loans from related parties

		10,376

		

		10,388

		

		29,843

		

		29,900



		

		- loans from other entities

		4,276

		

		3,980

		

		4,167

		

		4,050



		

		- interest-free loan from the government

		2,798

		

		2,711

		

		2,610

		

		2,546



		

		- trade and other payables

		15,659

		

		15,508

		

		20,422

		

		20,199



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial lease payables

		14

		

		12

		

		89

		

		87



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		







		
Source

		International GAAP Holdings Limited



		

		



		

		Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 – continued





		IFRS 13.97

IFRS 13.93(b)

		

		Fair value hierarchy as at 31/12/13



		

		

		Level 1

		

		Level 2

		

		Level 3

		

		Total



		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		Financial assets 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Loans and receivables:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- loans to related parties

		-

		

		-

		

		3,608

		

		3,608



		

		- trade and other receivables

		-

		

		18,731

		

		-

		

		18,731



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Held-to-maturity investments:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- bills of exchange

		5,420

		

		-

		

		-

		

		5,420



		

		- debentures 

		502

		

		-

		

		-

		

		502



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial lease receivables

		-

		

		1,102

		

		-

		

		1,102



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total

		5,922

		

		19,833

		

		3,608

		

		29,363



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- bills of exchange 

		350

		

		-

		

		-

		

		350



		

		- convertible notes 

		-

		

		4,120

		

		-

		

		4,120



		

		- perpetual notes 

		2,500

		

		-

		

		-

		

		2,500



		

		- bank loans 

		-

		

		-

		

		10,685

		

		10,685



		

		- loans from related parties

		-

		

		-

		

		10,388

		

		10,388



		

		- loans from other entities

		-

		

		-

		

		3,980

		

		3,980



		

		- interest-free loan from the government

		-

		

		2,711

		

		-

		

		2,711



		

		- trade and other payables

		-

		

		15,508

		

		-

		

		15,508



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Financial lease payables

		-

		

		12

		

		-

		

		12



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total

		2,850

		

		22,351

		

		25,053

		

		50,254



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Notes:	The categorisation of fair value measurements into the different levels of the fair value hierarchy depends on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement. The above categorisations are for illustrative purpose only. 



		

		



		IFRS 13.97

IFRS 13.93(d)

		The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties. 



		IFRS 13.93(e)

2012: IFRS 7.27B(c)

		40.11.3 Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements 





		

		31 December 2013





		

		

		

		Available-for-sale - unlisted shares

		

		Others [describe]

		

		Total



		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Opening balance

		

		5,285

		

		-

		

		5,285



		

		Total gains or losses:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- in profit or loss

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		- in other comprehensive income

		

		74

		

		-

		

		74



		

		Reclassification of remaining interest in E Plus Limited from investment in associate to available-for-sale following partial sale of interest (see note 20)

		

		360

		

		-

		

		360



		

		Purchases 

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Issues

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Disposals/settlements

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Transfers out of level 3

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Closing balance

		

		5,719

		

		-

		

		5,719



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		31 December 2012





		

		

		

		Available-for-sale - unlisted shares

		

		Others [describe]

		

		Total



		

		

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000

		

		CU'000



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Opening balance

		

		5,234

		

		-

		

		5,234



		

		Total gains or losses:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		- in profit or loss

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		- in other comprehensive income

		

		51

		

		-

		

		51



		

		Purchases 

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Issues

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Disposals/settlements

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		Transfers out of level 3

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Closing balance

		

		5,285

		

		-

		

		5,285



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		The only financial liabilities subsequently measured at fair value on Level 3 fair value measurement represent contingent consideration relating to the acquisition of Subsix Limited (see note 44.2). No gain or loss for the year relating to this contingent consideration has been recognised in profit or loss. 





		IFRS 13.93(f)

2012: IFRS 7.27B(d)



IFRS 13.93(e)(ii)

2012: IFRS 7.27B(d)



		The total gains or losses for the year included an unrealised gain of CU72,000 relating to financial assets that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period (2012: a gain of CU73,000). Such fair value gains or losses are included in ‘other gains and losses' (see note 8). 



All gains and losses included in other comprehensive income relate to unlisted shares and redeemable notes held at the end of the reporting period and are reported as changes of ‘Investment revaluation reserve' (see note 29.3).
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Intro

				Introduction



				IFRS 13 provides guidance on how to measure the fair value of financial assets, financial liabilities, equity instruments and non-financial assets. IFRS 13 does not specify when an asset, liability or equity instrument must be measured at fair value but when one of the other standards requires fair value measurement, and then the guidance in IFRS 13 is used to determine that fair value. IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is therefore a market based measure of the financial asset, financial liability or non-financial asset. Fair value is also an exit measure (ie the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability) rather than an entry based measure (ie the price to buy an asset or incur a liability).







				This template reporting pack is intended to assist companies in modifying their reporting packs to comply with the requirements of IFRS 13.



				The changes needed to the reporting pack are:

				Fair value measurements

				Unobservable inputs

				Gains & Losses

				Quantitative information



				Notes to assist in the completion of the pack have been given where necessary

				References to the applicable requirements in IFRS 13 have also been included.





Fair value measurements

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:



				Fair value measurements



				Fair value measurements

				IFRS 13.93(a),(b)				Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

				Description		Year ended 31/12/2013		Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1)		Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)		Significant unobservable inputs 
(Level 3)		Total gains (losses)				Guidance

						CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000				Fair value measurements should be broken down and disclosed per class of asset/liability and per level of fair value measurement per the fair value hierarchy.

To complete the pack, insert the total fair value of the asset/liability class in column C (Year ended 31/12/2013).
Then breakdown the total fair value per class into the levels of the fair value hierarchy used to determine the total fair value as follows:
  - Column D = Level 1
  - Column E = Level 2
  - Column F = Level 3
The total gains or losses reported on the fair value measurements for that class of asset or liability should be disclosed in Column G (Total gains or losses)



				Recurring fair value measurements







				Other

				Total trading equity securities		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Other equity securities









				Other

				Total other equity securities		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Debt securities









				Total debt securities		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Hedge fund investments







				Total hedge fund investments		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Derivatives









				Total derivatives		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Investment properties





				Total investment properties		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Total recurring fair value measurements		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Non-recurring fair value measurements





				Total non-recurring fair value measurements		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0







Unobservable inputs

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:



				Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs																										Guidance



				IFRS 13.91, .92(e),(f)		Other equity securities						Debt securities						Hedge fund investments		Derivatives		Investment properties								The reconciliation of total fair value measurements per class of asset/liability for all level 3 measurement should be disclosed as follows:

						Category 1		Category 2		Category 3		Category 1		Category 2		Category 3		Category 1		Category 1		Category 1		Category 2		Total

						CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000		CU'000



				Opening balance

				Transfers into Level 3																										Added

				Transfers out of Level 3																										Subtracted

				Total gains or losses for the period

				Included in profit or loss																										Gains - added, Losses - subtracted

				Included in other comprehensive income																										Gains - added, Losses - subtracted



				Purchases, issues, sales and settlements

				Purchases																										Added

				Issues																										Added

				Sales																										Subtracted

				Settlements																										Subtracted

				Closing balance		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period																										The total amount of all gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period, for level 3 fair value measurements that are unrealised, should be disclosed in this row.













Gains&Losses

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:



				Gains and losses included in finance income and non-finance income



				IFRS 13.91(b)

						Finance income		Non-finance income

						CU'000		CU'000				Guidance



				Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss								The total amount of all gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period, for level 3 fair value measurements, should be disclosed in this row.



				Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period								The total amount of all gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period, for level 3 fair value measurements that are unrealised, should be disclosed in this row.

































Quantitative info

				Entity Name:		Company name



				Reporting currency:



				Period end:



				Quantitative information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)



				IFRS 13.92(d),(g),(h)



				Description		Fair value at 31/12/2013		Valuation technique(s)		Unobservable input		Range (weighted average)				Guidance

						CU'000



				Other securities												The method and inputs used to determine level 3 fair value measurements should be disclosed for each category of asset/liability.

				Category 1				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2				The table should be completed as follows:

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2				- The category of asset/liability for which level 3 fair value measurements were used should be disclosed in Column B

				Category 2				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2				- The valuation technique used should be completed in Column D.

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1				- The unobservable inputs used in this valuation technique should be disclosed in Column E

										Input 2		Weight 2

																- The range weighting that the technique and unobservable input had in determining the total fair value of the category should be disclosed.

				Debt securities

				Category 1				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

				Category 2				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2



				Hedge fund investments

				Category 1				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

				Category 2				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2



				Derivatives

				Category 1				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

				Category 2				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2



				Investment properties

				Category 1				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

				Category 2				Technique 1		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2

								Technique 2		Input 1		Weight 1

										Input 2		Weight 2
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